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Page 6! Page 8
OBJECTION PAGE ' question, let me know. If you do answer the
question, I'll assume that you're answering the
ATTCRNEY FAGE 3 same question. Please answer the questions as
Velot 276, 44, 160, Leb, 169, 174, 4 fully and completely as you can. Give your
1%=, 13, 290, 292, 293, 294, 5 Counsel time after I ask a question. He may
290 € wish to object to one of my questions, and then
7 he will advise you if you should answer.
Kramer 244, 25C, Z5h, 3 If you have any questions generally during
256, 257, 263, 271, 3 the deposition, if you need to take a break for
2773, 280G, 282, 284, 288 10 any reason, please let us know. This is very
11 informal and certainly nobody should be
Litts Zng 1z uncomfortable. Finally, your answers have to be
13 verbal, so a shake of the head or a nod won't
14 suffice. It's got to be a verbal answer, a yes,
1% a no, something that the court reporter can
16 transcribe. Do you understand these questions
17 --- these ---?
16 A, Yes, I do.
19 Q. Okay. Thank you very much. Let's start
20 with this. Ms. Reinking, tell me a little bit
Z1 about your education, starting with college.
22 A. I attendged Millersville “niversity and
23 graduated in May of 2001 w.!h & Bachelor of
24 Science in Education degres in ¥rglish, and
25 began teaching at Conestogs valley High School
Page 7 Page 9
FROCEEDINGS 1 in August of 2001 and have poen employea fhere
———————————————————————————————————————————————— z since.
NICOLE REINKING, HAVING FIRST 3EEN DULY SWORN, 3 Q. Okay.
TESTIZIED AS FCLLOWS: 4 A. And while I was there, 'ortained a Master's
———————————————————————————————————————————————— 5 degree in education from Wi _kes University.
EXAMINATION 6 Q. When you were at Millersville, did you have
RY ATTORXNEY KRAMER: K an opportunity to meet or work with Barry
Q. Good morning, Ms. Reinking. My name is 8 Girvin?
Barry Kramer. I am the attorney for the three 3 A. No.
Millersville Defendants in this lawsuit, which 10 Q. How about Jane Bray, did you meet her?
is captioned Stacy Snyder versus Millersville 11 A. No.
University. Today I'm going to be taking your 1z Q. Judy Wenrich?
deposition. Do you know what a deposition is? 13 A. No.
A, Yes. 14 Q. Do you have tenure at Conestoga Valley?
Q. What do you think is going to happen now, so 15 A. Yes,
we can ---7? 16 Q. And after how many years does one get
A. You will ask me guestions to clarify ox 17 tenure?
elaborate the case, and it's sworn testimony and 18 A. Three vyears.
it's admissible n Court. Q. So you've been at Conestoga Valley High

Q. You've been prepared well. Excellent. Let

me give you some additional instructions beyond
that. If I ask you a qQuestion that you don't
understand, please tell me and I'll try to

clarify it.

Sometimes my voice drops, I don't

speak clearly. If you don't understand the

2z

N
oW

[
o

School since August of 20017
A, Correct.

Q. Tell me what you've been teaching there

since.
A, Sure. For my first three vyears I taught two
ievels, traditional and +e.nrical, of
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Page 10 Page 12

1 tenth-grade knglisk. Azd I also -auaht i 1 and desire to teach.
2 journalism, which is z serester-long writing i Z Q. And when you were a junior block teacher,
3 elecrtive, and creative writing, and that's a 3 how many hours did you teach?
4 quarter-length class. And tren I picked up ! 4 A. Oh, gosh.
5 senior British literature and taugnht beta levels : 5 Q. Approximately.
3 of that for --- I've been teaching that --- 1 € A. Hours is tough. I coula prubably say how
7 think I'm in my fourth year. And T've also 7 many full blocks of teachina maybe I had
€ zaught advanced composition. 7T chink that's it, 3 Q. Okay.
9 Q. When did you first start supervising the 9 A. Probably --- I probably t days of a
10 student teachers at Conestoga Valley High ; 10 full day, so maybe six toral plac<s.
11 School? 11 Q. The junior block teacher stays in one
12 A. My fist and only experie with a szudent 1z classroom during the junior block semester or
23 teacher was the spring of 2006, 13 goes to different classrooms?
14 Q. And you haven't had a student teacher since f14 A. One is placed with one faacher, a
i3 then? : 15 cooperating teacher, but -z cul chserv other
16 A. Keo. 16 teachers 1n other classrooms.
7 Q. Is there a reason for that? LT Q. So it sounds as if, you know, the majority
8 E. No. I jus* haven't signed up for one. I 18 of the assignment, the majority of the work that
19 nave had other --- there are, you zxnow, junicr 19 the junior block teacher does is simply
20 bleck placements. z9 observing other teachers?
Q. What's that? What's a junior block 21 A. More so, ves.
placement? 22 Q. You said that Stacy Snyder was your first
23 A. It's the experience that a pre-service 23 and only student teacher assigned to you ---
24 student teacher nas priosr t¢ --- usuaally prior 24 A. Correct.
25 ~c his or her semester of s-udent 25 Q. --- at Conestoga Valley. Since she was your
Page 11| Page 13
1 t's a comparable but shorter placemernt and ioss 1 first student teacher, do you think that
2 requirements placed cn the pre-s yice teacher. 2 impacted the way you dealt with her during the
3 Q. Okay. Junior block lasts how long? 3 semester?
4 A, I think they're required to perform 3% hours 4 A. Toc some degree, probao.y. That's xiund cf a
5 in a classroom. 5 difficult guesticn to answ.x peczise I haven't
[ Q. During the course of a semester? (4] had anc~her cne, so [ can'- .ompare.
7 A. Uh-huh {yes), while they're taking 7 Q. Okay.
8 coursework azt Millersville simultanesusly. | 8 A. But I'm sure, you khow, @ spent more time
9 Q. And junior block students --- is that what 9 consulting with experienc chers ard with
Q0 they're called? Junior block teachers, --- 10 her supervisor.
11 A. Right. 11 Q. Okay. And who did you consult with within
12 Q. --- what do they do in the classroom? 1% Conestoga Valley?
13 ving a variety of 13 A. I would ask cther profassion I respected,
24 g documents for Millersville. w4 maybe colleagues within my aepar~ment who have
) I'm not exactly sure. And [ den't cempletely 15 had multiple student teacners. Buft most
16 remember because I was a zunior plock student at 16 predominantly probably my s.pervisor, Mrs.
17 Millersville. 17 Buffington ---
1R Q. Okay. 18 Q. Okay.
s A. But they alsc are expected to teach some | 19 A. --- and Mr. Garkone (ph n<*iuJ! alsc.
o0 lesscns. / 20 Q. Mrs. Buffington, what's her title?
21 Q. All right. Approximately how many hours 21 A. 8he 1is the supervisor .0 'nc Comruanizations
a2z does a junior block teacher actually teach in a 22 Cepartment.
3 classroom? 23 Q. Is that somewhat larger than the English
24 A, T think that varies. Tt j depends on the 24 Department, I mean, or is it the same --- just
25 candidate's comfort level and pricr experience 25 another name for the English Department?
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A. It is, but it ircludes reading. The rea:ding : 1 A, Yes.

teachers as well fall under the English 2 Q. And that's at Conestoga Valley High School?
Department, s> it ogened up the name. L3 A. Correct.

Q. Okay. What are the tools of the teaching 4 Q. She was your student teacher for how long?
trade, currently? When I went to school, they 5 A. From mid-January until trno f_rs< week <l May
were, I suspect, far limited than what they are € of 20306,

-3

now. What are they now? Q. Did you have the authority to assign her

A, Too 2 additional projects within the student teaching
Q. Pens, pencils, DVD, that kind of stuff. 9 context?
&. Yeah, pens, paper, VL[ plavers, VHS players, t0 A. Not outside the realm oF whar i scudent
projectors, smart boards, laptops, you know, 11 reacher is expected to do e =et ferth by
wireless labs. 1z Millersville University.
Q. It's certainly very different than when I 13 Q. Well, certainly she wouldn't get your
went to school. ! 14 laundry?
A. Yes. i 15 A. Ch, nc.
Q. What's a --- 16 Q. But in terms of activities around the
A, Smart board? 17 school ---?

--- smart board? 12 A. No.
A. It's like an inreractive large board that 19 Q. Okay. All right. Do you know if Conestoga
you can proiect the from your computer 20 Valley insures student teachers?
screen on, and ther 1t's touch capable. Sc jou £ 21 2. Insures?
can actually operate the computer screen from a oz Q. Uh-huh (yes), for liability insurance.
touch screern. Toees tha. make sense? £o I .:an 23 A. No. I don't pelieve ss.  -hink that ---
navigate web sites actually <ouching this large 24

sIreen so thal the udents can see it 25 the student version of the uion,

Page 15
d.splayed. 1 not sure if she had an aff!.is"ion with =hem or
Q. It sounds like a very sophisticated version hl not.
of what we used to use called overhead 3 Q. Okay. What calendar does the student
projectors, but can do much more. 4 teacher follow at Conestoga Valley?
A. Right. Right. They've made them obsclete 5 A. The teacher's calendar.
for the mos< vart. 6 Q. Your calendar?
Q. And those tools that you've just described, 7 A. Uh-nuh (ves).
have you used those while teaching? g Q. And how about the daily schedule, which one
A, Yes. 9 would Stacy Snyder have followed?
Q. And did Conestoga Valley supply any of these 1c A. The teacher’'s daily scheaiie, not the
tools to Ms. Snyder when she was teaching? Were 11 students'.
they in your classroom, these tools? 1z Q. Not the Millersville?
2. That's tough to say. We'wve gotten a lot c¢f 13 A, Not a student at Cones valley's, bnt a
the technology since she wci:d have s-tudent 14 teacher’s daily schedule.
“ezught. That was three --- “wo years agqo? I 15 Q. Was she supposed to sort of follow you
might have had a becara in my room, but not 16 around, you know, during the day? I mean, how
operaftional and not the one that I'm currently 17 does that work? What's your physical
using. I don'z think T did, though, if that's 18 relationship with her during the beginning of a
acceptable. I don't remenmber. . school day?
Q. Whatever these tools that you --- that Ms. . 20 A. Sure., Yes. She would nave been right there
Snyder used in your classroom, did Conestoga o1 with me. Millersville reqiitcs them to atbtend
Valley supply them to her? 22 everyvthing that a teacher at- s, SO a calty
A. Yes. 23 meeting, department meetinas. I'm not sure what
Q. Where did her teaching take place? In your 24 else wouid happen.

classroom?

Q. An IEP meeting?

5 (Pages 14 to 17)
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Page 20

1 A. T'm not so sure tha+ sne would te th 1 Q. Do you know if Conestoga Valley arranged
z because of the confidentialiry tha nature, L2 transportation for Ms. Snyder to and from
3 tut I think scmetimes student tea 3 school?
4 there. 4 A. She did not --- or 1 nnt
S Q. Okay. How about parent/teacher conferences, ‘:’ S Q. Did you have any role in the selection of a
& would she attend those? i6 student teacher in that semester?
7 L. Yes. 7 A. No.
8 Q. How about open houses? ; 8 Q. So how was it that you came to get a student
9 . Yes. 9 teacher, Stacy Snyder?
10 Q. And I think you said you attended faculty 13 A. I underszand it to be -u7: v oassia
11 meetings? 11 that the student teacher o mates, yol
1z A. Uh-huh (yes;. Yes. L2 an indication --- they're =i_cwed To suyjest a
13 Q. Would she attend faculty inservice meetings? 13 preference for high schoo . @ —iddle school and
i4 A. Yes. 14 probably within the coun<-, within Lanc:s-or
13 Q. Was she expected to be in the classroom 15 County. But beyond that, i.'s a random
16 whenever Conestoga Valley was in session? 16 assignment process.
7 A. Yes. 17 Q. Within a given school, you're saying?
18 Q. So whenever you were there, she was supposed 18 A. Yes. On, vyes.
19 to be there? 19 Q. Is Ms. --- and you may not know this, is Ms.
z0 A. Correct. 20 Buffington involved in the selection of a
z1 Q. What else does a student teacher do at z1 student teacher for Conestoga Valley High
zz Conestoga Valley in addition to student teaching z2 school?
23 in a classroom? Z3 A. ] don't bellieve so. okl Tnat cores
24 A. Any prcjects or components —nat Millersville 24 tarough cur district office, but 'm no-
expects them to do. So I —hink she had a zZ5 positive.
Page 19 Page 21
1 checklist of proifects outside of just her 1 Q. I want to show you a document which is
2 swudent teaching rlacement that she needed to Z actually in front of you. Maybe you can take
3 complete. But that would have been supervised 3 off the clip. And the first document, which
4 by Mr. Girvin. I wouldn't nave had any role in 4 we're going to mark as CV-1, it's a three-page
S that. 5 document. If you'd please look at that.
[ Q. Okay. Does a student teacher get assigned a 3 {(CV Exhibit One marked for
7 cafeteria duty? 7 identification.)
B A. She would be anywhere that I won.d pe. 30 : 3 OFF RECORD DISCUSSION
9 If I had been assigned to cafeferiz duty, Stacy 9 BY ATTCRNEY KRAMER:
13 would nave gone to cafeteria duty. 10 Q. Have you seen this document before?
11 Q. And what are the kind of duties, I just ;11 A. Yes.
12 don't remember, that you would have to do as a 1z Q. And tell me what it is.
13 teacher, in addition to teaching? 13 A. It's the background in.rmarion for st.dent
14 A. Bus duty. We don't have a lot cof duties, 14 teaching that the student -o3ither fills out for
15 though, cutside ©¢f that. There might --- the 13 Millersville and then is wsi.nd L to thre
16 occasional, ycu know, they need somepcdy with 16 assigned placement teach
7 hall monitoring or, you know, kind of nelping 17 Q. So when did you receive this document?
18 with --- during your planning period, you m.ght ; 18 A. Prior to her --- prior == making corta:t
13 have to help with ious events or aztivities 13 with her. So I think I prokably received I in
20 that are occurring at the high schcol that day. 20 November or December of Zu. h.
2% But it would ke sporadic, spontansous kind ot ;21 Q. On the last page, at the very bottom, it
events. zz says, please read and sign. And then it says, I
23 Q. Athletic events, too? z3 understand, as a student teacher, I am
24 A. No. ¥Youa can just at<end those if you want 24 representing Millersville University, and I am a
25 to. 25 guest in the host school. I understand that I

6 (Pages 18 to 21)
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Page 22E Page 24

z am subject to the rules and regulations in the 1 and sa* down with her and 33w« har some of the

2 school district to which I am assigned. Do you 2 documents that she would n. - to teach the

3 know what rules and regulations of the school 3 content at my school.

4 district refer to? For example, this is the 4 Q. And for example, what documents did you give

Y Conestoga Valley Professional Handbook. 5 her?

6 A, Un-nuh (yes). € A, Well, first of all, she would nave recelved

7 Q. Are these the rules and regulations that 7 a textbook, a teacher's tex ard she wouid
g this refers to, if you know? If you don't s have received a planned course of what 1is

9 know, --- 9 expected to be taught in the [° 3
10 4. I would assume so, --- i0 semester. She would have re w_vex ——— lef's
11 Q. --- then you don't. 11 see, what else would 1 have =iven her, the tirnal
12 A. -——- but I don't know fcr sure. 12 exam fcr the coarse., 1 ~hat, in addi‘ lon,
13 Q. Okay. 113 I had typed up --- I since ac't find it b-cause
a4 A. The ianguage 15 a lizt.e bit vague there, 14 we've switched computers a: ~.r schoc.. I had a
= but that's pronably pecause Millersville is 15 checklist of everything th:- T n=eded to gu» aover
6 dealing with so many school districts. L€ with her at that meeting. ¢ I would have gone
17 Q. Are there certain rules and regulations that ar cver procedures and the sc. .ol calendar d
1= you, as a teacher, are expected to adhere to? 18 basically anything that an -:vering student

19 A. Sure. 119 teacher would need to k “. e placed wilh me.
20 Q. And where are those found? : 20 Q. Did you give her the entire --- all the
21 A. In —he Professicnal Handbook, in the 21 documents reflecting the content of the
o2 Professicnal Code of Conduct for Ed: ors. zZz semester? It was a British literature course?
23 Q. Okay. And where --- that, meaning the 23 A. Correct. Yes, she woulua have had anything
24 one --- the regulations --—- 24 that she needed prior to ent-ring. She woenld
25 A, Yes. 25 have gotten --- receivea m~r¢ nciments from me
Page 23 Page 25

1 Q. --- you're referring to? 1 when she arrived. But this wazs T¢ allow ner to
z A. Yes. ULUh-huh {yes). 2 familiarize hergelf with tte werks, to as« me

3 Q. Okay. 3 questions ahead of time, to ='art —--- we

4 A. That all teachers in Pennsylvania --—- 1 4 probably figured out maybe wnzr nar operina unit
S believe it's Pennsylvaniz. I don't thirk 29's a 5 would have been, so that we -<n 2nter into 2

6 rational decument, but it might pe, are subjeuat 3 dialogue before she came, s+ 1hat she could ke

7 toe and for certification —hrcough the starte. And 7 prepared to teach.

8 also a union contract is prokbably --- has some 8 Q. All right. And how did that conversation go

9 rules and regulations for teachers as well, as 9 between the two of you?

13C for unicn members, though. 10 A. Very weil.

11 Q. For you personally, though, as a tenured, 11 Q. She seemed pleasant?

T2 full-time teacher there, for guidance as to 12 A. Yeah. I assumed that she was very eacer and
13 rules and regulations, is the Conestoga Valley 13 excited to student teach, student

14 School District Professional Handbook your 24 teachers are. And she expr= her desire f-
15 primary source, would you say, for guidance? 15 “ust get in there and get .. fron: »f students
16 A, Yes. 16 and, youa know, have fun ani ¢

17 Q. Tell me about when you first met Stacy 17 Q. Describe to me sort of generally your role

e Snyder. 18 as the supervising teacher vis-a-vis the student
19 A, My first meeting would hazve been, I think, 19 teacher during the semester.
e ir early January, probably afrer the holiday. 20 A. My role is tec act as a3 oeen, 4 quids

Tt would pe a couple weeks pefore she was 21 scmebody to help her figure il maybe the Fest
assigned for her placement, probably while she 2z teaching practices, not nec-ssarily —--

23 was on preak from Millersville Urniversity, 23 Millersville should have d¢:e its job up ~¢ that
24 between sessions. And she came to the high 24 pcint as far as ccntent is - oucerncd, buft there
25 schecl, and I a2 tour of the bullding 25 might have been some content rea_rements tnat T

7 (Pages 22 to 25)
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Page 26'E Page 28

1 needed <o kirng of fill ir scme gaps fcr her or 1 Shakespeare, Chaucer. Thus- ure richt in “ine

z suggest that she rneedesc ¢ fl111 in fthe caps 2 with what we would have been 'eaching, bur

3 nerself. BZut my ol her become a 3 expressed some concern tha' she was going <o

4 facilizater of & Zn front of students. 4 have to do some work to ge: r¢ ts teain it

G Q. And did you at times find that her content 5 but that sne, youa know, hat ¢t 1 the corsework
€ knowledge was lacking? & and she thought that this woi. 1 pe a2 new

7 A. Yes. 7 cnzllenge for her.

g Q. Please describe. 8 Q. On the page that you're looking at in CV-1,

G A. It was --- well, as indicatead by this 9 on the third page, it says --- somebody wrote in
10 background of student ching information, I i0 handwriting, no Brit lit, question mark. Is

11 would nave looked at this and I would have 11 that your handwriting?

12 looked to see what c¢ourses that sne toox, and T 12 A, Yes, 1t 1is.

13 would nave had the advantage, naving been a 13 Q. And when did you write that?

14 Millersville student mys £ znd krnowing what 14 A. Prior to meeting Stacy, wh it 1T would have

15 would have been taught 1n tnese various ccurses. 15 received this document.

16 Se I ~hink that's why ycou probably see some 16 Q. And what does that reflect?

17 sTars --- 17 A. That would have been inaica! ing to me Tnat T
8 Q. Yes. 1€ wanted to ask her or have . di=scussion with her
25 A. --- next tc some of the coourses because I 15 about, you know, what was nor -upsrvience wilh

20 knew that they would apply specifically to what 22 British literature up to thaw vui=T. T woaldn's
21 we were teacning, 1n addition to cther courses o have been familiar with her unicr block

22 that were listed here. And T had o2 placerment pricr te student tenning, so I'+4 Tike
Z3 “here was not i speciric course in Brit_sh 23 to «wnow what kind of courses gne nad taugh: or
24 literature at that peinT. 2o I spent the --- 1 24 what kind cf backgrcund ku :wledze she haa as far
25 spent my <ime with Stacy 25 as Britishk literature or kngl:ah literature

Page 27 Page 29

1 her lack of content overzll, just general 1 gces.

z content as far as punctuation, gramnar, z Q. And did you and she discuss the courses that

3 mechanics, spelling, vacabulary, Just know_edge 3 she had taken or the courses that she hadn't

4 cf wcrds, base knowledas of -.:.st Encliosh 4 taken to prepare her for student teaching?

s literature, poetry, Thaucer. 5 A. Yes.

& Q. The course that she was student teaching was 1 Q. And what was that? What was the discussion?

7 called British Literature? 7 A. It pretty much pertaine: . "he courses “ha

3 A. Technically on the couarse boshks, I'm sure P were listed here. And as a Fill.ersville alumni,
9 i-'s called Traditicna. EZngl.sh IV, Zut the 9 I probably would have, you -nuw, wondered who

) course 1s British Literature. 10 she had for the different

11 Q. And does that mean you’'d focus exclusively 11 thought of them and just
12 on the literature of England as opposed to --—- I 12 conversaticn, I'm sure.

13 mean, you'd focus on, you know, literature from 13 Q. she had Shakespeare, a course ---
14 Wales or Scotland and England as opposed to, you 14 A. Yes.
15 know, 3just English literature? 15 Q. --- in Shakespeare? And is that, I guess

16 A. Correct., 16 star next to the word Shakespeare?
17 Q. How was she on knowledge of English 17 A. Yes.

literature? 18 Q. Did you write that?

15 A. Fairly --- I think sne admitted tb Lnat 19 A. I belileve so.
22 would be, obviously, a cnallenge for her because 20 Q. And there's a star next to Chaucer?
she hadn't necessarily studis --- taken a o1 A. Yes,.
course specifically that, not thabt there 27 Q. Did you write that?
necessarily are ccourses aft Millersville that are 23 A. Yes.
24 just called 3ri-ish Literature. And she shou .a 24 Q. And there's alsoc a star next to advanced
25 have gotten a lot of the history as far as 25 composition?

8 (Pages 26 to 29)

SARGENT'S COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.
814-536-8908




Page 30

Correct.

o

And why did you star those courses?

A. Becailse 1 knew that they would te some of

the opening units rnat we wouald --- because ir's
4 survey course, we Worx our way carcnologically
~hrough British history and Eritish liferarture.
Q. Would you start with Beowulf?

A. We start with --- yeah, with Anglo

dAXOI
literature, tTypically. PBut | pelleve that when

racy studen=t tauch:i, we atTempred to begin witn

2

sometning that she felr a lirtle bit more
comfortable witn, which she had an entire course

on pochry. we opened with a survey of

British poe: 2. And 1

v throughcur che ¢

tnink --- T'm preily sure

rnight have opened
with Beowu!f, bur her first actaal unit would
have been teaching poetry becaise it was a
strengtn oI ners.

Q. Are you saying that you accommodated the
teaching schedule of your students to Stacy's,
in this case, strength?

A, Completely zand throughout the placement.

Q. If you could describe that a little more,
please, how you accommodated your class to her

needs.

.

A. Sure. wWell, as I said, wc would nave
started with poetry, maybe wcrked a I1.ittle bit
out of corder, cut of seacLence, from what we

would usually do. But thart wouldn't -

e, you

know, affected anytning. 1 starred advanced

composition because that was the third course.

There were twc British Literarure courses

and then an advanced composition course that she

worid have become responsible for i assuming

ve been

the full teaching icad, which wculd ?
the first nine weexs of fthe

quick_.y w

[si)

realized --

weaknesses, exprossed

content 1s concerned in grammar, mechanics

organization, punctuat a.l writing

conventlions basica-.ly, and i that she would
be --- she would be worxing witn stadents who
were --- who cou.a far outpacs har as far as

advanced compoesitian goes.

I worked with my superw
-- actually T just asked her 1I this wcild be
ckay. It's my first time teaching advancea
composlition. I'm familiar with what's expected

“o be taught durirg th

nine weeks. However,

I don't think tkhat Sta will oe able Lc teach

Page 32

one of those units success:i.. y.
we allowed Stacy to come u] wifl her own
unit that she could teach -+ i mirrored ore of

her ccurses at Millersville, « Znift that shc ---

the seminar in teaching wr.riLg, ~hat she would
have worked through as a s-uasenr herself so she
could use some of the same .o.ouments and apply
some of the same methoas at i i8¢ fhat te work
with these advanced compos!~i:n s'udents. 5
they actually completed a .n:l *ha” wasn't part
of what was technically in ‘i curriculur g

advanced composition,

Q. And advanced composition is a writing
coursea?

A. Yes.

Q. There's no --- you're not focusing on the
content of poetry or ---

A, Not at all.

Q. --- stories? And how was she in

composition?

A. In terms of teaching cr
composition?

Q. Well, first in terms of her own composition?
A. There were glaring errors,

Q. Such as?

Page 314

Page 33

A. Just irn her writing on *-e there

would be mistakes in punctus~lor. and spel._rg,

and the students would no7. ~ tnese errcrs and

pcint them cut to her. So #he didn'v actuaally

ever know that they were err-.vs. Or I woild

polnt the errors ocut o he wasn't
fariliar witnh them. I her w-7ralls, in her
written ccmnunication, they whuid be riddled
with errors. In her handc

there would be mistakes.
Q. Mistakes such asg?

A. Spelling, usage, misus?

words, clearly rot

being familiar with what --- 122 meaning
word's definition.
Q. You said the students would point these
errors out to her?
A. (Irncicates ves).

That's a yes?

Q

A. Yes.
Q. How would they do that?
n

They would Jjust call ou* probibly or mayrce

raise their hand and say, i~ . realize that,

you know, that you're --- 5 no apostrophe
there, or that that's missv.) «¢d, or tha- ~ha.'s

the wreng werd, cr et ceters.
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Q. And how would she react?

A, She weuld --- well, T don't know. 3he

wWoLLG —--.

Q. What did you see?

A. Sometimes she would defend the error and try
--- because I guess, I'm making an assumption
but maybe she didn't want to lese standing in
front of the class, so sne would actually vry Lo
argue the error. And then soretimes 1 would

have to step in and explain to her that the

students were right and that she was

wrong, or sometimes I aculd walt and “ust

explalin i1t To her afrer class.

could catch her before the students even noticed

the mistakes ir the hando or written on the

board so To aveold Lhalt embarrassment.

Q. These are l2th-grade students?

A. Correct.

Q. Are they college prep?

A. The one vlass would have been a tradilticnal
course, which is college preparatory, college

bourd. Ard the cther course is rJa.led

technical, but That techrizal rrack could be
college bound. Zt could be technical, like

vocational school, you know, that type of

Page 35

college bound.

Q. These are pretty bright kids for --- pretty
bright 17 and 18-year-olds, it sounds like.

A, Bright, some of them, certainly. «Jertainly
average at least.

Q. Okay. All right. When you looked at the
courses she had had and spoke with her about her
education, were there specific areas, content
areas, that she was definitely lacking in,
something more precise than no British

literature?

7,

she wou_a have

peen weak as far as ‘ust

concerned, what they mean.

Q. Define literary devices.

A. Like aliiferation within a pcem. She would

have --- I'm neot sure that that's necessarily
one that she had a problem with, but she would

nave, you Know, not booen quite sure how o

students where al.lleration
occurs in the line of a poem or what it actazlly

means or to be able to provide examples to

clarify for the stugerts when

confused. But not nevessari alliteration,

I said.

Page 36
Q. I seem to recall there was an issue with
metaphors on one of the pages you wrote?

A, Mcst likely. If I note: !, ap

slutely.

Q. All right. Any other content areas that,
from the get go, you noticed she was weak in?
A. Well, I hate to keep harv.wnu < the wriring

and grammar usage, mechani.: oLt that'™s such oa

large part of being an Enc.ish “eacher and

trying tc help students imp:owve —neir wri-ing.

T remember asking her zo me for helip. (o

g iike, if v about to

XNow, suggest!
something or if you don't indorarand something,
1 feel very comfortable wi'=n -hls content area

and I serve --- You KNDOwW, . ‘“elis ple in my

department, actually.

You know, I tried to make it  <ar o ner

that sometimes we can't k

just go to somebody who's .« ii-tle bit mcr2 of

an expert and you woulad as« trter for adv.zz, and
tnat's my reole as her cooperat iny feacher. And
she never asked me for helr, =. I -hought that

was strange.

And then I even went as far a= ::¢ give her 4

grammar and composition ter- bk that we

wouldn't have used with the students in my

Page 37
courses, but that cther tes hers might have used
sher's veraicn

in the past ana gave her tu: =

of it, so It would have the iiswers, and just

suggested that she worx thi unar srme of these

exercises and units to bul . her asxills.
Q. Did she, as far as you know?

A. As far as I know, no.

Q. Did you offer her, other than that, any
other books to read on content, for example,
19th century poetry, literature, whatever,
whatever you guys teach?

A. Her textbook would have been suftficient

to be abie to teach. It nas 1.. -he answers in

it. It has suggestions. Fe 4 the teacher’s
version of the textbook. =t Certainly she knew
--- and I can't quite remestcr, bt she miqgnr
have porrowed from my libriry <l “ooks aboat Lhe

story of Britain or, you ki, inst history

texts or further texts con wri'e

Q. Okay. Let's talk about any other meetings
you had with her, conversations, before school
actually started. You mentioned one. That was
your first, you know, meet-and-greet, as it
were.

A, Uh-huh (yes).
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1 Q. Any other interactions with her before N A. But for her firs: coug tays, weeks
2 school started? 2 just --- the purpose is tc ner in.
3 A. Face to face, not that 1 can recvall. And 3 Q. And so how do you ease her in?
4 not that anything is standing out tc me, because 4 A. I think the focus a lot f iimes for thn
5 it was twe years ago, but 1'm sure we would have 5 student teachers, and I th.=< i was Stacy as
5 “alked on the phore, prokapiy. Put [ den't --- € well, 1s to complete scme - "ne Millerav.._ le
7 vou kncw, a+t least one phore call Tust o --- 7 requirements, where you wonlil achserve scme
& otviously, te set up ~he meeting in person. 8 students, shadow some studeit i, <thserve gome
G Cther than that, T think we probably toochk care 3 teachers, kind of get f : owlh the sohool
e what we needed to aft that meeting, and tnat 10 day, observe me a couple , 4ni then
11 wculd be on the first day. 11 graduzlly you begin te <Zak- owar the classs
1z Q. So the first day for her would have --- when 12 Q. Was the number of courses that you would
13 does --- you know, does school start right after 13 teach in spring 2006 the same number of course
14 the new year? 4 that, say, you're teaching now, the number of
15 &, For me, yes, it wou.d have begun on January 15 classes? I mean, how do you refer to that?
e ’nd at Conestcga ¥alley. Millersville, sne ;16 A. Yeah. W®We're in a block schadite, ---
17 would have begun witn the spring semester. i 17 Q. Okay.
18 However, the first, 1 Lhink, twc or three cays ; 18 A. --- 50 each semester a '« ner would “each
19 of their semester there in student Zeaching --- 19 four --- there are four bloo<= (a a day. A
20 I don't know what they wou.d call ~hem, where Z0 teacher would be assigned ! te30on three blocks.
all the studert teachers cemc together and talx 21 Q. Okay.
2z about topics that are relevart and pertinent 22 A. And that 1s the sama.
23 and --- . 23 Q. Okay. And courses, blocks, refers only to
Z4 Q. Okay. 24 academic courses?
25 A, --- meet their superv.sors and address their 25 A, No, they're just a blouvr «f r.me that tlre
Page 39 Page 41
1 dia thaz for i students are in a class for o acmester.  miess
2 maybe <wo or t‘hree cays nefcre she rame to .2 it's a quarter-long class, "~avr hey'd only bha
3 Conestoga Valley. 3 in that class for nine week:.
4 Q. And do you recall what date she first came 4 Q. And the rest of the day, where are they?
5 to Conestoga Valley to teach? S A. Well, the teacher --- th stugerts have four
€ A. No. PBut I can guess that it would have been 6 classes. Teachers are only as d three
i tne 17th, 18th, 1%th, D0th, sorewnsre in that 7 classes, because there's a4 1 _~2uing period.
8 range. 8 Q. Right.
9 Q. Of January? Y A. 2o they would move throuut a tcur-period
10 A, CL{ January. 10 day, where they'd see four ~ilfrrence tea~hcrs
11 Q. All right. What were your expectations of 11 that's four different 4, and there'd bte a
12 her on her first day at Conestoga Valley? iz lunch period in there as we.l.
13 A. Minimal. Just for her to --- | can'tn 13 Q. Okay. So if each class is 80, 90 minutes
14 rememrber if she actually came in on --- we had a 14 long, you got four of those as a student, that's
13 changeover day boecause o semestaer breaks righz 15 320 minutes, approximately four hours. So they
) around that time. Sc I aon't --- I think maybke 16 have a lunch period and then gym, band, whatever
17 her first day could have even been our 17 other activities?
18 changeover day, which is an inservice day bu- 18 A. Cutside the schocl day?
19 sort of an independent 19 Q. Well, I'm just talking about within the
25 prepared for thelr new Z0 school day.
21 which weoula a very day for her to A. They wculd pe held primarily within the

start because there would have been no classes school day, within a block. Touoknow, it yun

23 held and it wculd have been an c¢ppertunity to have a phys ed class, it win_3 ke within ore of

just get set up for the new semestor. the blocks. There Is gn env . hrent pericd at

Q. All right. 25 the end cf the day that is --- back then I think
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it would have beer ar hour long. How it's 30

minutes .

g, where students, .ike, go back

through their day arnd tave

remediation with +their teachers, —<alk

remediaticn or lastructicrn Lo prepare for the
state tests.

Q. So Stacy arrived physically in your
classroom January 18th, 19th, around there?

A, Correct.

Q. And you said then for a few weeks, two
weeks, she shadowed, she observed, engaged in
more passive activities?

Yes.

5

Q. So she would sit and observe you how
frequently during this period of time?
A. How Zfreguently? All day, 1s that what ycu
mean?

Q. Yes. Yes. I mean, ---.

A, ALl davy.

Q. Okay.

A. And zhen she wou_d “ust kind of gradually
wOrk up to teaching, maybe a small unit within a
block, you know, maybe not the entire blocx

and

v

then maybe taxe over one klock, and then take

over a second block and then a thirc block.

&

e

Page 44
colleagues who wouldn't le!, vou krew, a student
~eacher teach for the firsr t.ir weeks trnat Lhmy
were there, you know. They wanted 0 ma<e sure

a while., Ard

that that student teacher wat-

some teachers have a hard - .re giving over the

classroons or --- I mean, ere's o all kind of

variables.

Millersville doesn't set ferth any definite
policies about how and when that needs to take
place. I belleve the only r—yuirvement is 'ni’

ultimately, the student te.-rsr ieeds to work

her way or his way up te f-achivs, I thinw 1t's
twe full weeks or three f. wiohs of a course
lecad. I'm not positive.

Q. Okay. And that goal of two to three weeks

of a full course load, meaning a student teacher
is ultimately supposed to be able to teach three

blocks?

A. Correct, =0 run the full
teacher's day ---
Q. Okay.

A. --- for at least

That's the goal?

Right. And mest

well and above that.

Page 43
Q. When you say she would teach a small unit

within a block, a block is 90 blocks long, ---

E. Sure.
Q. --- does that mean she would teach for 15

minutes out of the 90 minutes?

A. Correct.

Q. And so if you're studying Beowulf in a given
block --- a given block might have Beowulf. It

also might have a section on composition, ---

Q. --- a section on --- what else might be

there?

A. It could nave a review. [nere ¢culd be a
game . There could be z ftesft, a quiz. A writing

sample might be taken, a lecture, a discussion.
Q. So the intent was to start her off slowly;
right?

A. Correct.

Q. Had someone given you the instructions on

how to break in a student teacher?

A. There's no fcrmal guideline for exactly how

it has to happer for each cucperating teacherx
and for each student teacher. You ---
every student fteacher is different. Every

sooperat.ng teachter s difter

o

o

[

w

Page 45

Q. During these initial several weeks, did you
and Stacy talk about what she was seeing, what
she was learning, what she was thinking?

A. Yes.

Q. And describe that, please. Describe your
interactions before she actually began to teach.

A. She was inquisitive, was

srably eager To

teach, as most student tea. h=rs are. Arc
probably we would have jus® --- cf our
dialogue would have been t-lking about what ner
actual first unit would have wee, and whel. she
would have begun and whern <t weild have
started, and what she was =< ing when sho was

out shadowing anc cbserving :ther students, and
what she noticed about the svtuacents' in our

ass strengths and weakne

just

everytning that is part of =,n3 a teachear

that class period.
Q. Okay. What's the purpose of having the

student teacher shadow students?

A. They're expected tc fol. .» --- 1 think *hey
--- I'm nct sure what Mill raville's requirersant
is, but you're supposed to pio4 o4 student, ind
potentially it might even b a student who's

struggling or lacxs motiva':

1, oand you're
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Page 46 Page 48

1 supposed to see how that student operates in o1 bring, that I was working with 2 --- 1 can'v
i focur differernt pericods, with four aifferent z remember. She's about Ty 1 think snhe
3 teachers and teaching styles, and be ac to ; 3 might have been 25 or 6 a° tie time cf x
4 make some zind of rment s and observations g student =eaching placement, s: king witn
S aoout that student from that perspoctive. ‘ 5 somebody who would have pesr 4 rore mature
[ Q. So the student teacher basically shadows, i6 student teacher and also & uen “wo children.
7 sticks with the student for the student's day? ‘ 7 So remember saying this is o..ng o be —---
33 A. Yes. B this is going to be goca. tets probably going
9 Q. And for how many days? 9 to bring scme of her mom C.asiarnok management
10 Z. 1 think just one. but De --- 10 irto her teaching practices, ana hopefully we'il
The requiremernt might pe bto shadow two different © 11 be able to avoid a lot She pltfalls than sone
students for one day eazh. : 12 student teachers enccunter.
12 Q. And did Stacy shadow one or more students ; 3 Q. And what kinds of pitfalls are you referring
14 during these first couple weeks? 14 to?
s A. Yes. 15 A, That sometimes that ther~'s a lack of
16 Q. Do you remember how many she shadowed? 16 professionalism cr observiu: | sundaries ovetwecn
17 A. I thinx --- not exactly. Tt was 17 students and teachers. An: .!'s = Jjust
18 or two for sure. 18 student teachers. Obvicus.y, 30 teachers bave
8 Q. And did she have any comments that she 19 those problems. What cther
20 shared with you about that experience? 20 struggling keeping up, wor-<ira o' her Sobs in
A. I'm sure, rot forrally in a --- in 21 additior to student teaching, having sports
a written format, bur I helieve she wou.d have cocrmitments back at the un.versity.
23 turned that intc her supe I'm™ surc there 23 Q. So after these first few weeks are over,
24 WAS SO0Me wWrittenl required then what happened with her student teaching?
25 Q. Did you discuss her experience? What did you do?
Page 47
1 A. LCefinitely. 1 A. She gradually begins tc vio< ap the
2 Q. And describe that --- those interactions. 2 Rut I don't think 1'11 be aclv ¢ <ite exacti
3 A, Sre would rave had ccmments and —hings to 3 specifically --- I know tha: w would have begun
4 tell ma tha< I wouldn't have been able to see ;o4 her with the traditicnal wnich is - he
5 about that student. And I would S college-bound course, be --- Jus
6 taken sorething from it or learned € typically it tends to be er ~lass fu p.ock
7 frem 1Y or peer aple e we' 7 up because of classrocm rmat ajemert .  And that's
g that student --- that's 8 a general statement. It's n.! always the
9 so well in nig wood teun El But we would have begun he: «i-h
10 [ele} 10 then gradually brought ir 't Teonnical <lass
11 fits that student's lesrning style as opposed tc L1111 when she became comfortabis with .~lassrour
12 sitting in an Fnglish class cr --- w _a have 12 management practices or the And then
13 talked about learnirg styles, medalities, —--- : 13 we save that advanced comp -tnrse for las-,
| Q. During --- 14 Q. Why?
15 A. --- from teachers. L5 A. Because that was the cone rhat . was nct sure
16 Q. --- these initial few weeks, were any new 16 that my supervisor was act ALlOow
17 concerns about her competence to teach raised in P17 Ner to pick up as a studen! te:
18 your head? le had ooserved up to that pciis
19 A, No. Besides the content, wnow, thoe 19 content. as far as advanced conposition wonld
ol initial cbservaticns abcut a la of Ten=T, I 20 have been concerned. But wiire able to work
21 den't think I would have had any concerns. 1 21 out, as I saild earlier, sons of proiect —o
jebed actua.ly rememper remarki tooa 22 allow her to fulfill that requircrent.
23 two that I was hoping to avoid any of the 23 But 1 also knew tha“ in the n
24 proniens that student teachers whe are overn more 24 while Stacy would have sti.: a studer
25 --- 21, 22-year-clds, sometimes that they might teacner there, I was goin¢c '~ ke giving o
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course. And that That would nave boen scmenn!ag 1 220 and then page 253.
that she could - fuifiitled ner ful. load, her P A. Just te 220, not 2227
fuull teaching load requirement. for Millersville. { 3 Q. I'm sorry, yes, 222.
She could have =aught from “he spee 4 A. And then £532
Q. So in other words, you would be teaching a 2 5 Q. Yes.
course in public speaking? : € A. Ckay.
AL Correct. 7 Q. Are those --- are these your notes that you

@

Q. You said that initially her first class was took during the semester that Stacy was student

college prep and that that was an easier class 3 teaching?

to manage. 10 A. Yes. Some --- I mean, "u7y're net --- ib's
M. Yes. 11 not comprehensive, but yes

Q. Explain that. 12 Q. Are there more notes that you toock that

A. Because the students 7Jus< tend o not have 13 aren't here?

scme of the same discipline prcblems or 14 A. I wou.a have taken mores notes for sure, baf
a~tendance preblems. see a lot of £15 “he probiem was that --- you ¥icw, that i1nis was
absenteecism in <hs chnical olasses. But it's L 16 brought up a year after th stident teaching

50 general., It's such a general statement. 17 placement. I had switchea ._assrooms at Least
It's nol. really necessarily always true. 18 twice at that point, so this wis probably a.i
Q. Okay. And so how did you ease her into 13 that T could find at that [o.nt. There would
teaching? 20 have peen, obviously, wore oo .menrtation., I'his
A. Just by setiing up her for success by bt is probably all we could f.: i --- or I cuula
letting her start with poetry and letting her 22 find.

wn

hove that traditional course, 23 Q. Well, look at the very first page dated
Teach something that 24 1/30/06.
with, and work o Lt 25 E. Yes.
Page 51 Page 53
giving her some exarples of tnings that 1 might 1 Q. Does this --- was this the first time that
have taught, how I would nave done if, Z Stacy actually attempted to teach in your class?
3 with her what would be rhe best way ~c approach i3 And please read the document to refresh your
the cortent. 4 recollection.

Q. And how frequently would you speak with her 5 A. I believe so. I beliew this was

about her student teaching? 6 time. But iike I said, thors coold
A. Every day, all day, you xncw, irn Detween ; 7 --- there potentially zou i ¢
classes. We wCLlG be censTantly dialoguing. 8 or a day previous to this whore maybe ste had
Whenever I wasn't teaching, obviocusliy. 9 just, you know, come up ir. front of the lass
Q. Okay. Did you make notes that --- of your 10 for 10 or 15 minutes and ~ayle tonducted a game
observations of her student teaching? E 11 Or a review game or sometihing :ite that. L'~
A. Yes. 12 not sure. But I do r v tha* this was the
Q. And I'm going to --- you have in front of 13 cpening day of her poetry it s
you what's going to be the next document --- 14 me 17 would be her first
skip that. That's it. Are those your notes? 13 Q. Okay. I just need to know this. What is
A, Yes. E 16 DOLA, D-O-L-A?
Q. All right. Would you please loock through P17 A. Sure. 1t's Dailly Oral L..a or Lanrizqge
those pages and let me ---? 18 Arts.

ATTORNEY KRAMER: 16 Q. Okay.

And let's mark this as (¢ z0 ATTORNEY KRAMER:

(Cv Exhibit Twe marked for 21 Off the record.

identification.; ; 22 OFF RECORD DISCUSSION

BY ATTORNEY KRAMER: 23 BY ATTORNEY KRAMER:

Q. If you would look through that packet, it 24 Q. The time goes from 9:24 to 10:06. What does

starts --- and they're numbered CV5D2006, from that mean in terms of Stacy's student teaching?
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Page 56

A, That that would have bkee: the beginning of 1 the students knew that th Wag actually an
~he activity, and that would have --- T was 2 error.
probeably just trying —o keep track of her pa 3 Q. Okay.
sc I could see now long she was spending on 4 A. I'm not sure if there osther references
scrmething.  And that way, 1I there wis too muach 5 ©o problems specifically noree: o nhis dooment,
time spent cn someth:ng that really only should <] Q. At 9:52 it says, overhead, refrain is
have taken two minutes, then courd have i circled. should be end-stopped.
addressed that. But that was Just a taaotic that 3 A. I'm sorry. I missed that.
I had kbeen using lor a while. I don't ¢ ~ha® 9 Q. What's that refer to?
I recessarily always kept tha-. 10 A. I believe she might have called something 4
Q. If you could please review this page. And I 11 refrain and that she didn'- iriicate that
have a couple questions about it. 12 sorething was end-steppeda -t =i jammed ot -ha'
WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT i3 point. I'm not exactly sure, bt coviously I
A. CQkav. 14 noted that.
BY ATTCRNEY KRAM 15 Q. What does that mean in non-English teacher
Q. Obviously, you're writing for yourseif and .18 speak?
for Stacy, so© an outsider doesn't necessarily 17 A, That there was a poem c¢r . example that 3ne
understand --- 18 rad placed up on an overhead and maybe sie
A, Sure. 19 called somethning a refrair ar.a used the wr
Q. --- what's --- you know, exactly what you're 20 term to discuss that with v stnadents, ore of
saying. But what I'd like you to do is go 21 the vocabulary terms that * would have neocded
through here and tell me which of these comments 22 te know. And I was noting “hat it needed
refer to concerns about her teaching that you z3 to be end-stopped, but tha- =tc probably was
raised? 24 okay on discussing what an ond-jammed line
A. 8¢ only concerns is what you're ---7 -5 looked 1like 1n poetry.

Page 55 Page 57
Q. Or something that you thought was especially 1 Q. The last two comments refer to various
good. I just don’'t want this to go on --- 2 literary devices, alliteration, repetition,
A. Righz. 3 metaphor, et cetera. It just has those words.
Q. --- forever, And certainly --- at 9:32 it 4 Does that ---7?
says, had to fix errors. I don't know if --- I 5 A. That means that she prolui red th
mean, does that have anything to do with Stacy & at that --- in that exampl: .. the overhead.
or ---=7 7 Q. So you're just observing what she was doing?
A. T wgald thinxz that that nete probably mearns 8 A. Sure.
—hat either I or students had zTc fix an errcr in 9 Q. Turn to the next page. Now, this is Block
ner discussing the correction of the sentence, 10 Three, whereas the first was Block Two. What
Otherwise, it wouldn't mixe sense. Eut vyes, 11 does that mean?
because in nmy further rcte there, 1<'s 1in DOLA - A. The Block Two class would nave deen eitner
Numkber Two, aeeds to be fized. Tt was probably 12 the traditional or technical . lass. I wan:
an error that she act: she 14 to --- that wculd have been the ‘erhnical alass
didn’'t poin<t el What they are 15 T think, because the studer~s who were absent
is just a serles of two sentences each day that 16 were Allegra and Max, and thora's a refererce to
have --- they're wi~h errcrs, ard The 7 a Frank. Sc I think that 1bhal was the tecanizal
stadents need o pe able to find those errors 18 class. And this Block Thr-- “_ass would nave

ard expiain why it 1s an errcr.
Q. Okay.
A. And she would have missed an errcr atr that

point, even tho

gh shke was using a teaching
guide that would hzave had the answers for her.

50 I knew thaz

I wantea ¢ nake surs

went back and fixed that the next day and that

[y

N
w

ro
=

keen the traditicnal class.

Q. And is there anything on at least the top
part of this page reflecting something other
than just a simple observation that you were
noting, neither criticism nor praise, as far as
I can see.

Q. No, because it was a repeat of the same

SARGENT 'S COURT REPORTING SERVICES,

15 (Pages 54 to 57)
INC.

814-536-8908




Page 58

lesson from the previous block. So I was
probably just noting that she went over the same
kinds of things.

Q. At the bottom you got two columns, glows and
grows. What does that mean?

A. That was a method that my supervisor had
used when T was a student teacher, and T thought

that was a very simple way of expla

student teacher that these are —hin

were glowing on and these are things rhat you

need to grow on. 30 it's kirnd of a nicer way of

sayling strengths and weaknesses probably.
Q. Who was your supervisor when you student
taught from Millersville?

k. Good.

Q. Who was it?

AL My o cr ny supervisor?

Q. Who was your super --- who was your coop ---
who was your supervisor at Millersville?

A, Mr. Bill Laurus (phonetic;.

Q. And briefly tell me, just glows and grows,
what are you saying here?

&. For glows, thaft she, ycu koow, was ab.e 2o

e in fron< of the claszroom

have a gooc pres

and appear knowledgeab:e. OShe used the

overhead, stereo, znd a -lip. 3¢ she used a

television also,

clip from The Graduate.
a variety of medla. She charged the activities
frequentiy, so I was ao.e to note that with the
time, and had some good exarples with The
Graduate and the Simcn & Garfunkel sona. The

grows, I guess ner overhead prcbably was

illegible, at Zeast at so Suggested

that she use a black for" or ~hat the black font

was smeared or smudged, 1'm not sure., But it

ended up not kbeing an effecrive --- 1t _csse:

the degree of its effectivencss bpecaust 1t was

illegiple. And chviousiy 1'm nceting that she
needs help with her ferms.
Q. Terms, meaning?

A. The end-jammed, end-stc alliterazion,

that she would have had there.

Q. Did she ever come to you for assistance in
that area?

A, Not as she --- irn my iicn, not as she

should have. Sho might have gsked me --- she

might have asked me tco ify atr tha7 moment.
T don't remember. 2ut I was constantly telling

ner to ask me Zor help when she felt iixe she

[SIEEN

o

-

@
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was in cver her head or if f:ere was a terr she
didrn't understand in advarce i actually
teaching the lesson sc I conidt help her.

Q. Was it your sense that she thought she was
pretty good at teaching or that she believed ---
she understood that she was in over her head?

A. T got tne impression from hor, especialiy

because she wasn’t asking r= ‘or nelp, but &lso

just based on her presenco, 'nz2*

based on her mid-evaluati

—hought that there were no vron.ems, you £0Ww,

that she was actually dcing v well ar i ~hat

there --- she didn't ncuicr 1ot of the - imes
when there were oroblems.

Q. Would you --- s0 this is from January 30th,
'06. Would you share this --- these notes with
Stacy?

A, Yes.

Q. When?

A. sSne would have seen the Jlows and grews. It
would have beer in --- thesw :re all jus®

informal documents.

Q. Sure
A. I'm not required to subm.t 3ny.hing.
Q. Right

Page 61

A. Rnd I would have used :'-..22 ‘¢ Jgo over

strengths and weaknesses wi'~ ne
wouldn't have received a -« of
think.

Q. So in other words, these were your reference
notes. And then at some point ---7?

A. So we could have a dis 1: o

Q. And did you discuss these points?

A, Definitely.

Q. Let's go on to the next, which is CVSD
Number 208. This is from February lst, '06.
You wrote this?

A, Yes.

Q. And this is Block Two, which is the tech
class?

A. Yes.

Q. Tell me about this page.

A. That informaticrn up at tre top of the pacge

might have beern an agenda :s

was going ko be cccurring firing that

pericd, or I might have J.si

discussed during that cla And taen 1

have some glows and grows
class, specifically.

Q. Okay.
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Page 62 Page 04
1 A. And then there's ncteas on the Third Rlock 1 discussed results of word splash, but we didn't
z course. 2 discuss --- you quickly mentioned this, the.
2 Q. At the bottom? 3 What was that?
4 R. At the bottom, sh-hun {yes' . 4 A. And I prcobably didn't <in my note there,
= Q. All right. A given lesson plan that she 5 Q. What does this mean, if you remember?
& would teach on a given day, what input did you : 3 A. Results of word splash. vellieve she
7 have into what substantively she would teach? 7 created ar activity called -« wura splash where
8 2, 1 would have tcld her exactly w g ~he page is splashed with =" i3 ~“hat deal i
3 what content she should be teaching that day. 9 that unit. Sc poetry -—erms, probably, Zn ~he
10 Q. And you would do that when? 19 poetry unit, and that they nocded --- 1 have to
11 E. Well, this was tha. pcetry unit, 30 we would il lock at my page. 1'm not =aive. HMaybe needed to
1z have discussed that weeks in advance of ner 12 define the terms or find ttem or some xina of
13 teaching ift, so sne would have been very 13 activity. But we didn't dis-.ss —-- discussed
14 prepared knowing what she needed t¢ teach. Arnd 14 results of word splash, whes' we J1dn't diz mss.
15 S t¢ ostbmit lesson i5 she qguickly mentioned the --- 't really
lE plans ¢ me at _eas:t in advance, according 16 rememper exactly what that': ::fereacing.
7 to Millersvilie's poli kut. many times that 17 Q. On the rest of this page, any other phrase
18 didn't happen. 18 or criticism that these notes will call to your
1% Q. And would you say something to her when she 19 mind?
jaye} failed to give a lesson plan in advance? Z0 4. Students were still starl:n: --- well, tney
Z1 A. Yes. 21 were starting to show up wi:th.:. the materia:s
pved Q. And what would she say? 22 ~hat they needed to be prepa: fur class and
Z3 A, 1 guess invariably there'd be some kind of 23 that they were starting to o 1row bocks. 8o C
24 explanaticn or excise 24 was probably rncting that we= need o make 1%
2 that prepared a day in advan ~hat she was 5 clear that the students ar= -
Page 63
1 working on 1t the night befare or that worning. 1 class prepared with their -«
2 Q. On the glows it refers to students ] notebooks, et cetera. T owes ro
3 sleeping, but she addressed it pretty well. Are 3 questicring her interpretati<: or her dis.oussicon
4 there issues at this point of her classroom ; 4 about Christopher Marlowe' sarioand the
5 management? 5 reference to be my love. re st nave nayoe
& A. Yes., Yeah. I'm trying to indicate to her 6 said something about having sex. And T didn't
7 that --- T'm probably s= 7 understand her interpretat: o »t iz, so T wanred
3 with kid gloves at this poin<, trying to maxe S tc make sure that I talked t: ror about 1t
9 sure that I stil! present most things in wind of 9 because I think maybe she wu misinterpreting
10 a positive light and suggest any time that she's 10 the lines or --- I wan-ed - s-c where she was
11 doing something well, but ther alsc say, we Il going with that.
12 you know, fthat's gcod that you addressed it, but 12 Q. And did you have that conversation with her?
13 that's not going to change “hs kehavior. We 13 A, I'm sure.
14 probably need tc have some xind of firmer 14 Q. And do you remember the conversation?
15 expectazicn that in thkis class yeu're nct geing 15 A. Not especially.
LE to sleep and that vou have hi 16 Q. So it appears here in Block Three she taught
17 ycur students. : 17 from 10:53 in the morning until 11:31.
i8 Q. And does error in DOLA, missed, --- 18 A, Yes. And there's a lun - Yes
i3 A. Apostrophe 5. 19 That's right. That's probau.y onefore lunch.
-0 Q. --- I guess, apostrophe § ---? 29 Q. Turn to the next page, please. This is
21 A. In zeacher's name. agaln, she missed an 21 CVSD-209, February 2nd, 2006. Again, if you
22 error when she had the s guide in front Z2 could just go through this, review it quickly,
23 cf her. Sc I needed te make surs that she 23 and let me know if anything pops out as being
24 addre d that error. z4 critical or praiseworthy.
25 Q. Block three on the same page, it says, 25 E. Well, the ovening ncte ' the 'op, chesking
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Page 66% Page 68

1 into eerning honcrs for Frank Zave.! 1 s0 you are able to field t-eiy questicns. T'm
l {phonetic), that's a ncte to myself, Ir her e rern irg her again that o 1 D Come rome
3 DOLAR scntznce, where she wou.d have it written ; 3 ard talk to me about these =rrors so that |

4 it on the hoard or on the overhead or, yol xnow, 4 help you, so that you can s

5 somehow sne conveyed 1t to the stadents, sne d ;5 kinds of questions that th-

3 a spelling error. She didn't spell renowned : 6 tc ask you.

7 correctly.  And I must e Taagnt the i ? 7 Q. Okay.

8 review. Los 4. But she never took --- nover really --- and
9 she had ancthor spe.ling 9 I hate to say never, there -cuid nave benn ore
10 Fandout cr, agair, ¢n the 13 ~ime, but she really never 'nck advantage of ny

11 writing ifampic tentrame- irstead of i 11 help.
1z tetrameter. While she was discussing the 2 Q. Okay. And was she having a hard time
13 Marlowe and Raleigh poems, trere would nave besn 13 fielding the students' questions?
14 tnree sleeping students that she did not address 14 A. Oh, yeah. 35he couldn't . their
15 that with them. a note for me that I 15 questions, £ they asked «ny'hirg that wou.a be
16 need to talk ts her, explain @¢ her, thal the le a little kit mere sophisticat«<d, or could you
17 expectaticn I my classrcom is that there's not f 17 provide an example, or why the apos-ragh:
18 going to ke studenzs s : 13 need toc go there, or why d. rmma necd To go
19 should also be her high expectatioen. ig there c¢r something, she wo.i'@."* have becn
I'm making a note that probably in a 20 familiar enough with tne r..e¢ w0 ke able to
21 discussion with ner she has indi that P2l answer the guestion.
spellirg is a weakness of rers. Kids must have © 20 Q. And how did she react in those cases?
23 been havirg a lct of questions, and whatever 23 A. I don't want to say always, bif tChere wor
method she was using at that / 4 fair amount of times where, nut
worxing for the students, su I was probably I5 just on DOLA, but on conteul 1n
Page 67
I writing down a solurion for Students i1 would have --- there were . ~cuple Limes whzre
2 presented. Tnat's just what 2 she just kind cf made up an answ or just kind
3 happered. 3 of guessed and would have . incorrestly
4 Block Three, some suggesti apout g thereby giving the studenft:s a4 false answer ard
5 classroom management cr how to facilitate a 5 confusing them more.
6 discuassion about DCLA. It was prokably just rhe [ Q. Okay. At the bottom left it says --- it
7 same student eacn day answering juestions, and I says should I help. And I'm not sure what that
8 she wasn’t actually asse see whother or 2 refers to.
9 nct anybody else in the ciassroom was learning. 9 Z. She must have been havi:a Yo
Q. It says on the left, something good joking ‘10 know, again, answering gues- .
11 rapport with kids. The kids like her. 11 something --- it lccks lik T
12 A, Yes. 12 off here, so [ can't quite t=!1 what my roves
13 Q. What was your cbservation? 13 are, but I was offering my re'p z
14 A. So at that point, she was probkably --- she : 14 help you get through this? CTon
15 had a nice presence in front ot rhe classrocon, 15 present this material or this infcermation to the
16 ~hat she was tzving ¢ 3 of panter with the ) students?
17 kids a little pil. cr scmethir and I 17 Q. Next page, CVSD-210. 1Is this the same day?
18 was ma-xing note of tnat. 18 A. No, it would have been . different das .
14 Q. Okay. 19 Q. Okay.
20 A. Much better jck. She did a better job 20 A. Yeah.
Z1 explaining, probably, the second time around 21 Q. Because I don't see a date at the top of
22 because I would have tal r bevw this page.
23 Two and Block Three, T think, 23 A. This might have been thw- ~<veral: --- this is
24 Q. Right. 24 the overall glows and grows o this day. I
25 A. We still nead To talk about sach aay’s DOLA 25 can tell because of the rer=re to Gray.
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Page 70 Page 72
1 Q. Okay. z A. Well, because sitting ook as an observer, C
2 A. So this is probabkly mors what T would - could probably tell tha+ w!. ' -ne studen‘s
3 have shcwed her. She mizht Lomy 3 sleeping, with the student:s It tas< and 2o
4q little notes because they're more Ior me than 4 paying attertion cr even s annts who are
s for Stacy, so 1 would have Jone over fobet 5 connecting, whce could be d:yireaming, 1 would be
€ these items with her. 3 a i e worried that tne -'lonts were nal ---
7 Q. Okay. You've got several grows, --- 7 and 1t's --- it's not like @ 's sasy content
E} A. Right. g ~kat they could just learn o “helir own,
S Q. --- most of which are self-explanatory or 9 of the time they need the @ wachor or studens
10 you've already discussed. ’ 10 teacher to explain it zo treomw, an ---,
11 A. Uh-huh . : 11 Q. And these are high school seniors. Don't
Q. One of my --- there seems to be an issue of Sz high school seniors act that way?
2 her relating to some students who might be 13 A. Meaning?
pE| quieter than others, and you want her to call on 14 Q. Well, sleeping, daydreaming, thinking about
15 them -—- 15 something else.
le A, Uh-nun oy 16 A. Tc scme extent. Any s' utonb lnoany ¢l
17 Q. --- or -—-? 17 could, you know, be that x.r 0f student. But
18 A. Sure. 18 in ny classroom, my pnilos obFvy 1s no have !
19 Q. Describe that. i19 expectation that everybedy i« uoing to lears and
20 A. I woulc have keen encouraging her to --- her 22 everybody is going to leav: what T have to teaun
A1 job is to make sure that ail the students zare 21 them. And I'm going fe ma<e sare frat
2z learning the zontent. And when there's qgulet 22 learn, because that's my j.t. 5. there wouldn't
23 students in the classrcom who en 'L 23 be sleeping. There wouldn'l b« sudents suoming
24 Interacting, she's ccinc te have to elicit that 24 unprepared, you know. And . would b=
-- respenses from them instead of 25 happening, then youa address ‘hat, and you make
Page 73
1 with maybe a more aggressive or a more confident 1 it c¢lear that that’'s not your expectation for
2 szudent who weuld be raising 3 harnd or 2 taem.
3 out an answer. £o that's an imporman®. teol for 3 Q. Okay. At the bottom left you've got
4 a teacher, tc opvicusiy know what's happening 4 concerns, music with swear words, shut up, et
5 with all the studenzs in the class. .5 cetera. If you could please describe ---.
& Q. How many students are in these classes? E ) A. I've noted that --- yeas, |'ve noted ~hat
7 A. In botn thcse classes, tacre would have been : 7 the first t“wc were address-d | revicusly, bar I'm
) re petweern 10 and 1® s nTs, probably. & kind of getting a running }is' ~L ~hings =hut
3 Q. You've got a comment, how do you know what 9 are beyond grows that I'm .. wind of con
t0 they know? Think about that. You need 13 abcut at this point. Lo vyl vwant de to explain
11 feedback. What's that refer to? S 11 the —--7
12 L. Some kind of as sment, e_thor an iaformal 12 Q. Yes. Please do.
12 assessrnen, buT s wWavs “cownl of measure L3 A, The rusic with swear wors:, ore of her tirs:
14 have they actually learned anything that I'w 14 couple days of teacnhing she .4 played scma o
15 taught ther up o this polnr, or aroe 15 her music as kind of a oa:> g:iund sound so @ hat
le kind of startinag back at me, and thern I'm ceing iE --- you know, for the stud-nt= to be wor<ing on
17 te hit zhem with a large zest and “he students 7 something that might not h.ve roauired
_8 are going to fail? So you necd some “ind of 18 concentration, a project .- say. I do
14 indication now if any re-teaching nceds teo 19 remerber that it was a 3en . 11ds Five CD.
23 happen befcre, like, a formal assessmenl takes 20 That's a band. I don't remarbror exactly whlicn
2 place. 21 sengs it was. I maybe cousn fisure that oat,
el Q. Were you concerned that she did not know Pon but —-—-.
3 what the students knew? 23 Q. Actually, if you'll look in that packet, you
24 A. Yes. 24 will see right after CVSD-186 ---.
25 Q. Why? 25 A. We had it before.
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Page 74§ Page 76

z Q. Keep going. ; 1 words before.

2 OFF RECORD DISCUSSION : 2 A, I'm sure.

3 BY ATTORNEY XRAMER: 3 Q. But that didn't matter to you?

4 Q. Was this the song? : 4 A. No.

5 A. Yes. 5 Q. Why was it not appropriate for a classroom?

3] Q. Tell me what happened that day. & 6 A. Well, evern just as a sch ol p2licy, as a

K A. It was played. And I quess by the third 7 schocl rule, in any high s ool I weould assame

8 line tnere was a tad-ass mcther., So 1 neard 8 that trere's no profanity. a0 as an equeator

9 that, and my ears peaked --- perked up. And I 9 in a cliassroom, you wouldn'l want your students
10 looked arcund the classroom znd there was 10 usirng this language, so yc1 =noniar't pe pliving
11 absclutely no indication that the feacher even 11 music tha<t has this langazae.
12 noticed that that happened. And the xids kind 12 Q. And so you got up and turned off the CD?
13 of looked over at me. A couple of tnem gave we 13 A. Yes.

14 arched evebrows, and [ said, okay. 14 Q. And what did Stacy do?
15 Ard then, vou know, before T could even 15 A. I think T just consulten w. b her eitner
ie stand up or do anvthinag, we were probakbly four 16 quietly right at that momen! - r riaybe after fnatl
i or five wore lines later, and then there was 17 class had ended, I don't thilh we Zistennd -
18 kiss my goodbye. And 1f the song had played 18 any more music fcr the rest =f <ha® blocx, and
19 the whole fime thrcugh, obwviously that 1o0ks 19 explained to her that she xens "0 be --- if

20 like it's part of tne cho 52 it would {20 she's going to put a song . tront of her

o1 have been said a couple tim 5o by then I had 21 students, she needs to knc wta Lhe content of
e rin over and stopped the CTI. There was ne --- T 22 it is, what the language <! © is, and tharn that

23 don'f. think she

ced. 23 can't happen. And I'm sure =h= was apols

24 Q. She didn't notice what? 249 and said that she hadn't r=.. -ed that --- you

ZA. That the language was in that song. Or 25 know, didn't do it on purp..-e,

Page 75

1 certainly she didn't think abcut -t bafcre ste 1 was negligent in not knowinua she waz
Z played trat sorg. 2 playing for her students.
3 Q. I'm going to guess you had never seen this 3 Q. Did any of the students say anything to you?
4 song before or heard this song before. 4 A, Specifically about it? ‘hirk they
5 A. It might have been in --- T don't know 1% it 5 propably laughed about it, yoio krow, laugned %
[ would have been on the radic. T mean, 1'm & off, like, oh, my God, the sti.¢ teachvr ¢
7 familiar with Ben Folds Five. I dcn't own the:ir 7 one of her first days is p oving music walh
3 a.bumn, 2 swear words in it. But it »on 9 have been
Q. Okay. So did she --- did Stacy indicate to P9 informal and with arched eyer:. and kina of
you that she had ever heard this song before 0 laughing with me --- not wi'n re, but laughing
1 playing it in the classroom? 21 --- kind of looking over al - ard laughing that
iz A. Yeah, she specifically played this --- mayhe 12 the student teacher made a = 3" aheo.
13 it was an attemrpt to <ind of connect with the 13 Q. And was there any reaction outside the
14 kids, to play something contemporary and alsc 14 classroom? That is, did parents call you? Did
15 becaus think --- I'm sure she expressed nmany 15 any administrators contact you?
€ times that it's bard or one of her 16 A. Nc.
17 favorite kands. 17 Q. Okay. So there was no ramification beyond
1e Q. And what was your concern? 18 what happened in the classroom?
19 A. The language, that that's nct appropriare 19 A. The fire was put out.
za for the and that 1t sheculdn't pe --- 20 Q. Then it says shut up in your notes. What
27 we shouldn't pe playing songs as teachers in 21 does that mean?
o2 front of our srtudents that have swear words in o2 A. sShe used shut up, prob<tly just once =+
23 them. 23 this point, there's no indir-' iz that it was a
24 Q. But these are 17 and 18-year-old kids. My z4 second, to gain control of nor -~lassroom or
o5 guess is that most of those had heard these get thelr attention.
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Q. And is that inappropriate?
A. Yes.
Q. Because?

A. BRecause there should probably pe more of a

measure of ¢ for a ~eacher tc be able to
obtain the students' attenticn and respect and

to nave them iisten to vou when you say vou're

in charge of this classroom, 1it's time tc near

me out or, you know, pull kach from a discussicn

or something Tixe that. Snhut ap isn't
apprepriate.
Q. Was this the first time she said shut up in

the classroom?

A. Judging by -“his, I'm thinking yes. Because

1 think later therc are documents that say thal.,

you know, 1t was used a second time. 3¢ 1
“hink this was the second time.

Q. After shut up it says, minimal knowledge in
grammar, vocabulary, spelling.

A, Yes.

Q. What does that reference?

A. Just that I'w indicating that

persist

t prcblem where ther

¥nowiedge as far as these oontent areas go. And

I'm a _ittie worried at =his point about now the

semester 1s

are goirg ~c¢ fare from having a stadent 1teacher

WS

these weah

Q. And this was after her student teaching in
the classroom three times?

AL Yes. And prepably fram some other

docurents, ma that T had seen c¢r heard ftne

actual items that she had given to students ar

preparec¢ for me 12 her lessun vlarns,

Q. Okay. Were there errors in her lesson plans
that she gave to you?
A, Yes.

Q. Such as?

A. Again,

e grammar, vocahi:lary, spelling,

but sometimes It would jusi De content. For

instance, we might be studying Beowul:, and she

seemed To rely pra Irnterret
for her materials, because There's a worid of

informatiosn out there for t

of, vou

herself, she wculd use mayhe that

already prepared out of <he Internet, but it

would pertain to areas that we weren't even

@

=

Page 80

swudying, because Beowulf wi were only reading
excerpts from. It's a lonry rarrative tale. So
she would nave guesticns prepared for students
that wouldn't even pertair ' anything tnas we

were learning about. 8o tleve'd bLe scme: i

errcrs like that.

Q. And did you tell her these concerns?

A. Rbsolutely. But az lot =f t:ires T courdn™
address them ahead c¢f time veause I wasn't

getting the materials n2 dzy that

were already photocopied a1 teingy handed out to
the studerts. I'd have an iies 35 what was ©o

be taught that day because

1id set up =
pacing guide for, you xnow, «'ze woing to an
Beowulf today, Ior three duys, and then w're

going to be on t¢ "The Sezra-cr"™, hut I wouldn't

necessarily always know whoat was handing to
the students and what she was 1x.ng.

Q. To be effective, do you, when you're

teaching, try to do, in advance of the class,
almost a minute-by-minute agenda for yourself as
to what you're going to cover and for how long?

A. You need To have an ide-., |

take me about 20 minutes, fth.s wi.i be a
so that you can get the id i trat vou're goning

And instead

was

to use up the entire blocs.

idle time, there's time for o.osure, things
~“hat.

Q. And was she doing that, as far as you know?

A. Probably in a discussicu @ 7 me we weuid
prcbably have tried to guess .1 ¢ long ner
activities would have takei, it 7T don't

know --- I don't know Lhat w. woulid necessariiy

always discuss that.
Q. Finally, it says, a little too easy. What

does that mean?

A. Just the beginning --- st reing o
rctice that compared to whal 1 kuow, you “10W,
students --- and any stuce:nt 2's gone rhiroungh

nigh school, ycu now what bas Iy the riqgor
ard the relevance of what haigpens in 9th, 1.th,
lith and 12th grade is. W"'ro gerbing these

students who are tc be prover=d Yor college of

prepared for some kind of caticn. And

e
they were --- I was start:: i to notice that they

really weren't being challrrgnd. There right be

a word find where you find woets' rnames or
something like that, but y.. --- there's no
indication that ycu actua..y hknow what any of
those terms mean cor --- 1t accned a litile —---
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1 iz seemed a middle scnoel scretimes. 1 career institute or from a -~n'lege at that ovoint
z Q. And actually the next page, CVSD-211 is a 2 coming in to speak with our =o Anc her
3 word find. 3 metnod of addressing the speakbor was to say 0
4 A. Right. 4 the class, 1 hope you give y:ur speaker more
5 Q. Who prepared this? 5 respect than you give me. /i T quoted fhat
6 A. That would have been Stazy. 6 because that's obviously --- ‘t's fer adml-ting
7 Q. And was this not something that you thought T that the students don't show her respect and
8 she should have done? g8 don't give her the respect that a teacher should
9 A, Iz could ke some king of guick, for fun, 9 be getting at that peint. Arnx iv's --- that's
10 here, here’'s a minute at the enc of =The class 10 kind of an inappropriate way <o iutroduce a
11 period or here's --- 1'm nct even totally sure 11 speaker. And there's an inalcazion of --- ous
12 wny you'd use a word find. I never have for 12 on the margin that a student s asking for
13 seniors. 13 and she's guestioning and say:=g, T don't
14 Q. And did you tell her that it was probably 14 understand what you're saying, I don't
15 not appropriate for seniors, or you just let it 15 understand how you're explaining rhis to me,
16 go? 16 And I wanted to suggest tc Ter tha- that was an
17 A. Well, it was prcpakly just cne of those 17 indication that she's not tiie only one in the
18 things that I hadn't seen ahead ¢f time. And 1 18 class who's having this problem, she's just
19 guess this was one of her --- maybe a review 1% vocalizing it.
20 activity. So after the fact, I would have 20 Q. Okay.
21 addressed that with her. 21 A, Do you want me to address al. of those
22 Q. Up to this point, had you shared your 22 propiems?
23 concerns with her competence with anybody else? 23 Q. Well, yes, except to the extent that you've
24 A. 1'm sure I would nave zal=ed (o my 24 already talked about ---

Superviscr. 25 A. Okay.

Page 83 Page 85

1 Q. Deann Buffington? 1 Q. --- something.
Z A. Correct. And petentially Barry Girvin, 2 A. Classroom management, s< .3w5.5 talkinu
3 though this 13 still kind of early in the 3 during test taking 1s obvicus.y not acceptable
4 placement. “'m not sure wnen he would have 4 so she needs to address thar. And the si!
s tegun to officially observe her, but 1 wouald 5 ralking obviously indicates -ha'. this is
9 have definitely made it known to him. [3 something I addressed with ner and 1t's s-:10 a
7 Q. Okay. Let's go to the next page. This is ¢ 7 problem 1in tne classroom, 5 «= u=ed to Jone up
g CVsD-212. Is this a continuation of the grows Pog with another way for ycu +c¢ address this,
9 and glows from CVSD-210, because I don't see a 9 because the students aren'- taking your
10 date on the other? 10 expectations seriously.
11 A. No. It would have kecen a different day, -'m 11 Based on a recommendation, you <now,
12 sure. 12 proximity is important. It s-.nabcdy is
13 Q. Okay. Because I'm trying to take these in 13 misbehaving, you want to «. -3 of stand ne
14 order that your Counsel marked them. : 14 them. You want to circula‘'«. You want to be
15 A. Okay. 15 meving around the classrcom. =0 she must have
16 Q. There are some glows at the top. She seems 16 started to do that, but --- 117 she was
17 to be --- to have energy and to have a pretty 17 circulating, but she wasn'~ addressing the
18 good presence in the classroom. 18 behavior that was cccurrins wran she wou.d be
] A. Uh-huh {yes). .19 near, like that's not appropriate cr you n=zed to
20 Q. But there also seem to be some pretty nasty be quiet or whatever, you -n.w«, whatever tre
zZ1 issues of classroom management? prchblem was at that point.
A. Right. Q. And these notes that you're taking, you're
z3 Q. Describe that, please. taking them while she's doing the student
24 A. Well, starting over in the margin, some teaching?
25 quotes. We must have had a spearer from a A. Right. The students ar- s:i.1 talxing wher
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Page 86

Only five to fen students arc

with you at any polint taat youa're fteacailndg, wAs

my observation. You zxnow, the rest of the

class, the other 10 to 15 students woild have

been --- or more, would have been off rask and

kxind of holding their own court at that point.

You =all for atiernzicn, but you're not

getting i1%. AnRd then you compliment the

students at the ena cof ~he bisck, which would

have peer a mixed signa., =2 say .ixe, well,

~hat was a great c.ass, whon 6 wasn't

any of the behavicr that veu welu.g have wanted.

Q. Are kids acting out in class?

A. By not paying attent:i plaranty

disrespecting The stuaent *cach not reaily

lister --- nct listen: t¢ her divections or

her irstructiors cr her npectatlons of them.

Q. And how would they do that? I mean,
obvicusly no one is going to pull a knife on
her, but how would they disrespect her and show
that they are holding her in disdain as a

teacher?

A, Just < inue te de what she's asking them

not to do, so just to turn Their back and start

talking to a friend seated benind them or raybe

Page 87

5 call into guestion sorething that she's

asking them to do. There's a lch of differen:

ways that they couaid.

Q. And how was she reacting to that disrespect?

A. Probably at a loss, you know,

not sure what she should do at that point.

Maybe get: frustrazed.

Q. And was that evident to you in class, that
she was frustrated?

A, Ves.

Q. Would she try to, to use the term, get

buddy-buddy with the students, to gain their

affection or attention?

A, That was defirnitely a mecthod that she

probably resort --- that would h

resort for her or --- any feacher in 2

wants to be liked by the stuaents,

tc have

warts

that rapport w.=h =zhenm,

where <here's d of a

camaraderie or --- but Iv's all --- it all

translates from respect, and so she was l1ooking

for tnat. But a lot of rimes 1t seered she

wanted --- because they were 17, 13-year-0.Q

students, she was lcoking Lo Le more on a peer

level with them, is my understanding of ir.

Q. And you can continue to look on that page or

Page 88

1 go to the next page, which seems to be a
2 continuation. This CVSD-213 seems to be an
3 entire page of criticisms.
4 A. It is centinuing frem "he Last page, !
5 believe.
[ Q. It says at the top, we discussed shut up.
7 You did discuss shut up once ---
g A. Before.
3 Q. --- already. Is this a repetition of that?
20 A. Probably. Or this could ve indicating =na
w1 there was a second occurren -+ U if.  But ['m
T2 not --- you know, I can't ¢ 1. Zxaztly withoon a
3 date or, you know, more sproif. ‘erenc
_4 Q. Okay. It says parent follow-ups. What's
_5 that refer to?
P A. That if there's some ki  f s-udent 'S
7 failing or some disrespect., .o of the
g procedures for writing a s' 1t up for a
19 detenzicn is that you firs: o make contact
20 with the parent and that, o krow, 1f a sTadent
21 is failing, you need to le' 1he parent know.
2 Q. Uh-huh (yes).
23 A. So I would have discuss-.: -hat with hex.
24 Iv's probably Jjust a note fur me, cbviously
25 what I've discussed.
Page 89
1 Q. Oh, so this doesn't indicate she wasn't
2 doing this. 1It's just a note ---?
3 L. Just for myself, like oxu, 1 made sure that
4 I've discussed the fact tha' we i Lo ke
] following up with parents. u= hain of commwand
€ was discussed at this point, .3 that wes ~--.
7 Q. What's that mean?
8 A. That was --- the first «=xzannle would have
9 happened --- Stacy would hove woented a koy o nmy
10 classroom so that she coul: huve one, mayk.: toel
11 to feel more like a teacher, ‘ust did nor nave
1z to borrow my key, which is fhe s*ardard vrote
13 for student teachers. And 1 o't --- 1 raink
14 she might have asked me if <he< cculid nave ,
19 and I said tnat T would cheus into that for hex
16 but that T think the policy 1w T rot hand oun
17 multiple keys, you know, 11-t as a safety and
18 security measure.
] And befcre I was able to get rac. 10 her
20 with an answer, either lat.-o "ha. day or the
21 next day she actually aoproacted cur ass:stans
o2 principal in the hallway ai- ed nim if she
23 could have a key to the ct.s:-v vom.  And he
24 explained to her that thaft wasn't possible, tnat
5 they don't give student te.cnars «eys.
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Q. And what's the reference to chain of

command?
A. I explained to her tha= there's --- there's
a system. There's a --- that 1f she nas

questions or issues, tnat she needs to come Lo

me first with that, and that that

originated, but that s nad gcne above me
when I explained 1o her that 1 was the person
whe was Looking into it.

Q. Then it says number four, block activities.

What's that reference?

A. Probably --- I'm guessing that thnat probably

indicates I'm jusht ftrying relp her ¢

1o

with some different stracec.es and activities to

use to break up “he E0-minu-e, %C-minute block.

Q. At this point, was she teaching the entire
block?

A. Yes.

Q. Why did you let her teach the entire block
with all the other inadequacies that she has

shown?

A. Well, the intenticn --- my gocal, my job, is

to get her to be able te compiete student
feaching. 5o she needs to be able Lo wor< her

way up to teaching a full load. And it deesn't

Page 92

for the past month.

Q. Tests, assessments for the students on a
given subject, who prepared them? Does she
prepare them or do you prepare them?

A. As part of her unit, she wrila have prepured

them. She would have access "o mine, ang _

doubt she would have used rire,

she wauldzn't have handed my test She would

have made her own test fto ~ul:h up with ©

content that she had taugh-.

Q. Okay. And who grades them?

A. Stacy would.

Q. And if she's teaching a given block for a
semester, does she give the final grade to the

student?

A, 1f she had been there r::r
finish of a semester, whict at.adent teachers
aren't, I guess technically =nv would have, bar

with my ccnsultation becauss '3 my gradc oo

Q. Okay. So teachers are pretty proprietary
about their grade books, are they?

A. Well, you have your cw

ord, your
own --- 1it's assigned ta yo ., ard that ros zr is

ultirately assigned to you, roster of

students, so ycu have to pbe vy with the

mean that every day she was necessarily a

reaching a full block, she wasn't teaching a

£a1. load at this pcing, but that she needed to

start TG have the experience of a teacher where

you need to know how to plan for an 80-minute
lock before you can plan for three z0O-minute

blocks.

Q. To the left in the margin at the top, could

you read that part?

A. Tc Lhe lefr?

Q. Yeah, the very top.

A, Shouldrn't be iust one person doing all ne

work?  That's the middie one.

Q. I'm sorry. I'm thinking the left, in the

margin up here.

A. As of 2/27, students in 3la

not know the figurative language you are :rving

to teach/have taught sinze you starrted.
Q. What is that?
A. That there's an indication based on their

assessments or cased on discussicns, hey,

wnere's the metaphor in this line or, you know,

where's the simile in this pzassage? They're

still not able to actually identify any of the

things tha< she should have teen teaching them

that the students ultimatc_ . rorelv
course. If a student tea - nor icaves, yoa're
still the teacher.

Q. Okay. And so when you say grade book,

you're talking about access in a grade book on a
computer as opposed to a ---?

A. Right, which is how woe 1. @t row.

Q. Okay. How about in the margin in the

middle, what does that say?

A. That I nave indicated -~n-f Ko you alre

Activities and questions - materials, stody

guides, units, that she's g with the

students have errcrs and problecs and sh

doesn't catcn them ahead -t -ire, nor do 1 s=e

ther ahead of time before stidents yge-

to --- the kids get to numb:é-r =.x and then tt
say, 1 don't understand ko~ " answer this
questicn, and the answer .z, .1, it's ool evern

on anything you've reac an: i-'s an error.

think what I was trying to point out 1s relying

too heavily on the Intern:! tn prepare yolir
materials for you is probe:nly 1ot the best
method.

Q. Finally, on the left you say, shouldn't be

just one person doing all the work, in quotes.
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1 A. I'm just qucotling her. that's just 1 cverride whatever she woul.s

z cating that there's rezlly only one or 2 you kneow, talk her cut of v lu3 1L a cer aln wiy
3 tws -~-- you k a very --- i small amcunt of 3 or --- there doesn't nesd t: be alscussicn 3bout
4 students actizlly answering the questions, and 4 things that --- when ycu'rs -n= professicnal in
5 she's indicating that the r of the students () front of < classroom, it ‘s YOu Say g

6 need to get involved, but not beyond that quote. € Q. Did you instruct her on how to better manage
7 She's not deirg anythlrng tc ensure that the HE the class?

g cother students in the classroom are g=tting 8 A. Yes,.

9 involved, so T would have been pointing that out 9 Q. And you described --- I mean, here it says,

10 to her. 13 I think we should do it this way. Is that you
11 Q. So if I understand it, it's her --- you're 11 telling her to simply be more forceful? I mean,
1z quoting her? 12 what are you telling her to do?

13 A. I'm gueting her, yes. 13 A. I'm quoting her. She'l I think wc

14 Q. So it sounds like she's trying to lay a P! should do Z: this way, graides .. ~his way, hi

15 guilt trip on the students to some extent, you 25 then --- sc¢ she'll put ocut ¢ -, 1 think we

16 know, you guys need to work, too? 16 shouZd do it this way, but cpens it ap for
17 A. Sure. Sure. Sure. You krow, trying to 17 a forum for discussion, and i culdntt.

1€ make them feel responsio:e, thab they nced to 18 Q. Okay.

19 get involved and making them Zeel a little P19 A. But all of these things ore I'm owritiing
20 gi1ilty, like you need to step it up. ' e like glows and grows ard w: .ting zll of <hese
21 Q. And did that work? 21 things out, these woula havwr =11 bren shared

22 A. No. P2z with her and I would have zoue nt. by paint
23 Q. And how do you know? over them, explained whatcveor “n& arow w
24 A. Because we iust had the same prcolem for the glow was, commended her -.; had a discission

vime <hat sne

of the semester, mos< with her about how we c¢ouls .mprove 1t o1 what

Page 97

Page 95

1 wes there. 1 we should do instead, feroz2sk ome guesTions

2 Q. Okay. If you go down --- do you need to z or ---.

3 take a break, by the way? 3 Q. Okay. At the bottom it says, language,

4 A. I'm fine. 4 quote, shut the hell up, end quote, and you

5 TTORNEY VOIGT: 5 didn't address it.

2 I'd like to take a break. We'wve 6 A. Right.

7 been at this for 45 minutes. P Q. What happened there?

8 ATTORNEY KRAMER: ' g A. I'm just --- as an cbhserver in the paclk of

9 Okay. Let's take a br G the classroem cor to the side o1 the classroom, 1
10 SHORT BREAK TAKEN 0 can hear language around thte room that's

11 BY ATTORNEY XRAMER: 11 audible, that anybody in tr.: :cum would hesar
iz Q. Still on the same page, in the center you P2 tut there's no indicatic ner that - ‘e
13 wrote, you suggest an idea then crumble based on é 13 inappropriate language.

14 what the students want. They run the show. I 14 There was another place where " wis

15 think we should do it this way, grade it this i5 referenced, like inappropri: o kend behivior,
i€ way, and then discussion ensues. What does that 16 talking akbout potentially : k- drinking ¢n ‘he
17 refer to? 17 weekends or golng to parti-s or iust things ---
13 A, Just refers to a weak 18 even drugs like that shoulai 't --- <hat
I8 managemsnt, that when yai!' 19 shouldn't be part of your Nokody
20 explain how you're golng to structure your v 28 should be idly sitting arocuii 2l ssing thirgs

activities and your timeline or when somethirg Z1 like that. You need tc os awic o uphela ~har

oz is due, and that's nhasizal_y 1. 17's really oz that's not appropriate in . -~laasroom, and it
23 nct open for discussicon. Yol have a pace that just wouldn't be addressed.
24 ycu need te keep, and you're the teacher. You Q. Did she --- did that kind of problem arise
25 know what's besv. And the students would aiwavs other times, other than her not addressing the
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il shut the hell up, or other incidents you can 1 prcbhblems, that would have .l wed ner to niok up
2 recall? 2 his ftraditicnai senicr Eng..3- the by
3 A. Nct specifically, but L xznow for sure 3 creating ‘ust cne prep, if yooo wiil, like only
4 somewhere in here T thinx that it's referenced 4 cne centent that you have * » w2 familiar wi-h,
5 trat, you know, weckend plans were discussed. I 5 arnd that's just the Britis: litecrature, which
5] probably didn't note it every time tnat it would P06 Isn't typlcal for a teache:r. Yo usually n
7 have happened, just hecause it was starting to ; 7 tc wear a ~ouple different huts iy the arse of
2 become a pattern, and I 8 a day, but we were able t¢ wes: “hat that would
< addressed 1t with fer &t tnar moment., Or at 9 probably be the best situa: .. a=s far as nsiping
12 scme point I wight have even stood up and szid, 10 Stacy complete her studen: -aasching and allc A
11 you know, that's ndt appropriate, or explain it 11 that switch to take place. ~ui1 My 5Iperv- s.o°
12 tc the students. 12 condoned that and said, sur-. "o that was
13 Q. The next page, CVSD-214, is dated February 13 something that we kind of sbove
14 13th. If there are dates for which there is no 14 to try to help her out a .irrle hir.
i5 note, does that --- I mean, where ---? 15 Q. Okay. O©On the top of CVSD-214 you wrote
e A. They coula be ---. 16 something, Stacy explained on Sunday evening,
bl Q. What does that mean? 17 there's an asterisk. What --- does that mean
.8 A. They could be later, S[es ily since this 18 anything other than just what it says? Does
has) page previcus, , says, as cf /27, 19 that raise a concern?
z0 students irn 3l¢ck Twe. So ['d say that these 20 A. No, it's just T'm indicat ,n: --- 1t raises a
2% documents could be cut cf crder and than's 21 concern., I'm raising a 21 e
22 fzulty dating. Q. What's the concern?
23 Q. Right. And actually the next document, $ 23 A. That she's having a nar: - .me keeping up and
24 which is number 215, it's dated 2/3. 24 “hat she's not turning her w.a~s i complel=d or
25 A. Right. v o5 on time, the lesson plans, . oven the
Page 99 Page 101
1 Q. Okay. 1 materials, but getting the on plans iz
z A. ALl over the place. z me what she's intending to t- taat day,
3 Q. But we'll stick with CVSD-214. 3 even the materia:s, which provisusly hads's been
4 A, Oray. 4 turned in on time. And then T
5 Q. At this point, have you switched her to a 5 think she was sick already I: She maybe
[ different class, different block? & --- I thiank there were at .« --- I thir-
i A. No. 7 there were four days, don'' n.ote me, I may he
8 Q. You did that at some point during the 38 wrong, but I think maybe ¢ .4 zays that s
9 semester? HE] missed of student teachinc b- e of beirc il
ic A, Yes. At some polint [ take over the 10 Q. Okay.
11 technizal class, bed Aot working out S A. S0 maybe the next day she cnded up calling
1z very well, iz out sick or something.
13 Q. With her as teacher? 3 Q. And what is she telling you about what's
14 A. Righkt. BAnd also of ncote, we were 14 going on?
) at the charge of the marking pericd, 15 A, With?
6 nine weeks ard that advanced compositicn course 16 Q. With her inability to be prepared and
17 ended, we woula have pickea Ur a speenrn class. 17 turning notes in in advance.
18 But because there was a transiticn with ancther 18 A, I don't remember any spc “.: reasons “naf
19 colleague in my department t ching some 19 she was c¢iting, because I .a.'t Lellieve © Wds
20 guidance counselor kind of positions, he 20 working. I believe studen® -«aching --- ana
eventually meved into that spot.. He --- his 21 being a mom, that that was 'he only thing —ha-
schedule changed. 22 she had going on. So I'm nun suroe.
23 He was able to =ake cur s_ass and --- 23 Q. Okay. So the rest of her life was also
and I wouldn'rt have made this change, except 24 quite busy. I mean, she had a lot of other
that I had a student %eacher and we were having z5 things going on in her life as well?
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A. I assume.

Q. The bottom says constant chatter.

A, That grives me cracy, because I'm Tryng oo
take notes and the kids are --- it's jast ---
ir's like nails on & chalxbosard Lo a teacher
when you know that kne ztudents aren't payving

attention, aren't learning, are wasting t

al

period. And it's hard for me to even --- fo sit

in the c¢lassrcom and tc not want te step in and
not want to take charge. 8o it's hard Zor me to
xind of step back and watch the way this is
going.

Q. Well, why don’'t you step in during class?

A. To some degree T wanf <o mare sure that, at
this point, she's --- rhat she can ke the
authority in the olassroom and that they don'ft
see her as being less ¢i «ii authority Ifigure.

If I'm constantly stepping in, it mazwes her lozk
more and more like a student and more on level

with them. She needs to ke able fo be the

professicnal in front of the < sroow, and T
try not to andermine that £or her. T1'd rather

try to address 1t with her outside of class and

then maxe some suggestions znd then hope for

some improvement fthe next day, knowing rthat

]

w

S

Page 104

completely misinterprefed i- @ made *ne same

who had ncver

kind of error that maybe a a1t .¢

seen the poem before might tu-e

it. So I needed to make s.re
understood what the poem n- =t ani that sh=

could re-teach that to the s

Q. And after speaking with her, do you think

she did understand the poem?

A. I'm aot sure. To the bewor of her ability or
--- hopefully, I was able 1. <xpla.n it 'o her.
Q. It says, last two lines are most important.
Apologized to students for reading definition of
ode. What's that mean?

A. 3he apologized to studei~s tor reading

because she mispronounced 4 » of the woras and

wasn't able to read it ver; ! 1y, as a

teacher probably should. . 0 oribably

Zo make sure that she knew the definaticn

of an ode was because the ¢ wm 2 called "Ode on
a Grecian Jrn", and she el-te: didn't exp.aln it
well or didn't explain it o~ And ir would
have been one of the terms ~hoy uceded to krow,

Q. And then it says, the last two lines, we
should discuss. The historian is the urn, but

there is a speaker.

Page 103
there's going to be some error.

Q. Anything else on this page, CVSD-214, that
really stands out and that we haven't already
discussed in terms of her problems teaching?

A. No, just more of “he same.

Q. The next page. This is CVSD-215. And
actually, this is February 3rd, '06. Just take
a look at that and tell me if anything pops out
on this page.

A. That she was ¢f The rthings that I

asked her

Ooviously, she was reminding

the students about not

Sne rezlly did not understand "Cde on a Grecian

Urn", Zchn Keats' pcem, and T was making a note

of that, and that 1 reedod —¢ falhk to ber abow

it was --- It was a poem

that she had studied in her coursework at

Millersville, so I assumed --- and tae teacher's

text, it walxs you tarcugh the poem stanza by
stanza. Sc obviocusly, 1 assurmed that she'd bes
able to discuss tha:t peem wizh the students, and

she really didn't understand ift, and it's pretty

Q. And it says --- how was it so clear?

A. Well, even by the last two lines, that she

[

e

o
o

a

Vo

—
-1

&)
&

A. Yeah, like a persona for raw poem. 1
believe ske Zhought that fners was a historian.

She was misinterpreting the ont

poem, *he
most important aspect of tir poer, and I needea
“o make sure that she unders-«od that.

Q. Okay. At this point --- well, actually,

let's go to the next page, CVSD-218. This is
dated February 24th. At this point, have you
been raising your concerns to Ms. Buffington
about Stacy’'s competence?

A. Yes. And certainly by ~ /4, -0 Barry

Girvin, as well, He woulicd b oeon o in to

observe her.
Q. All right. Tell me about your concerns that
you raised with Ms. Buffington.

A. T didrn't know how she v

Lo go. Tt
was feeling pretty --- it s feselling --- it was

feeling like I had a stude er wno didn'-

have the preparation, the witent, the krowledge
or the classroom managemen!, lasically a.. the

tocls that she should have .ums= 1o me with or

started to develop up to ftha 1T, that it was
severely lacking. She was oavirg a hard time.
She was really struggling. 4.2 if wasn't ---

the situation wasn't charg

the stu
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1 by and large. The students were still being, 1 these concerns with Stacy as well. Is she

z you know, disrespectful, disruptive, llenaging z changing? Is what she's telling you changing?

3 her, not respecting her authori in tre 3 I mean, is she understanding that you were very,

4 classroom. 4 very concerned about the students?

5 And there was propa p.e ~imes --- 5 E. She should be. I mean, -verytaning tha-

5 any time that Stacy wceulid have been oust, I wonld 4 youa've seen me --- that [ have written here she

7 have been the teacher, obv Any time thart 7 would nave seon alsc, sc 1 't o---,

e she wouldn't ve been in the room, I would have 8 Q. Okay.

9 taken advantage of the opportunity to remind the e A. I can't read her mind, .- she should have
10 students and wcould have set ing that i 1C been concerned., PBut agair, [ thins I said Harry
1l way, to say like, she is the authority, she is ; 11 Girvin and I were both alm =~ flabbergasios oy
2 the teacher, vou need ~o respect ner, zand I 1z her self-evaluation of hers=.1 at

23 revemper remirdirg them of that throughout the 13 because sne really didn't aive herself very

) semester. And the s-ud

s would explain to me 14 areas, 1f any areas, where -b¢ rceded any hird

ts that it's kind of hard zo learn from scmebody 15 of radical improvement.
16 who knows less than you krow abouf sometning or 16 Q. Right.
Z7 is less prepared than you are on certain days. 17 A. And if you compare hers t: our assessment f
.8 Yeah. E 18 rer, it's night and day. 3 Barry and T were
19 Q. And what did you tell Ms. Buffington? 19 on the same page, but Stacy wasr't, so T'r ot
A. Propably Zust asked her, what should [ doz? 20 sure why she misinterpreter ter ab.llities.
21 What do you d¢ in a situal_or like this where 21 Q. I'm trying to --- I'm looking on this 2/18,
there are such preplems? And I've =ried 22 trying to find things that we haven't already
3 vasically everything I warn th to try up to 23 discussed or are self-explanatory. It says sort
z4 this peint, ard I'm starr! 0wl the rest of 24 of in the center, too much time, this is what it
5 the student teacher placement thinking, what can 25 is, this is where it is, now you find one in the
Page 107 Page 109
z we do? So I know that we made that adjustment ; 1 passage. Students are rebelling. This is hard.
2 for the advanced composition course for her, ; 2 What's this mean?
3 where I explained that she was able to teach a i3 A. She probably spent a lo- 1 ~ime, it 15oks
4 anit that wasn't part of the curriculur. o4 like maybe 14 minutes haa . sy 3. that paiat,
5 Q. Right. S and all she needed to dc was say, like, 1hls Is
€ A. And we made the adjustment for ner t©o be Poe what the definition of < cerm o is, this is
7 able to teach 2 simliar prep as opposed to 7 where you can find it In <l passage and give
8 naving to learn scme new conftent In a public g them some practice tc pe abl'ly b practic
] speaking course. And T Barry Girvin, I Kknow an @ finding it on their own, but that she must nave
10 crie peint, 1'm not sure --- I'm surs ore of your 10 been spending a iot of tim¢ =i “he students
11 documents has = a2 ava_nation. 1 were rebel_ing and startira 1. ::Tivce. e
Z L would have peer in March. 12 might have said that tnis l.aizd, *he conternt
13 Q. Right. 13 is hard to the students, y.u niow, explaining
14 A. 50 not too many weeks after this. And I 14 ter ineffectual teaching or > hing. Thn onoes
15 would have been suggesting thart maybe we should 1% sure.
16 be considering another placement because my i 1le Went on to the --- so they'll a=x sticns.
17 students are not going tu be able £o take a 17 They'll say that they don'~ ~1derstand scme’ hing
13 f --- the final exam for rhis course. 13 or sne'll gloss over somertinu, i:nd then she
19 They're not geing tc be able to pass. They're 9 would move cn to the next —mampls withou- wmaking
20 nct going tc have any ¢f the content thar they 20 sure that the students und.rst .cx “he firs
21 should have had at <he end »f this course, i example. And it was --- just kind
o2 We're doing them a disservice, trying to get thrcough the toad, 1t seemen o

Q. Was it that bad? me 1s probkably what I'm not lns at that po

24 A. It was get~irg that bad, veah. .24 Q. What's the last word in the circle?
s Q. Okay. All right. You said you're raising L., Kenning.
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Q. Oh, okay. Got it. Okay. It says, you've
got about four students with you at any given
point.

A. Right. Sc she's leaving a lof of students

benind, cut of 27 2% students.

Q. And those who are not with her are doing
what?

A. Either they're losf and

VOU
know, talking to somebody near them, trying tco

figure what exactly she's talzing about or

trying £o, you know, gef Becaus

think T notice down at I don't

get it and T

the line. You know, she said sorething like
fnat. And Stacy's response was, well, then come
sce me outside of class. PRat I was nohting, no,
the entire class would have to see you oat of

=lass then, because they all don't get 1, you

know, so ---

n, these are my notes
myself. T don't think [ wculd have necessarily
snowed these with her. I would have then tried
to turn them Into glows and grows. £ 12 things
aren't self-explanatory, it's probably because

it made sense to me &t *%ne fi

Q. Right above that it says, at 9:56, it's a

And I had a couple informal p.re

Page 112

Q. What are you hearing?

ZA. Can you please be our teoahor, Mrs.

Reinking? We're lost. We'rw - ried ab

taking the final or, you riwvw, just basically

anything that you wculd e that the sndents

would be saylng at this pc They were ocoming

up and saying that. Ard T'n "rying to $ay, we

nave to give her the benef:t .7 'ne doubl. You
¥now, we need to allew her t . -oaplete the
student teaching here. R~ 8
wasn't necessarily the stuics whon w
misbehaving. They were prorably enjoyinc having
a class period off where -t aidn't really have

to do very mucnh. It would .- more the stud
who were very concerned ap¢ .- *their grades anad
their content knowledge ara: o ing to collegs or

going on to some kind of sl ling, But yes,

“hey were raising some coL.w Ius.

gqriestions
where they were just woenderirg hew long was this

student teacher going tc s .y ard woiald the

students still be required :.: hrow Lhe sane

of content, basically expz: ing bne same kind

of concerns that their sor: :r daaghters w

have been expressing.

guessing game.

L. You know, where 1is the imzgery in this
passage? And they're just throwing oat
random --- they obviously have no idea. They

can't find iragery from

a docorknoh, so ---.
Q. All right. And in other words, Stacy is
failing in her responsibility to teach the
students?

A. Definitely.

Q. The last line says, the kids just shout out
in class.

of a

her ki

basic aspect of classroom maiagemenn to try to

get the studerts to ralse their hands she can

call on them so she cculd hear what they were
saying as opposed Lo having tae stadents just

chaotically shout ouft answers or shou®t cutr

questicns.
Q. And the last word is it's chaos.

A. Yeal, it fel: like

Q. Okay.

A, Uh-nun {yes;.

Q. Are you getting any feedback from ---
outside of class from students about this?

A. Yes.

Page 111 ;

I

-

[t}

[N)

FS

o
o

Page 113
Q. Okay. This is not an AP class. It's just
an honors ---?

It's not an honors.

Just a standard ---

A
Q
A. Right.
Q. --- college prep?
A

It"s kind of your aver-.g. dent whe wants

to go to college or your -vorsge student wha

might want te go tc colle s, out might wan- To

do a career --- vocational scneol instead or

something like that.

Q. Okay. On the next page, CVSD-219, I just
don't --- it says Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday,
Friday. What does it say to the right of that?

A. That for four days we ;

joun over

Beowulf and "The Seafarer”, wni-h usuai v weuld

have only taken maybe two {ays and shoual

only taken two days. So ['m ztarting to ralse
the concern that we're fa.l.i.g behind as far as
pacing gces because 1t's my regnirement, you

¥now, as the teacher of =h.

get from Anglc-Saxon, <he cc iinning of the

period, to the modern per i Palare they take
the final.

Q. Okay. So it's now ---7?
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Page 114 Page 116
1 A. This is prakably early ---. 1 test agairn.
z Q. This is now the end of February and you're - Q. Okay.
3 still in Anglo-Saxon poetry? 3 A. And then the attendarce --- we have to k
4 A. Righz, because we did --- we did kind of a 4 a roster cf who's in our clio cvery sinals cay
5 survey of all poetry pricr tc that, where we 5 and we have to have that r- Toogo In case
o were working through Keats and other poems --- 6 there's questions about cliss cuts or just Any
7 poets. 7 kind of attendance inguairy. Zfro The attendan:e
3 Q. Top left, you've got something written and 3 secretary needed the roster, and 357acy had Cst
9 then circled. What does that say? 9 it. So that posed a problir, a serious proplenm,
13 A. Can we take down the urns? FProbably fust 10 for the attendance secretary 1o po able Lo
11 bocause 17's two or three weeks old at that 11 verify whether or not the - 11 was in o
1z pulnt and the students corplezed like an L2 that day or those days.
13 artistic project, where i3 Q. Next it says, did not follow lesson plan
14 aotes on an urn, and it :conn 14 format for "The Seafarer", and didn't get to
i) poem, "Ode on a Grecian Jrn". So it's Zust a 15 riddles. What's that mean?
6 acte Lo myself. 16 A. 30 she would have preparuc 4 lesson plan in
7 Q. Okay. Center of the page, under 10 --- at 17 advance of teaching someth ' ug and then depnrred
18 10:27 in the morning, completed the poem. 18 from tnat lesson plan and 4'2 't do what she
19 What's the theme of the poem? Someone is 19 said she was golng to do anritg lLhat uni=, =0
z0 talking. Give her respect. And the students 23 that's a problem.
21 just keep talking. What's going on here? 21 Q. Ckay.
22 A. This ls --- there’'s no Judtaticn marks, but 22 A. And during that class verind, she was
23 I guess there should be. $3ne mignt have thrown 23 supposed to be able to get - “he riddles uni=z
24 01t the Juestion, what's fhe there ¢f the poem? 24 and because she's taking t: muon --- because
25 And a student started tc arswer and 23 things are taking toc muck - i~ or the pa is
T to the rest cf the students, somecnc i1s talking, 1 so slow, she's not getting . whai she said she
z give ner respect, like listen to her answer to 2 was going to oover.
3 wnat is the theme of the poen, but the students 3 Q. Okay. And what's the final note on that
4 Jjust xept talking anyway. 4 page about?
5 Q. All right. 5 A. At the end of the clasz, n{-er she taunzh:,
€ A. 1 was noting tnat they were packing up [ she would come up to me ari =1y, [ think flLat
7 early. T'm not sare exactly what tire tnat 7 went well, and she'd put me i 4ar. awkward
e block would have ended, but that was cbviously a 8 position because she clear didr't see ary of
9 problem, tnat they were pacwinag up and wrapping 9 the problems that were so tras. So Iosald,
10 up the course maybe belore tney should have. 13 yeah, lixe there were scme --- you znow, [
11 Q. And the next note, Stacy informed me that wanted to indicate that, Fhere were =oe
12 she lost a student’'s test, something for lost? good things about how that =1+, but tha- , nave
13 A. And lost the ---. 13 to go through some suggesti i with you. I nave
14 Q. Okay. And lost the attendance roster. I 14 some comments that I need ' 4o over with you.
15 need for the attendance ---. 15 Q. And you did make those suggestions to her?
16 A, Secretary. 16 B, Absolutely.
t7 Q. Okay. What happened here? 27 Q. And how did she respond to you?
pe:] A, Well, she lost a student's test, so the 18 E. I'm sure she just heard =~e and iike as ---
student spent his or her time cerpletrinag tne 19 ~here's kind of a record ar.w.rg here that, vou
20 test, znd she lost 1t. £o rhe student would z0n know, there's some things 'Fa! she would try to
21 nave had to have retested. &0 that's a problem. 21 implement, but there were zure +tnings that she
s Not a nuge preblem, but the student is acing to just didn't implement, she 4 dn't make hapwven in
23 have to retake the zTest. B&And they wou.d have the classrcom.

already seen all the ques: 18, 80 it would be

not hard for them to study ard then take the

Q. There seems to be a huge disconnect between

your observations of her performance and her
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Page 118

120

1 self-evaluation. 1 recanically failed, accerd. s tu the
2 A. Yes. Ard Sarry's, Zarry Clrvin's also. s that he filled out as far .=z state was
3 Q. All right. Go into same detail on that. 3 ol erned and as far as our «~vai:uatlons.
4 What's going on that you're saying? 4 In that situation, is there s.1¢
5 A. I can't really explain why it's happening, 5 precedent established wner~ we conld ther send
6 but she seems to pe clueless --- aiter a € her o the middie school ¢r pil har with some
7 lesson L1ike that, where tLhi 't [ kind of a placement where .re wonld be nor quite
8 gone very wel., for her to come ur and say that & sc challenged by the content ind ~culd focus
9 ske thought things went really well, aca’ 9 just on the classrcom man: Tont, as oprosed to
12 krow what that means, what she exacstly thought 10 having such a difficult tim. t ng te ugaole
11 went well, ecially when she departed from the 11 poth, because it wasn’'t wa:
12 lesson plan. I don't Know ! to explain what 1z Q. Okay.
12 was happening in her nead or how sho was 13 A. But because --- and als~ b=o 3 ny
14 assessing her texz ng pers 14 first student fteacher, ---
i5 Q. And you and Barry Girvin are having 15 Q. Right.
i€ conversations during this period of time, end of ; 16 A. --- s0 I didn't know wh-a: Uhe protoco. is
w7 February, early March? E 17 when this happens.
.8 A. Yes. : 18 Q. COkay.
] Q. What are you two discussing? 19 A. And I think he discussed . hat's ---
20 A. Well, we're siarting ~c gco up for the mid- 20 know, we try to avoid fthat el
21 evaluation because we need —o¢ oe able to oput Zi set her up for success il we ~an, and let's
27 scmethinc on paper for her zhaz's formal. 3So 22 up with some other solutic Tar how we can
>3 i'm --- arg --- T would a'ways get a z3 evaluate her ard how we car 7o her to grow and
24 copy of his evalunations a.sc when he would be in 24 learn as a teacher from ft?
25 ~he classroom, so I wculd see that he's trying 25 Q. And what was Ms. Buffington saying at this
Page 119 Page 121
1 <G, you know, peint out --- everybody is trying 1 point in response to these concerns?
2 Their best to out any-hirg pesit had &. 3he was just --- she just 7ad the exact same
3 she wouid do, but then wo aiso have —c¢ 3 concerns that I had, you kL w, That she was
4 ~he concerns, fthe qrowing co 4 worried about the quality :t fhe eoducation rhat
5 3¢ we would have peen in alalogue a [alr amcunt. 5 our students were receivinu, ally compared
€ Q. You and Barry? & to, you know, a student in
7 A. Uh-ruh (yes). 7 class acrcss the hall, that
g Q. In dialogue, meaning you would talk on the 3 that 1t's nct comparable.
9 phone, you would see each other, you would ] Q. Go to the next page, please, CVSD-220. This
.0 e-mail? 20 is Block Two, February 27, '06. Can you
o1 A. Probabiy jus: other. When he 11 translate --- are these criticisms? Are they
L2 would stop irn, he wou yoOu knoew, perform some 1z praise? Are they just general notes, reminders
-3 --- he stepped up his number of evaluations, I 13 to you? What is this?
_4 think, compared to what re did for other studznt 14 A. Well, she opened with gl iy the xids trelir
15 teachers, what's expected of nir, infsrmally zand 15 progress reports s¢ that thoy could see how They
1€ formally. So T wouald see himw ir amount. 16 were doing in the course a<- -~nat point, progably
17 Q. And at this point, it’'s still early March, 17 like & little bit beyond a4 mian~int in the
18 is there --- did you quys have a plan to improve 18 marking period, so again, ..
16 this situation? final grade for the markiw: j-riod.  She
20 A. I think the plans are the Zhings that I've assigned new seats. And tn. scmething tnat
Jap referenced so far, that we were gol try to we experimented with constar ly, trying to
Bped figure cut other teaching arrangements for her. change the seats of the st tienls as a cl
o3 And then I did maxe tne suggestion, 1s knis 23 management tcol. So she tmnoi me ap on tha
24 scmething that we do, yo1 xnow, at if --- at 29 suggestion. That all the atud who woere
25 the mid-evaluation [ kelievn she wou.d nave 25 failing, according to their prouress reports,
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1 she was requiring, as per my sugges-icn, To gen % 1 for the answer.
2 tne parent signature A8 a = z Q. And was she doing that in front of the
3 for the parents. : 3 students?
4 As far as students --- students were then L4 A, Yes.
5 guestioning the grading of the ZOLA -uiz, and i 5 Q. Below that it says errors on PP. What's PP
& she must have done & good job wind of bzcking up 6 stand for?
7 new she assigned point values tc diflerent 7 A. 2he made a PowerPoint ¢rosarlation fior fhe
8 questions on that guiz. 8 students, anrd there were «rrors —hrouaghourt it.
9 Q. Okay. 9 And Courtrney, whe would huaoe bkeer s pre -ty
10 A. She stressed acain that students need fo 10 gifted student in that clda.s ara pretty oo
i come see her and --- -0 2cme see her outside of 11 with grammar and punctua®: . mechanics 74
iz class if the struggllng probably, and 1z things like that, she was 1" ~hing the &
o3 s~udents werked cn ridadle fligurati language in 13 And I was just roticing st 4t least tha''s
i4 groups. 14 good, that somebody is pu.riius Hal
5 Q. It says, third line down, students seem to 1= 50 that the students aren'' !~ins misintormed
~€ be in control most of the time. What's that 1€ absout what's correct and »to-'s not correct.
7 mean? 17 Q. And how does Stacy react when a student
18 A. Wher she Is dlscu her grading vracrnices 18 catches her on an error?
L9 or wher. she's talking about tne timelines, as 19 A. Again, probably embarra Ut oa o H
20 1've said befcre, that the students can quest.on 20 ~imes she would attempt ¢ wofele T oor
21 and kird of cverride her decisicns. ZL give them misinfermation, 17 noo ‘ou
22 Q. Okay. And that's a problem? 22 know, at some points she’w = ard correcored
23 A, Yes. z3 which is probably what naptered nere.
24 Q. Go to the next page, please, CVSD-222. This 24 Q. Okay. And the bottom right-hand side, under
25 is Block Three, 3/1/06. At the top it says, had grows, okay, errors in PowerPoint, still not
Page 123 Page 125
1 to start late due to previous block's testing 1 getting lesson plans the day before during Block
Z situation. E 2 Four for our discussions. Sometimes I do, but
3 A. Uh~huh (yes}. ; 3 not always.
4 Q. What's that mean? : 4 Q. Uh-huh (yes). And there again, there's a
S A. Probabl.y that the test rarn late, --- 1 5 modification because, technically, the lesson
€ Q. Okay. : 6 plan should have been turned in, you know,
7 A. --- you “now, that the st:dents had to stay 7 by --- the day before, so that morning --- so
8 a little kit later unti: the klo. == B that I could have the day to look over it. But
9 Q. Okay. 38 I was actually just saying could you get it to
10 A, There could ke more =o that, but I don't 10 me by our prep period, the period that we have
1: rememper. 11 off, so that I can at least look at it during
1z Q. How about DOLA underneath that, I mean, that 12 our planning period and be able to go over it
13 just --- is that just an observation of yours? 13 with you. And she was still not doing that ---
14 That has nothing to do with Stacy? 14 Q. When Stacy ---?
i5 A. Right. Right. 15 A, —--- consistentiy.
16 Q. How about the next line, "Sir ---"? io Q. When Stacy is not in class and you're
17 A. "Sir SGawalin". 17 teaching, these same students who are giving her
18 Q. Okay. Stacy needed text to discuss. What 1% a hard time, are they cooperative with you?
19 does that mean? 19 A. For sure.
z0 A. They probably were just having a discussion 20 Q. Okay. Turn to the next page. This is
1 about it angd they wevre asuiny her gues-ions and 21 actually 253. At the bottom it says grows.
2 she wasn't apb.e 7o answer ~“ne guestinns, S0 =he 22 Many students are sleeping:; yes?
z3 needed --- she wasn't familiar enough with 1Lt 23 A, Yes.
z4 5o she needed to be able ro a0 back ana reread 24 Q. Still not sitting in assigned seats. 1Is
z5 the text or prchably & teacher's gulide 5 that happening as well?
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L. Right. 350 the students were moveld o

different scars ta avcid maybe disrupticns, sc
and sc¢ sitting nex:t e so and so, and they were

just -

;ing and sitting whearever they
in class as opposed to observing the assignea

seats.

Q. There seems to be a complete breakdown in

discipline.

ATTORNEY VOIGT:

tiexticn to the form.
2Y ATTORNEY KRAMER:
Q. Is there a breakdown in discipline in her
class?

A. As a petrtern thronghoul ---

Q. Yes.

A. --- throughout everything, yes.

Q. And it's getting in the way of the students

learning?

ATTORNEY VOIGT:

Objec=zion to the form.

3Y ATTCRNEY KRAMER:

Q. Is that getting in the way of the students
learning?

A. Yes,

Q. It says here, one of your --- now, this is

Page 127
in a box. Some of you are only thinking of
getting out of here. I'm feeling you. I'm
feeling you. What's that?

A. That's Stacy being a 3enior also,
—echnicaliy, in cc.lege, sc she's referencing

that the stud

think, prcbably, right 2t the top.

Q. Yes, it is. It is.

A. 3¢ you know, we're geTrting towara --- we'ro
in spring, and she's saying *.o the students that
3 trying to acknowledge that I'm sure

scme of you nave senioritis as well. I'm

feeline you. I have it, tco. You ", she's
trying to indicaTe Thar she knows what it's like
tc be a senior, nearing graduation.

Q. Okay. Now, this is the end of the notes
that I received dated April 5th, your notes.
A. Uh-hun {(yesi.

Q. Are there additional notes that you took
that you think you don't have, or would this
have been the end of the notes that you took?

A. I'm sure that =here are mo

Q. Okay.

A. --- bu:n

where they are,

Q. Okay.

Page 128
A. 1 couldn't find them a - oftar.
Q. Okay. And that would have been from April
5th through approximately when?
A. The end of the montn. s o=t of April,
probably.

Q. Is that when the student teaching ends?

A. Tha%'s about when it was --- T'm sure i1 was
wrapping up at that point, o+ 'uuse she would
have finished her placement "= first we of
May.

Q. Okay. The month of April that isn't here,

can you recall anything that happened of note
that reflected Stacy's continuing inability to
teach?

A, There could be from --- 1 =nink you have

probably a list of othar eiamp! >f lacks of

professionalism or lacks of

They woutd

be referenced on those pac:

Q. If you would turn to the next page. This is
CVsSD-194.

A. Uh-huh (yes). Can I &l Make 1t cleer nat
there's vrobably less notes alse perause T wanid
have begun to start takina i over some »f rhe
classes, so she would have oo

teacning tewer

courses at that point.

Page 129

Q. Why? Why is that?

A. That's just naftural. ¥ biild up ans ok
you build back down frem *hi. niamber of courzes
that you teach.

Q. During the time --- she was student teaching
in your class February, March and April. During
that time, describe how frequently you were
talking to Deann Buffington about your concerns
with Stacy's teaching.

E. On a weekly basis and pr.rao.y sometires

a daily or --- pretty regularly, T would trink.
Because as my supervisocr, ¢ - needs te kiow what

--- I feel like, you know, ftu

cltimately falls on me for wtat
learning and any kind ¢f purent or stude:
feedback that I'm getting, 5. sF2 rneeds to Le
kept lanformed for sure.

Q. And how about with Barry Girvin, were you
discussing these concerns with him during those
February, March, April ---?

A. Yes.
Q. Okay. You mentioned a couple of parents
called in.

A. Or it would be mavbe mor. s an informsal

type where maybe I'd be at a basbketball ga
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1 student kasketball game, and they'd be There il Q. All right. Most of this is
2 also, and tney would want to talk to Te zkbout 2 self-explanatory. We don't need to go into more
3 what's happening in oroat sume kind of 3 detail on this. I do want to know, on the first
4 atfzer-schocl functicn or Parents' Night, things 4 page, and you've got the first page of the
S like that. 5 evaluation, you've got letter grades on the
3 Q. And what would they tell you? 6 left.
7 A. Trey would Just raise the same kind of 7 A. Uh-huh (yes).
2 concerns that the.r sors c¢r daughters were e Q. And it looks to me like G is kind of an A, R
9 raising. And again, 1Tt was --- if wasn't that 9 is a B. I mean, what's the scale for this?
0 many. It wcou_.d propably be two or three. And 10 What is the ---?
s tney just wondered when was 1 going to pick bachk 11 A. To some extent, T think ==. Eiut 1 tnirk
12 ap witn the teachinag and what would the students 12 even 1f you note, for the i, ~oLtinued crnacing
13 be reqaired to know at the ernd of the course. 13 development is expected. yoi're expesTing
14 Q. Did any of them expressly reflect concern 14 that this person is going "<t zhle tc continue
15 about Stacy's performance? s on a path te, by the final ~wv.liztion, be :ble
16 A. Yes. - to complete that objective, | . e able to say
17 Q. How so? 7 that they know that or do "1a! or whatever it
1€ 2. By indicatirng -hat their sou or daughter was 18 is.
19 worried about, you knecw, not --- their grades 19 Q. Okay.
20 were dropping. A loi of the students' grades 20 A. And that there's good pr.oaress evidence. AT
21 weren't very good, so the parents cbviously were 21 this point, when you're de.. it with a suudenrn
22 concerned about that. 52 They were just werr.ed 22 teacher mid-evaluation, vyo..'ro no'. Joing tu try
23 ultimately for what was going to happen as far 23 to have grand expectations aim oy her.
24 as the students' academic record was concerned 24 Q. I see under preparation you've got an N next
25 and, like 1 said, preparaticn. 25 to number seven. That's under knowledge.
Page 131 Page 133

1 Q. Did you express your concerns at this point 1 You've got an NA and scme other ---. What’'s
z to anybody higher in the administration, higher z going on there? What are you trying to say?
3 than Deann Buffington? .3 A. That there are some arcas wnere significant
4 A. No. 4 or some attention --- signit .ant remedis~ion or
5 Q. The next page is CVSD-194. I don't know if 5 attention is needed. I have to say that -he
& you can read that. I really just want to know 6 letters on the left are impartan: and they
7 if you wrote this. 7 indicate something, but that “le ratives
8 A, No. 8 comments are the best way orrinicate
9 Q. Do you have any idea who did write it? This 9 somebody now they're dcing, ~hit fhose la
10 might be --- I'll show you a better copy. 10 are xind of --- a little k.t rivirrary or
11 Z. Does not respect professional bounaaries, a 11 abstract.
1 way tc she s scolally © 1 dor't even know Z Q. Okay. Go ahead.
13 where tha- came freom, I 2on't think. I don't 13 A, No, go ahead.
14 recognize the nandwriting. TIt's not mine. Il's 14 Q. Looking down on the right-hand side, which
15 not Deann's. 1'm not sure. 15 --- on both pages, really, on all three pages,
16 Q. Let's go on to the next documents, which is 16 if you would take a look at that, really, and
7 the mid-evaluation that you completed, dated 17 just focus on things we have not yet discussed,
18 March 20, 2006. And we're going to mark this as 18 issues that we haven't discussed already, if
159 cv-3. 19 there are any.
z0 (CV Exhibit Three marked for Z0 A. Tt's a bit of a repeat *7 1 ilor of what we
2L identification.) 21 discussed at this point.
oo BY ATIORNEY KRAMER: o2 Q. Okay.

Q. Did you write this whole document? o3 A. That seems to be a lcot of what we've
Z4 A. Yes. The narrative comments on the right I 24 discussed.
2h wrote. 25 Q. At the time you wrote this, I believe that
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was true and correct to the best of your 1 at that point.

observation and belief? E z Q. And what do --- do you file the document you
A. Yes. 3 wrote someplace after --- what do you do with it
Q. Did you share this document with Stacy? 4 when you're done discussing it with Stacy and

AL Ye And I have a copy of it. S Barry Girvin?

Q. And how did you share it with her? Did you [ A. That's the end of it. 1-.'s nw forma .
talk about it? 7 record ¢t %, I don't thin-, a1 --- yeah, &t
A. We would have had a fcrmal rmesting 8 gets a copy of it and Barr, =3 a copy ol it.
for Barry and for --- ¥r. Girvin, and £ Q. And you keep a copy for yourself?

to sit down and snare what we --- how she 10 A. Un-nuh ({yes).

self-evaluated and how we svaluared her. Ll Q. Okay.

Q. Okay. Let's go on then next, which is her iz E. And maybe this might ke :rpartant, thet from
self-evaluation, and we'll mark that as CV-4. 13 here I believe we tried tc wa-w ooming up with
(CV Exhibit Four marked for 14 some kind of a plan for St~ for the se
identification.) S 15 half of the placement. Beouure as 1

BY RTTORNEY KREMER: : 18 acxnowledged earlier, this wis ~-- she wasn'c
Q. And I don't know --- I don't want to go into 17 doing very weil at this pcirn' . Arnd we madc some
detail on what she wrote, but I want to hear 18 kind of a deal where we wer> q._nc Zo try “or
about the conversation that you, Barry Girvin 19 the final evaluation to or.y aT her arownh
and Stacy had when discussing the mid-term 20 and improvement from the m.3-cwaluation ro the
evaluation, 21 final evaluaticn so that she wouldn't have o
A. Just fhat Barry and 1T were on a same reep carrying arcund, you “now, black marxs from
page --- a similar page hecause he ana Z 03 the first ralf of her placarant, 3o that we
actuarly net before we wei_a have meT with Stacy 24 cculd really just look for t7.- wth and

so that there wouid pe no surprises as far as 5 improvement.

Page 135 Page 137

what I was evaluat:ng ner and heow I was 1 Q. Okay.

evaluating her, and how he was eva_ualing her. 2 A. S¢ that might explain =, “imes some of
And to some extent Rarry expressed the desire to 3 the things that we would referenced In the
mzke sure that we would be =1t with ocar --- 4 mid-evaluation weren't nec- ~ily brouzh* up
not necessarily cur narrative reposrt had to 5 again and, you know, hammersd on again iu tre
reflect the same tanings. We would be [ firal evaluation.

fer different things mavbe, but thaz cur 7 ATTORNEY VOIGT:

letters, the letters, ~he codes that we used 8 Excuse me?

would be pretty close. 50 you know, we went 9 LTTORNEY KRAMER:

cver that, and tnen he and I sat down and --- 1 20 Yes.

believe he or T went first. &and I know that she 11 ATTORNEY VOIGT:

went. last pecause she sald --- she sald 12 Could we jus:z take a shor:

something to the effect of, wow, 7y evaluation 13 five-minute break?

of myself is way “erent from what vou guys Z4 ATTCORNEY KRAMER:

hac¢ said. £¢ she ind:icated that she k

15 Absolutely.

gcing inte it. And then she would have worked 16 SHORT BREAK TAKEN

through her comments akout hersel?, but I think 17 BY ATTCRNEY KRAMER:

she was surprised to see the gifference In our 18 Q. At some point before May lst, we'll use that
evaluat:crns. 19 as the demarcation line, had you discussed with
Q. How could that be? I mean, what happened? z0 Ms. Snyder the importance of maintaining a

What did you think was going on? 21 professional relationship with her students and
A. I rea_.y was flabbergasied. . don't know z2 to not become overly familiar with them?

how to explain ift, And I believe kBarry —--- it 23 A. Yes.

seemed that Barry was as we.l pecause he arnd - Z4 Q. Describe that.

nad been giving her teedback for a couple weeks Q. Starting with that --- starting with --- I
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know that the --- we can go right to the MySpace 1 Q. There are marks on the resume.

incident, to allude to that some. Earlier, I Q 2 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
know that it had come up in class, that she had ©3 And actually, let's mark that .=

referenced that she had a MySpace page, and that (I cv, I

4 Five. Yes, ’

S I indicated to her in private after --- you 5 (CV Exhibit Five marked for
know, not in front of the students that I didn't FIY identification.

7 have a MySpace page, that teachers don't have 7 BY ATTORNEY KRAMER:

MySpace pages or shouldn't have MySpace pages 8 Q. Are these corrections yours?

that are really personal information, that : 9 A, Yes.

there's a boundary there, that you actually : 1G Q. Okay.

don't want your students involved in your 11 A. And suggestions, things --- | think what ---

personal lives to that extent. And I also 12 in my opinion, what it showe = nhat she's

indicated that I wouldn't even know how to get 13 comfortable enough with me bt coTe To me and ask

on MySpace or how to even check a MySpace page. 4 --- tc show me her persona. o

So I know that that had come up a couple times, 15 ccver letter and her resum-, ana _et me k

I think twice. 16 that she's interesting in .plyitg at that

Q. When, approximately? Mid-semester? 17 point, and I would be able - aive ner feeciba

A. Sure. Yean. ypanly. I doen't know 13 and give her anything from ry arience.

exactly when. 1 don't <hink I referenced any i 1e think I shared my cover ler =y and my resims

dates. with her and some of the m: er.ils that | w.ould

Q. Okay. What other --- anything else you § 21 have prepared for an inter: .

remember telling her about maintaining proper % oz Q. I see you've made a fair number of

boundaries with the students? E 23 corrections on the resume. A couple things,

A. Well, the --- or I <haperoned a : 24 just to clarify. Under teaching experience, it

dance and Staty wanted te chapercne that dance J35) says student teaching. You wrote something on
Page 139 Page 141

a.so. Tt was for a charity. And she had " the right-hand side, Y something. Do you know

2 irdicated that she kind of wantea tc get out é 2 what that says?
there and dance with the students, lixe dance i3 A. YF fragment. All the

4 while they were dancing. And I said, tnat's not 4 that, ycu know, 1it's nct ©
my role here. I'm actually chaperoning. T'm HEG Q. And is that the same comment that you made
a0t going to dance with ~he students. fo you ; 9 right below that, under pre-service learning
know, you want to cbserve thaet line. So T know - grades ten ---
thet that was discussed. Just discussicn of [ A. Yes.
persconal business, personal life, tnat that S Q. --- and 11? What did you think of her
wculd have come up. Presenting ycurself as a 10 resume when you first saw it? What was your
professioral o f 2.assroon as Ln 11 reaction?
like your at=ix VoL would have L1z . That she needed to clea - up and cat.h
been discussed. i 13 errors before she would a lis:ly show 1- ~¢
Q. At some point during the semester did she 14 anybody fcr an English positi ==
apply for a job at Conestoga Valley? 15 English teaching positicr.

A. She didn't officially apw.v, I deon't think, 16 Q. Did you find grammatical errors?

7 but that she was planning on it because she did P17 A. A couple. It was pret', wo.l proofrean. T
chviously show me ner cover letter and her 1ig mean, there were usage err rs wiTh words and
resume and ask for feedpack on that. I'm not 19 some punctuation marks ans jus= some kiad of
sure that she ~-- T don't know. She mignht nave 20 content issues that I thc we should worr
cfficially submitted her applicaricn. 1 out, capitalization, her
Q. What's on the --- go to the last three pages Z2 Q. How did she react when you made these
in the packet, actually. It's Stacy's resume 23 changes on her letter?
and a letter dated March 20th, 2006. Z4 4. I think she was prchac olul for <he
A. Uh-ruh (yes:. 25 help, for the feedback.

36 (Pages 138 to 141)

SARGENT'S COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.
814-536-8908




Page 142 Page 144

z Q. And then the next page, which is CVSD-246, 1 of professionalism --- unpr-f.ssional bo lor
z and we'll make that part of CV-5, this is a z or performance in the class T, I ser~ v

3 cover letter, your changes, revisions here as 3 and attached it.

4 well., Did you make those revisions? 4 Q. Who else did?

5 A. Yes. 5 A. I think Deann asked me “tr:acgn Kim, becanse
3 Q. Did you make them at the same time you made & he is cur director of --- 'r 1ot exactly r=al
7 the revisions to her resume? 7 sure what nis title is, th-~ aire-tor of haman

3 Yes. £ resources, something like 't.ar, and he ws:

9 Q. Any other ~---? Anything else you remember 9 have some specifics just f{+: =ls £ile abunt ---
12 about your conversation with Stacy on the 10 just to follow what was hayverng ab this

11 revisions of her resume and cover letter? ‘11 with Stacy Snyder.

12 A. XNope. 1z ATTORNEY VOIGT

13 Q. Did you ever talk to Ms., Buffington about 13 Ler me just object. Who was :3hirg

Stacy applying for a job in that general 14 for specifics? T missed t-2*.

L5 subject? 15 A. Kim Seldomridge.

e A, Sure. re la BEY ATTORNEY KRAMER:

L7 Q. And tell me, what was that discussion? 17 Q. Was he acting principal at this time?

& A. At that poinc, weuld nave iadicared that .8 A, No. Fe works in our di=*rir office, and

] she was interested ir applying and tr --- ar ] he's in charge of personnel m.-t=rs. Sorehow
20 maybe --- and Mrs. Buffirgton may have even come 20 his “cb must have covered ft._s.
21 to me and saia Thaz ; had indicated rthat she et Ooistrict solicitor, I thin-<, t-2. Is that
2z was planni app_ying 9e) possibie? I might be just mak: ~hat up. I'm
23 Q. Okay. o3 50rry.
24 A. Because how thaz would have involved Mrs. 24 Q. So you prepared the document CVSD-186?

Zg is that she would have warnwed to get o] A. Yes.

Page 143 Page 145

1 in and cbserve her, --- T Q. Did you prepare that by yourself?

= Q. I see. 2 A, Yes.

3 A. --- as you would any pcetential applicant. 3 Q. Well, let's go through the list. I don't

4 Q. And did that --- anything else that you know 4 want to go into detail on issues that we've

5 about Stacy applying for a job? 5 already talked about.

€ &, No. 6 2. Okavy.

7 Q. Let's go to the next, which is CVSD-185. 7 Q. So why don't you start going down the list.
38 This is an e-mail. 3 And if we discussed it and there's nothing else
9 OFF RECORD DISCUSSION 9 to add, let us know. If there's something to
10 BY ATTCRNEY KRAMER: 10 discuss, —--

11 Q. This is an e-mail printed from Deann 11 A. Okay.

12 Buffington's computer. We have two e-mails. 1z Q. ~-- then we'll talk about it.

13 The bottom one you sent to Kim Seldomridge, I 13 A. Do you want me to actusll7 read what Ir

14 believe the next one is Barry Girvin and Deann 14 says?

i) Buffington. 15 Q. Yes, so she can transcribe it. Well, you

_€ B. Yes. 16 don't need to read the whole ---
i7 Q. Tell me about this list, this document, 17 A. Just reference it.
18 including the next page or two. B Q. --- paragraph. Just reference it. The
19 A. Right. i9 first one about Ms. Snyder playing a song.
Z0 Q. What is it? “0 A. Right. The first one war «!lready cuvered
21 A. I was asked at this ncint, which would have 21 with the Ben Folds Five sori.

02 pcen May Sth, a Tuesday, the Monday to!lowing zz Q. Okay.
23 the discussion for when Stacy was notified tnat 23 2. The secend cne is in referen:e o an awkward
24 she wasn't going Lo be reporting back to z4 account ¢f a Valentine's [ua; thaz Stacy zave in
25 Ccnestoga Valley I was aszed to prepare a list 5 front ¢f the students and - o superviscr.
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Q. Which supervisor? 1 semester. Buf they really o..dn's

A. Zarry Glrvin, z at thls point, so it seemet .kt such a porsonal

Q. Okay. 3 thing to confide or to say.

A. And that made everybody, 1 thin«<, in the 4 Q. What's your concern about that?

room feel xind of uncomfortabkle, not sure 5 I didn't have --- you ki I wasn't

exactly what to say, and they weren't prepared € necessary thinking she shcou 7 be pulled cus of

for the answer they what, hanpened L7 student teaching because st <uid rnis, a1

was the students ‘ust said nrobal g knew that Barry Girvin was 3,29 to address this

15th, +he day after, veah, on February 15th, Ms. 9 with her and explain to hes: trar ‘nere's ‘us

Reirking, how was ycur vVa.erzine's Day? 10 some personal boundaries, i3 were discusaed, you

Thank yecu for askirng. They T~ smiled and 1l know, throughout the semes-e: -natr your p=raotal

that's basica’ly a_l <h wanted —o¢ hear. iz life is your personal 1ife i ir's not s osed

just wanted ¢ pe us and ask nme. 13 to cross over into the «l and thatr you

Q. Right. é14 don't want your --- you i'm otninki ¥

A, Ms der, hcw was yzur Valentino's Day? 15 don't want your students sta: ng derails o

And then apparently she [conkcd at me anid she 16 their Valentine's Day witl yi.. necessarily.

said, Z share with them what 7 said o you 17 Q. All right. It said here the students felt

earlier, what happened? And I knew what she was ig uncomfortable. What did you observe that made

hinting at pecause she had ocme in that day and 19 you think that?

told me abcut hew her & ine's Day had played 20 A. Just the gestures and X I The

out the night before. And beforc I could even 21 gave each other around the voor. And ageir,

answer, 1 ° i of lcoked over abt Barry e usually there would be lots o7 glancing bas. ot

Girvin, thinking, are youa serious? f23 me and lcoking to see what ~% reaction 2o things
&

want to say this to the xids? Before I <ould : would be. And I just sort .7 juf rmiy head down

even say aunyhhing, she hzd lzancned into the Z5 and felt kind of embarrassed oy fhe situat ion

w

s

-1

Page 147 Page 149

s5TOIY. 1 and didn't know exactly h sond, net thaz
Q. What's the story? ; z there was a need for me tc resoond at tha

A. Anc e story was something tc the effect j 3 moment, but everybody kind ~t Folt like, wow, we
that she went to diiner v a restaurant, her : 4 weren't prepared for that.

favorite restaurant, Darx with her 5 Q. Did you discuss this with Ms. Snyder

two sons and her poyfriend, and that he gave her & afterwards?

some gifts. But that when trey got there, their 7 A, No. T zalked to Mr. Girv it

dinner was ruained because her ex-nushand or 8 he was there and he's her s.ucrv.scr and he
boyfriend, her ex, ex-husband, was there with P9 could discuss that with her, =3 he did.

his c¢irlfriend, and that that just ruined it. 13 Q. And how come you didn't raise it with Ms.

They got up you know, the middle, without 11 Snyder?

finishing their dinner, paid their bill or 12 A. Because I went to Girviw «tourn it

didn't e J'm onot sure, ana 13 Q. Okay.

left and jus%t wen® tc a bow.irg alley and had 24 A. I dust figured I had pr:b-kly come ---
pizza and bowled. And it was kind of --- it was 15 come down on her, but T was “.aac

just kind of awxward be only known 16 explaining to her that her =r. far as
rer for, ycu know, a ceuple weeks at this peint 217 content or as far as professi-nalism wer

and it I diar't seen =thirg a teacher ; 18 concerned were not appropr.ial.. kne
wculd share with her students. ) would always be explaining "niugs to her.

Q. Would it have been okay if she had said 20 thought it might be good f+vr -er ' hear ir from
something at the end of the semester, or is this 21 her supervisor.

kind of thing really never appropriate for a : 27 Q. Did any of the students come to speak with
teacher? 23 you about this incident?

A. I don't --- I can't imagine why any fteacher Z4 A. No.

would ever share this at any point in the 25 Q. Okay. Let's move on to the next one.
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1 4. Yeah, this references the foul languiage and 1 noet to have osne and her ret«re¢ ~iac that she had
2 inappropriate weexend behavior tnat wouid be 2 one in front of the studen s ---
2 discussed around the room that she would rot 3 Q. In class?
4 address, she f ~urred a deaf ear *c. 4 A. --- 1n ¢lass and it had < oup that the
5 Q. The students would discuss weekend behavior S students might be talking .ircut thelr Myfpace
6 out loud? 6 pages and she would enter .r-. ~hat discuss
7 A. Yes. So corn a Monday morning cr a Mcnday 7 let's say. And I reminded -=r -~hat that was
e afrerncon they'a be talking about how they spent g inappropriate. She brough: - p again., And I
9 ~heir weekenda. Or on a Friday they'd be talk.ng G tried to --- the list I woul nave complotod,
10 apcut how they plannea tco spend their weekend. 10 you know, pretty soon after °he ident, s 7
11 Q. Okay. .11 would rely on this better :ian ny memory, lhat
17 A. And I would hear references tc it. And y 12 yau know, & student had sterved --- basically
13 krow, they'd be kind of loud enough to be hearc P13 that she was bringing up, wnioh of you was
14 but guiet, and she wouldn't ¢hodse to address 14 on MySpace page because or: =i ny ‘riends, you
15 that. But there's an inconsistency there 115 know, informed me that you ran Jp to them at —he
16 because also on ner des: endar, promincntiy 16 mall or something like tha -, houw it's explained
17 displayed on ner *teacher desx that sne brought 17 here.
18 lr, you know, her weekend plans sometimes would 18 Q. Okay.
19 be written ocut in large blc lerters. 3o it 19 A. And after that happened, :‘ha'. she was ©
20 would say The Village, The Vililage, across like 20 entering into that dialcgue sgain, yet aga_:n
21 her Friday-night plans, 30 3he wculd be 21 even after I asked her no- ., I went te .nunch
Zz indicating how she was spending her wi erd. o2 and I vented in the lunck :roor. in front of scne
23 And The Viliage is, ¢f ccurse, a nichtcoub 23 colleagues and said, I cac't b-iicve ——- © 't
24 and --- 24 know now to get through te ti:=: student feucher.
s} Q. Okay. 25 I mean, if I say it twice, tren sne sti_i

Page 151 Page 153

1 A. —--- like & dance club bar, so ---. i it a third time. She's still ~ourting

2 Q. Okay. z by talking abcut her MySpe.= page. I stiii rnad
3 2. The rext ore is the MySpace si<uation. Do 3 nct seen iu, rever went on r. try to find It

4 yol1 want me to ---7 4 Ycu know, I didn't even kro.w --- for all 1 kncw,
5 Q. Hang on. 5 there would be pictures of nher puppies on “nere.
& A. I'm sorry. The example kefore that is tnat G I don't know. So I had venred, Aud then tnat

7 twice Ms. Snyder used shaut up 2s a means to Jain 7 Friday evening I was out t.- and a

2 her students' zttenticn. Even taoough it was 3 colleague had called me and =..d, you ne jite}

9 addressed, she reverted tc if the second time. 9 see her MySpace page. of

10 Eer aeferse of that, wher 1 explainad tc her 140 the things that were on 1L, =t are, I

11 that I gidn't want her to use that as a 1 pnotocopied probably in iw-ament.

Jas CLassrcem manacerient Too., was that she used I Q. Who was that?

i3 that with her children ana 1» was natural, so A. Shaur Xarii. And at tha™ 1o0arn7, we made it
4 you know, that was her way of explaining why she clear to Mrs. Buffington. e wrinted it o1t and
15 resorted to that. And then tazt led to students brought it in for her to And then [ sust
16 ir the class tnen asing shut up as a way of : 16 turned it over to her and :n- ‘% in ner fra
17 artention or quieting ¢ 17 and let her decide what sh.i. (1 happen at tha-
iR i€ point.
13 Q. Let's go on to the next one. é 19 Q. Did you ever see the MySpace page?

A. Do you want me to plain the whole % 20 A, I do thirk I did. I've wuer ) UNCiear

21 situation? + 21 about, like, did I actually = =5 and try (o

Q. Yes, please. find it, but I think T prolan’y went on ara

k. So after at least disoussions, ana I tried to find it because —ha 'z 1St my narure.
24 think it was two, twe discussions with Ms. It was over the weekend. &~i.t ~hat's how thas
25 Snyder regarding the Mysp page and whether or material actually surfaced a7 onsstoga va.
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1 {CV Exhibit Six marked Zor 1 chat that content can get .. into trouble.

2 identification.} 2 That's --- as the media pcii s cah for ofher

3 Y ATTORNEY KRAMER: 3 professions as well. TIt's k- ua oI a hot-bairton

4 Q. Okay. I'm going te --- and this is part of 4 issue.

5 CV Six, but this is a page ---. If you'd look 5 Q. Right.

6 at --- is that the page that you recall seeing? ¢ A. 3¢ that was frustra-inc. d tnen she

7 A. Yes. That weuld have been, vou rknew, out 7 references the fact that there zre pigtur »f

2} and pasted from the Internet onto, lixe, a 8 her drirking on there, tha she lLas nothira tc

9 decument and then printed oo, 9 hide b use she's saying s 's s 21, and

10 Q. Okay. You may have answered this, but did 10 that anything that she says lere can't hure

Tl you actually see the MySpace page on the 11 her in the long run, meanira orocably ours

2 computer —-- 12 her student. teaching placem=: . 5S¢ it's rins
A, Yes. 13 that students can be

14 Q. --- or you saw it after printed out? i 14 pictures and hearing

1= A, I saw 1t on The corputer. 15 each day.

16 Q. Okay. And what did you see on the computer 16 She doesn't think that any of ne » students

17 screen? 17 wolu.d stoop 80 low as to mess «_Lh her future,

18 A. Lire DLog entries, maybe plctures ¢f hev e meaning c<all her out, actu: y go in and fs
friends, lixe who the different people are that 19 the teacher that they have «««1 ner My3pa e page

o are commenting Lhat she's dialoging with and 20 and there's pictures of her posing with drinks.

21 photos of her posing wlth cups. 21 And she says, so bring on f-e love.
Q. Was that one of the photos you saw? And here she's reterencing thut k.ad of

Z3 A, Yes. 23 hopes tc start using this as o . for

24 Q. And the text underneath that, was that on 24 commurication with her stuo 1035, cspecialiy

25 the MySpace page as well? 25 after --- she says, I flgu:: a ouuple stude s

Page 157

Page 155

i A. That picture may have be ocver Tc the --- 1 will actuaily send me & mes=ige when I'm 1o

- yoa know, to the side, aud when that was the 2 longer their official teachsr, whez she's no

3 blog entry on that page. T'nm really not --- 3 longer the professional ir trom of the

4 cther than 3oing on this one tine, 1've never 4 classrcom.

5 been on MySpace since, I ann't I'm rot 5 And then she references, the «' idents keep

6 that famiiiar with It. € asking why 1 won't apply t~ I~ *ne teacher

k Q. So that's a blog entry, as far as you know, i there, because it was wel) LW That thers was
B8 the text? P8 a zeacher retiring within <t derartment and

3 L. Right. 9 tnat we would need to have - :=apl:cement. And
10 Q. Ckay. 10 she says that --- she's pcsiug « auestion, I
e A. Where she would keep track of how she feels, 11 quess --- I don't know to wbem, aryone whe
12 almost like a diary entry, I think. 1z reads her blog, I guess, wo..wu [t hurt her to
13 Q. And tell me what's inappropriate about this 13 tell the students what the r=:l resscen 1s for
14 whole scenario? 4 why she's rot applying or w: rrebler

15 A, Well, it's referencing that sne xnows that 15 irdicating some person.
16 students are on nere 1odking at ner page, and 16 Q. What does that mean to you?
17 ~hat's fire. that's 17 B, I'm --- it's cryptic. 'm taffled by |
i8 that I had asked her tc dc. And after the fact, Le I'm not sur but maybe she's “rying to

19 in discussing tnis with Barry Sirvin, I had 19 reference me or she's fryiru ' reference some
20 learred that Millersville had advised 1ts P20 kind ot ¢V official, I wouid triuk. Becanse why

student teachers --- yzu kncw, =that they had 21 else would she be worried ar it telling ~he
7 put out at that opening seminar kbefore they went 22 students? So my best way ! r-:3a “his is
3 out te s:tudent teach, that they haa discussed 23 obviously, she's probably *u.king about me a
24 that MySpace pages were inappropriate, rthat 24 this point.
25 they're --- you know, you shouidn't have them, o5 Q. How did you feel when you saw this?
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1 A. I kind of had spent the entire semesfer N don't know wny she's not 1 stening to me. ho
2 working pre=ty hard to help her ger rthrougn 2 referenced her MySpace pags aia
3 student teaching enT, ana it felw kind of C3 brought up just in kind of ---
4 lite 2 stab in the back, ospecially ~—- =here's o4 dialogue with ner abouf her :nrofessionslism or
5 ancther document where she referer 'm i her lack of content. T'm =nr” It probab_y ame
3 the worst student teaching ao-op ever or 6 up, but I don't have any sp=ciii recollection
7 something like tnat. 2nd tnar blindsided me as 7 of lt.
e well, becauase I fthought tnat I nad --- I thought 8 Q. Any parents contact you about the MySpace
9 T had tried to be as kind to her as possible and 9 -
10 give her every benefit the doubt roughoun 0 A. No.
11 the piacemert. i1l Q. It seems that your primary concern --- well,
1z Q. Are you aware if --- it references there 12 your primary concern was that she had gotten too
13 that one of her students was loocking at her 13 personal with the students with this ---?
11 MySpace page. Are you aware if other students 14 ATTORNEY VOIGT:
15 saw her MySpace site? 15 Objection to the form.
16 A, I'm ot sure how many wo or. 1€ BY ATTORNEY KRAMER:
P There. w7 Q. What are your primary concerns about the
8 Q. Okay. So there may not have been any 18 MySpace episode, if you will?
3 others, as far as you know? 19 A. It was consistent with hL.un <l a long-
20 A. As far as --- 1 me think aboat that for a t 2o running list of examples, i: my cpinion,
21 second just to meke sare, kut no, T odon't know t 21 being overly familiar wi Che stadents Ana ust
22 exactly now many students would nave ooked. o2 inviting the studerts i: Lor o personal Jlte,
23 Q. Okay. You told her --- before this came to and then ccupling that witn, bviously, pl-tures
o your knowledge, you told her, it seems at least 24 of her drinking isn't inappr:jroate. And toen
’5 two times, not to have a MySpace page? 25 this raference at the very .1 “han she's
Page 159 Page 161

1 A, Rignt. Not to discass it with the students. 1 ~o kind of use this as a v ». !o maybe gu arcund
2 Q. And did she discuss it in class on Sseveral o me and have --- turn them stome. Yoo knoew,
3 occasions? 3 I don't know exactly what's =ho's planni:g on.
4 A. Tt had been referenced twice s.ass. 4 I'm just guessing. But yexn, thuse were ail
5 That's what prormprea rie ©0 explain T¢ her thar 5 proplems. And just her £z’ ..ro ' listen o me
[ that's not appropriate. £And by this --- this is & when I explained to her th.- -his is
7 the tnird time when she had indicated the third [ inappropriate. She's cabing my advioe.
g time that the students were lusking at it 3 She's not listening tc ny vrofessicnal judoment,
9 Q. Before this picture --- before you got this 9 Q. I don't see, at least on that page, a
140 picture, are you aware --- have you seen any ~0 reference to alcohol. Why do you believe she
1 other pictures from her MySpace account? 11 was —-- I'm presuming when you say she was
12 A. YNo. P1z drinking, she was drinking alcohol and not, you
13 Q. Did any students come to you and say they 13 know, grape juice.
14 had seen her MySpace account? 14 A. she's referencing the fuot thal she's cver
15 A. No. 15 21, and that 1is the legal 7~ *o drink. TInat
e Q. You said one --- Shaun Karli had given you - 16 pilcture, she's xind of pos:i: i1 a goofy wuy
17 -~ had told you, you might want to look at her 17 with a cup that has someth:og in it. Anc crher
1€ MySpace page? 18 piectures that were later drooped by
19 A. Right. ] capticns, drunken pirate any “nings .ike !hat.
oG Q. Did you discuss Ms. Snyder's MySpace page 20 Sc I think that makes it .2 «Ff opvious that
21 with any other Conestoga Valley employees? z1 she admitted that it was a..otol in the cup.

A. No. 2 And there were other pictu:c s, obviously, o +the
23 Q. How about with Deann Buffington? 23 web site, and 1 didn’'t =ak- t:e time to pos-©
24 A. She wou.dn'- have been at that _unch wher I them all in and didn't thin< i~ would turn into
o5 would have had --- wher 1 would have said, I i o5 a federal lawsuit.
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Page 162

Q. Who knew? Did you and Ms. Snyder discuss
this?

A. No.

Q. Never?

A. No. Because I came in Monday morning ana

made sure thaft Mzs. Buffi »nogaw 1T, And T

believe she was there That morning and then
needed to leave for a doctor's appointment or,

¥ou know, there

something going on tnat she

was leaving early that d tecause she wasn't

well.

Q. Okay.

- !

~1

within --- you know, that ;m
~hat I report to, that I 40.'1 go ¢ Dooior

Huesken, the superintendert, need

sorething. That that's jusr 7ot bthe way thar it
happens in the professiona. wirld.

Q. Let's go on to the next one about her
professional attire.

A, There's a reference tc -

wore flip-ficps to school, =i 1t t's noT

professicnal teaching atti-e. Ard This one 2st

references the fact that siv. --- she was looking

for every opportunity to b

A. Ard ther T believe she ¢ a phone call at 13 or to be able to wear fjean:, when _nose

home. But all ¢f that to late cutside of my 14 opportunities are provided tundralsers,

--- I wasn't Irnvolved in It. AL nat py.nt =T 15 basically, for a scholarshi: @ ad 110 the

was out of my hands. 16 teacher's pay in advance t/. L« able te dress

Q. Okay. Before we get into that, let's finish 17 down or. those days. It's u ' e

with this page --- the other page in front of 18 scmething that they just --- Warts

you, CVSD-186. 19 To let you let loose a coul 1o Lin=s a yedr.

A, Okay. 20 They're profiting because re going Lo raise

Q. Okay. Frequently Ms. Snyder went above me 21 money for a scholarshiv. =1 typically stuasnt

for answers to issues concerning my classroom or feachers don't necessari 1 advantages «f

her time at Conestoga Valley. What's that 23 those kinds of days, becaus 'any're lecking for

about, and have you ever discussed it with 24 every opporiunity they carn t- sepurate

anyone else? 25 themselves from the studer- s ana o just bLe
Page 163 Page 165

A. We did discuss the & ample. We didrn't 1 professicnal act times. . they're alway

discuss the fact Lrhat Ms. Snyaer had gore to 2 on their best behavior. Tiey're —rying to

Mrs. Buffingzon, Toome, wno has no offlcizl 3 always put thelr best Ioot larward.

capacity as far as her student teaching is 4 Q. And that's not how Stacy was behaving

concerned, other then, you snow, being my 5 during ---?

supervisor and the sapervisor of the department, 6 ATTCRNEY VOQIGT:

to ask her if she could, after c¢cradua-inc, i Cbjection to the form.

remain at Conestocga Valley ara tcach my courses g BY ATTORNEY KRAMER:

for me. 9 Q. Was that how Stacy was behaving during the

Q. What does that mean, teach your courses? 15 semester?

A. Just Co continue as the teacher ¢f thosc 11 A. In reference to her wan' ing to wear jo

courses. oz Q. Well, more in reference to wanting to be

Q. Was she asking for your job? 13 very friendly with the students.

A. In essence, she wanted to stay on and just 14 A, I think that --- yes. it o Ehink that Lt

centinue working with tne students and 15 even falls maybe a little o't ¢ ir linc with

teachirg, which Isr't even vpcssible and it 36 the next point, ---

dcesn't maxe any sense, but ---. 17 Q. Okay. Go ahead.

Q. Okay. 1€ A, --- wnich references the it that she

A, It's a iivtie cut of touch. I don't know 19 didn't understarc tha®t she 4z atudent ~eacher

why she would do that. That's xind of strange. 20 and not actually a profess:.nal staff member who

Q. What's the concern about her bypassing the 21 was hired to teach at that r:is at Cones-oza

appropriate chain of command? 0z Valley. 8o she didrn't rea ire thaft maybe when

A. 1 think that that ird of 1 ‘ander 23 she was at a faculty meeting »ud there were

professzcoralism ard her ‘nabllity =o nnderstanda 24 issues being discussed fror ifhe tal. semes:ar

where she ls in a professionrnal cap Z5 that she --- when she wasrn'- 1. placed a
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student teaching in a professional

that she maybe shoaldn't raise her hand and
comment ¢n it, that that wasn ecessarily her
raole at that pcint in that meeting.

a department meeting, where we were

talking about ccurse selaction materia_s for

next year or instruorional mate

be ralsirg her harna and maki

suggestions because she's nct nececssari
t¢ be at Conestoga Valley next year. 3o it

seemed lixe there was always situaations where

she --- there were a number ¢f situations wh
she dida't urc tana that she wasn't --- That
she wasa't actua-iy --- 2 d ~ know how to savy
ir T'm losing my words. 7 grcbably said it

better here, aatually.

Q. All right.

A. The forwardness I guess is xind of what I'm
getting at and lacx to

procegdure ---

Q. Okay.

A. --- and prctfessicnal ooundaries. That's

wnat I was looking fcr.

Q. Let's go to the last one.

A. End that cr Information that

ved Zusrt

came to me, that [ knew that on that May 8th,

tnat Monday that she was asked 1f she cou.d

leave for an 11:30 docter's apgeintment, but

that my degartment nad <come up o me and --- a
said

2N

department member had wome up to Do

that they overneard a phone rersation where

at

the appointment was actually

but that she wanted to _eave at 11:37.

Q. Who teold you that, what staff member?

A. Arastay Bcrden,

Q. Spell that.

A, A-R —--

Q. Okay

A. -- A-S-H-A-Y

Q. Okay

A. A-R-A-S-H-A-Y. Border, Z-0-3-z-01 -—— cr
3-0-R-D-E~-N. actually deceased, s0 you
won't be able to ask her.

Q. So I guess we're not going to depose her.
All right. Are there any --- we've gone through
a very long litany of deficiencies on her part.
Are there any that we haven't already discussed,
that we haven't talked about on this page or

that we haven't previously talked about with

Page 167
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respect to your notes?

A. No. Nothing is Jjumping oo al me.

Q. Okay. CV-6 is the e-mail and unprofessional

behavior, performance in the classroom. Was
this included in your e-mail?

ATTORNEY VOIGT:

This being what?

ATTORNEY KRAMER:

This being the picture of Sty on
MySpace and the bloeg.
3Y ATTORNEY KRAMER:
Q. Did you include that in your e-mail?
A. I think I had ---

I diai'r fkave an

electronic versicn of it, i~ .1 the doo.ment

CvsDh-186¢ I say that the ooy some ol 1he
account’'s content is inclided.

Q. Ckay.

A. So that's probably wha- 7' roferencini.  So
he did have a copy of tha -, Mr. “eldomri

Q. And then finally there's the song by Ben

Folds that you reference in your —---7?

A. Uh-huh ({yes).

Q. Okay.

A. Yes.

Q. Now, --- and this I think would probably be

Page 169

pretty quick, you --- Monday morning you went to
Ms. Buffington?
LA, Yes.
ATTORNEY VOIGT:
Objection. Monday morning ---0
BY ATTORNEY KRAMER:
Q. Monday morning, on approximately May ---
A. Eighth.
Q. --- May 8th ---
A. Uh-huh (yes).
--- you went to Ms. Buffington?
A. Right.
Q. What happened?
A. | showed her the picrturs aun

Tne contar

from the MySpace page, and &sn fosk over =t that

and I think discussed --- oprobably

pc weni. Lo

Doctor Huesken or to Mr. X:r u=ldeomridge arc had

gotten in touch with Mr. Cirvin

should happen with Stacy,
corncerned.
Q. What,

if anything, did Ms. Buffington say to

you in that May 8th discussion?

A. Nothing specific, just Liab ane —--- you
know, that she supported wv and she thought that
this was kind of the last st last

SARGENT 'S COURT REPORTING SERVICES,

43 (Pages 166 to 169)

INC.

814-536-8908




2

4

w

z5

Page 170 Page 172
example of unprofessioralism. Anc we were in 1 Q. --- the MySpace picture ---
the last week of zhe student teaching placement Z A. No.
as well, and there wasnp't any real need fo have 3 Q. --- or anything like that?
her actually in the classroon. had 4 A. No, nothing.
compieted as much as we cculd get her to 5 Q. Have you spoken to her since then,

npiete at that point, sc it was 3 pretiy casy © telephone?
decision te have her nct come in for the rest of 7 A. No.
that week. 8 Q. Okay.
Q. Were you involved in that decision? 9 A. We had a final evaluati-n moeting on, |
A. Nc. 10 think, Thursday, May llth.
Q. Whose decision was that? 11 Q. Okay.
A. I con't know. I don't know whose ultimate E 12 A, I Qould have seen her jast time.
decision it was. 13 Q. And we'll get to that. This letter of
Q. Do you have any role in whether a student 14 apology, what do you know about this?
teacher passes student teaching? 15 A. All I know 1s that it was sent te me, you
A. No. 16 know, that discussions had ensued with Rarry
Q. So in other words, you don't recommend, in 17 Girvin and maybe potentia!lw ie from
this case to Barry Girvin, that Stacy pass or 18 Miliersville, but I'm not sure, and poten.ially
not pass --- 19 Kim Seldomridge as well. ~ight have made
A. No. 20 some of the contacts. I'm nt sure. Anra thats
Q. --- her course? Okay. 21 was her explanation of --- <Zhis is her
A. Just to do the final evaluation with ny 2z explanation of her weeks =l restoga Valley,
narrative comments. 23 wnat happened, I guess.
Q. Let's go to the next document, which is 24 Q. And what is your reaction to her apology
printed from Deann Buffington's printer. This 25 letter?

Page 171 Page 173
is the apology letter. L A. Well, the apology is resi!y only the scoond
A. Yes. Pz paragraph, and then the third and fourth

ATTORNEY KRAMER: P33 paragraphs are just descriirt:ns of her

We'll call this CV-7. l experience teaching, and it's Lol rneocessarily an
(CV Exhitit Seven marked for 5 apolegy, I den't think, fr.m taners on out. Rut
identification.) 3 that secord paragraph, I gicss :s where she
BY ATTORNEY KRAMER: 7 explains that she takes ful!l r-=sponsibility and
Q. This was sent to you along with other 8 she's willing to live with ihLe =ensequences of
people? 9 her actions.
A, Yes. 10 Q. Did you discuss this --- the May 10th letter
Q. And you received it on or about May 10th? with anybody else?
A. Correct. A. No.
Q. And did Stacy tell you that she was writing i3 Q. Okay. What do you --- here we now sit,
an apology letter? 14 almost two years later. What do you think about
A. No. ¢ 15 this in retrospect, this letter?
Q. When was the last time you saw Stacy Sanyder? lée A. I really don't nave any --- T still see
A. Monday, May 8th. 17 errors and usage problems ..o just see --- I
Q. And the context of that final interaction 18 see that Stacy was tryirg "« --- she wasn'®
was what? 13 explaining. I'm not even =ure exactly wha- she
A. Just her explaining rhat she reeded to leave z0 was aware of at that point. 1 don't know “hat
for a doctor's appointmert and that she wasn't 21 she knew what was going to happer as far as

feeling well.
Q. And at that point, you --- I see that you
and she had not discussed ---

A. Anyutning.

Millersville was concerned. 1 have no ldca. I
don't even know what prompted her —o write tnis,
if someocne suggested that ' v or 1f she was

Jjust feeling guilty or saa or renfused or ---
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I'm not sure.
Q. During the course of the semester, did she
appear to you sad at times?

ATTORNEY WOIGT

Objection, speculat.l

BY ATTORNEZY XRAMER:

Q. You can answer. Did she appear to you sad?
A, Would she be, like, depressed pericdically?
Q. Yes. What was your --- I mean, you saw her
almost every day for several months. What were
your observations of her?

A. She was a bit mopey sometimes because she

krew that she wasn't doing that well, as far as

student teaching was concerned, after the

mid-evaluaticn and thal she was tryling to
express that she was Trying to improve and

trying to do things different: but that the

students weren't necessarily receptive or that
she was just lacking in content. 5o she wouald

kind of appeer & little sad ab

And unfortuanately, T den't «<now why I needed

to know ner personal irs, bat I guess she
felt like she could confide in me or that thasz
was appropriate to taik —c¢ me about That, thar

she was --- a:z --- she and

&

=

7

Page 176

A. This is my own work, ant i~ uld have begun

prior to the MySpace inciden*. [ would &:

begun to work on this prob«b sy 1 mid to

April and would have wrapped it .p and < inued

to work on it up to the evilii'_.on zeview, wnich

would have been, I think, -~ Thursday, Thursday
the 1llth.

Q. I don't see a reference anywhere in this
document to the MySpace incident.

A. Right.

Q. Am I wrong? Am I right about that?

A. You're correct. And th. =noe for tne

professionalism category, -t-=ra's refererces o

her having poor judgme

am: tu regard to

specific instance, and I re:-renced the PA Code,

Section 4({p) (8), and that . she will ‘earn

from this experience and that sne was
unsatisfactory in these arcas. FRut I don't xnow
if I asked scmeone 1f 1 sa.ildn'+ vut that on

there or if I just --- I d..x'vm have a lot of

space, S0 it wasn't --- and I -don't know that Lt
was necessarily appropriat: ' . write that :n
there.

Q. Okay.

A. T didn't know what the --- kncw, wnat

her boyfriend had broken up. And she had also
shared this with her students, because the

students told me that. 35o I guess sne was sad

toward the end of the placement because of that,

put I don't have an

other rmments to make.

Q. The students told you sometime during the
gsemester that she told them she and her
boyfriend had broken up?

A. Yes.

Q. And how did the students react to that?

&. Just kind of surprised to have that

relationship wizh someone “ha~ they even knew
that private business of a -eacher.

Q. Let's move on a couple of pages back to
your final evaluation.

A. Ckavy.

Q. We're going to mark this as CV-8B.

(Cv Exhibit Eight marked for
identification.)

BY ATTORNZY XRAMER:

Q. Did you write this whole thing, Mrs.
Reinking?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you do this alone or in consultation

with anybody else?

Page 175
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3

the ramifications would ke, 3> --- as far
privacy or something goes, tuat [ have to stress
that this is the document fral people wio are

receiving her application '. teach at their

schools, that this is --- thal 'ney would place

a lot of stock in the final

:ning eva.na- ions
because they're served on Lanber of hi-ing

committees, ---

Q. Okay.

A. --- who have seen wvariou: ztudent teaching
final ewvaluations from cardid<tes. And *hey
would put a lot of emphasic on ~hey

performed in student teach 3, ard then they

would also look for recomme

letters,
particularly from the ccop:ta~ing teacher,

because that would pe thei~ best understanidd

with that teach --- that 1~

ability, so ---.

Q. Did stacy ask you for a recommendation
letter at any time?

A. Nc.

Q. The one specific instance that you referred
to, is that the MySpace incident that you're
referring to there?

A. Yes.
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Q. Okay. But overall, under professionalism,
she had --- the first four grades are
unsatisfactory. How did you come up with those
unsatisfactories? I mean, what was your
thinking?

A. When I read the criteria and you read what

satisfactory says, it says that the candidate

rarely, never,

iately or saperficially

demons.rates T

Lrators of performance.

based 2u s¢ far at

this depositi deserved the

ursatisfac

Q. Separate and apart from the MySpace posting?

ATTORNEY Vi

Page 180

documents at that meeting?

jast this.

A. No,
Q. And tell me how the meeting went?

tacy was very sad and avclogefic seenving. C

39

A.
don't know that she necess.i>

she might have opéened up aind

apclogy letter the day bef-

referenced that cr ---. A

understced, as I exp:ained r, ‘hatr [ rrieq
te give her every benefit - : 'ae donbt st’.! oo
this final evaluation and 'rica "¢ still see

where I could still give
superior ratings so that

gloss over the fact that

5 Objection wc *he torr. exanpies of growth since
16 ATTORNEY KRAMER: ~hat I tried to indicate
17 I didn't ask a guestion yerl. at this point, I didn't xn .
18 BY ATTORNEY KRAMER: 1g she'd be an applicant Zor « "= 4. some poiut
19 Q. Separate and apart from the MySpace posting, 19 or, you xnow, she would ne
0 would your grades have changed? 2a she --- I remember her smi!.
ol ATTCRNEY VOLIG 21 saying, thank you, you kraw
Ccjection to the form. her that courtesy, which I =hqiid
23 BY ATTORNEY XRAM 23 Q. And this document, the final evaluation, is
24 Q. You can answer. 29 used how in terms of someone getting a job?
25 A. Would my grade have changed? 25 A. Oh, it's just part - materials thal
Page 179 Page 181
1 Q. Well, you got four unsatisfactories here. 1 would be --- that any schaol 4 want tz
z A. She woulc have still peen atisfactory. 2 as far as a teaching applicais rtfolio
3 Tt would be hard Lo say where she Ldn't have 3 cencerned.  They would wan: ow how that
4 been and when she woaidn't h Du'. she 4 student completed student “eu hilng.
Z st 12 weuld nave received unsati in sore S Q. And how would one of these panels get a hold
3 of the areas under pro ionalism. [3 of the document, this final evaluation?
7 Q. So I want to understand to what extent, if 7 Z. She would submiz It. e wald submic -
8 any, the MySpace posting helped make your € with her application. Or <+ Ihi interview sho
9 determination of her grades here? El would have it in her port: 1.
10 A. It was just one more, maybe more serious and 10 Q. Is there anything in the document, this
11 more cbvicus aspect of her unprofessionalism, 1: final evaluation, that you would change at this
put it was jusT ore more example aft a 12 point, or at the time was it accurate and
13 semester of examples of unprofessiorallisn. 13 correct?
19 Q. Did you discuss this final evaluation with 14 A, I think what my --- my ..., --~ ny fl
Ms. Snyder? 15 person is that I probably - "o be a liviie
i€ A. Yes. le tco soft or a lirtle toc lenieat or a iir<le *oo
17 Q. And that was at the final meeting? --- not even too complimer- .., but “ried my
18 k., Yes. 18 hardest, because it was swu N ~hward,
] Q. And that was on Thursday of, I guess, LY unfeortunate situation at ti« ! tne
20 May --- o0 placement, it had beea sucst. cle, thas oy
o1 A. Eleventnh {(1litn). 21 the end I tried my hardest ‘.. jusT try o
Q. --- 11th? Who was at that meeting? highlight anything that was r--a-ly positi in
23 A. I was. Mrs. Buffis I'm pretty 23 her and that T didn't incg: any-hing from the
24 sure, and Mr. Girvin 24 first half of the student t. a placemen- .
25 Q. Did you discuss other evaluations or 25 But the only thing that I wouid n -==
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Page 182
have gone iower ¢ a cf her criteria over 1
on the lefc.
Q. And where? What would you have done? 3
£, And it wouldn't have dropped s—gnificantly. 4
It would he —he Giffer bhetwe 4 supericr 5
dropping To a Jomnpetent. I —r.nk probably put 6

Sno-—- { tThirk I Dut unsat
place that avso.ute:y had
recorded.

Q. We don't need to mark th

this is a document, probably the next --- let's 11

see what we have next.
A. We have ---.

Q. This is actually Ms.

isfacuory down

to nave u tisfactory 8
9 A,

is necessarily, but 15

Buffington's printer.

BY ATTORNE

This is after she's been

student

2 dated May 1lth, CVSD-183 and 184.
mark this as CV-9.
(CV Exhibit Nine marked for

identification.)

XRAMER:

communications?

Tedc

ing.

sald initially.
12 Q. Yes.
1z WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT
Snyder's response to 14 . Okay.

And T reed to

Page 184

The e-mail was from you,

And we'll

! Q. What is the context of these e-mail

from

read what T

summary of unprofessional behaviors. 15 3Y ATTORNEY KRAMER:

2. 15 befors. 16 Q. What's going on in these e-mails?

Q. Okay. That was my question. If you go to 17 A. This is just a discussi~n .n the day of tne

the third page or incident number five, 13 final evaluation. That moring she had sent 7Te

myspace.com, third line, Mrs. Reinking never 19 -- I had started the chuin, :- looks [ike

warned me about MySpace, end quote. How do you 238 maybe. Maybe she had star' { it. I'm nm =ire.

respond to that? 21 But I said that I could ta. ire Ing oot

A. That's untrue, onforturnate.y. 2z the grade book, that sne w.:: g that sne

Q. She also actually --- why don't you read 23 tad work frcm students tha' she sLill neaded o

that whole paragraph to yourself? 4 turn back in cr grades thes o' ill needed -0 be

WITNESS COMPLIES 25 entered ¢r she was wonderiui .o she still ueeded

Page 183 Page 185

BY ATICRNEY KRAMER: 1 to --- she was still tryin: 1. 1 the

Q. She seems to say you're lying, Mrs. . capacity of the student te.ior 5. “his roint,

Reinking. 3 after she had been asked n-- cme pach o
ATTORNEY 2IGT: 4 And I explained to her tha- | veuldn't ke much
Objection to the form. 5 --- it wouldn't take much t.r rns -0 be akle fo

A. Fabricated. lt's just completely untrue. € wrap up the unit that she bac, ard any marerials

Ard think that there are staff members that ) that the students had I

uld be able to say that, vyes, Mrs. Reinking [ it 1f I could, that I wouli ;v

irdicated that she had referenced maltiple times % El could definitely close cut

that she haa discussed th with the teacher, P10 happening at that point ir -n- v1rses ana

the student teacher., and 17 you had to depose P11 I was in charge at that poiut

students frecm that class, think rhey'd be abie [ And th she e-mailed me kach 04 =

to --- gosh, 1i's twWC years now, DLl raybe 13 in the first paragraph, sa~'s say:ng, than. you

tney'd be able to remember Lhat 1t was opviously 14 for making a spund judgment «wi-h -he studerts

brought up in class 15 about the assignment that 1 g.vi. [ know Ihat
The reference tha- she said that she was 14 you have the students' bes? ~sts in mind,

Told by Millersville o aveld talking about ‘ 17 Thanks for all your help —he unit syslem,

staff, students or faculty ¥our page, again, 18 and she's Jjust thanking mc,

it's cryptic, put I think it's clear that there 19 Q. And your response was you sent Stacy's

was sorne referen te scmepcay at CV, and it was 20 e-mail to Deann Buffington and you wrote, quote,

probably me.  An Clearly did ralk about 21 she drives me crazy. What does that mean?

students on her page, su --- 3nd ~hat she was 2z A. There's a disconnect. ‘|:r=re 3eams 1ihe

Inviting students to use it in a forum. 23 there's always a disconnecl, 1ixe I'm explaining

Q. Go to --- skip that one, skip that. Go to 24 to her that she's finished v ti point, she

the e-mail --- it's actually from Deann 25 doesn't need to do anytning <l.2 as a stadent

814-536-8908
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Page 186 Page 188

. Teacher, and she's srili --- *there's just kind ; 1 A. Torrect.
- cf a tcerne in the cpening paragraph wnhers she's ; o Q. Okay. Number two, please keep your voice up
3 sayi --- nct conaescending, barn she's kind of ; 3 because the court reporter is taking down
4 irdicating like, o©f 1 can wrap this ; 4 everything that we say. Also, please wait until
5 ug, ard she's still indicating that s Wes in & 5 I'm done with my question before you respond
5] charge at that point and - r. sne nad already j [ because the reporter cannot take down two people
7 been asked t.o step down. And this was only parf ’ 7 talking at once. Please also refrain from
& --- L tninx wnen I sent this ©o her i1t was part I3} uh-huhs or uh-uhs because even though we can
9 --- I tninx [ had a phone conversation with her. 9 communicate on that level, often it's difficult
10 End there's probably more e-mails that £ 10 for the reporter to transcribe. If you need to
11 aren't part of tnis, because I'm saying T'm e- 11 take a break, certainly we can accommodate you,
1z mailing to clear up onfusion that there may 12 et cetera. Are you married?
13 be conacrning work because sne's still going to 13 A. Yes.
14 Barry and indicating that there's all this 14 Q. Any children?
15 material nanging cver her head that she still ;15 A. I'm expecting, but no ---.
16 needs to corplete as it pertains £o ner student i 16 Q. No other children, okay. I believe you said
17 teaching experienc And e taxen 17 you were approximately the same age as Stacy; is
18 care of and wrapped up a lained tc her, 18 that correct?
19 that she was But e-mailing me 19 A. I'm guessing.
20 and telling me trnat, oh, okay, that sounds good. 20 Q. Well, Stacy is 25. How old are you? Stacy
You xnow, it s just annoyirg, o1 was 25 at the time of these events, I should
Q. Final document, which is the last --- turn . say.
23 the page. Yeah. These are notes that Judy 123 4. I was 6 then. I'r =,
24 Wenrich of Millersville took fram a conversation : 24 Q. Now, you testified that you were an
she had with you on February 20th, 2007. I 25 undergrad at Millersville; is that correct?
Page 187 Page 189
1 really just want you to read that and confirm 1 A. Correct.
Z it’s an accurate summary of the things you and ; z Q. And you also --- you did your --- you got
3 Doctor Wenrich discussed. i3 your Master's in Education at King's College or
4 (CV Exhibit 10 marked for 4 Wilkes College?
5 identification.) 5 . Wilkes College.
6 A. Yes. Over ine paone sne would have called 6 Q. Wilkes College.
7 me, and T would have Just rattled off a list of [ A. Wilkes University.
8 examples of 7hings that happened during the . o} Q. All right. While in college or in graduate
9 semester or sniswer questlons that she had. And E 9 school, did you ever drink an alcoholic
10 ther she, I guess, put this Zogether as a 10 beverage?
11 summary of what she saht was The most : 11 A, Yes.
1z importarnt from what I had sa:d. 12 Q. While in college or graduate school, were
13 ATTCRNEY KRAMER: P13 you ever photographed with an alcoholic beverage
14 I'm finished. < YOu ., R in your hand?
15 OFF RECORD DISCUSSION 15 A. Frobkably, yes, not thut I -—=
16 EXAMINATION le Q. How many times would you say you were
27 BY ATTORNZY VOIGT: 17 photographed with an alcoholic beverage in your
Q. Mrs. Reinking, my name is Mark Voigt. I 18 hand?
] represent Stacy Snyder in this lawsuit. I'm 13 A. That would be hara to zu¢
=0 going to be asking you some questions as well. on Q. More than one, more than five, more than
z1 So that the same rules apply that applied with 21 ten? Do you know?
2z Mr. Kramer's questioning, which is, number one, o2 A. More than five.
z3 you're still under oath, so you have to tell the 23 Q. And at the time you were --- well, were you
24 truth, the whole truth and nothing but the 24 photographed with an alcoholic beverage while
25 truth, et cetera; correct? oh you were at Millersville?

48 (Pages 186 to 189)
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Page 294 Page 296

Cbject. That's forally ridiciloais. 1 EXAMINATICN

And 1 strongiy to kne ise of the z BY ATTORNEY LITTS:

Cclumpine reference.  If's highly infl 3 Q. There have been a number of discussions
ETTCRNEY KRAMZR: : 4 about the song that's referenced as Exhibit 50.
Well, then there's certainly a 5 And again, can you Jjust explain to the context

reference *o angry dwarf, wn the singer, 4] where this song was even brought to your

shootirg ctker students, and I'm wondering ---. 7 classroom?

ATTCRNEY VOIGT: g A, Right. The students wei. woraing oo a

Tt speaks for i.ss 9 project independently at th.ir dasks, and -his

ATTCRNEY KREMER: 13 was background masic thart s, oy want ed ro

Akhaolutely. And that's what I'm 11 play, using the CT player, _a7 ber osound in lhe
asking her to interpret. 12 background to work to.

A. Well, I had never neard t“he song the entire ; 13 Q. So Ms. Snyder never had the students sit

way Throuagh until I d with rhese 14 down and read this lyric sheet to analyze the

lyrics,  so T did quickly read thew through and i Ls message or the imagery or what was said in this

tr.ed to figure out wnat the heck is this song i3 song?

even aboat. And 1 don't know why —--- when you ) A. No. It had absolutely ' coruestion to

hear the whole lyrics, way vol woald even play *8 what was happering in olas: rlef day.

this at school. T don't “now why it would be 3 Q. So there's a series of questions about
mnething that you would want f£o share with your 20 different pieces of literature or songs to

szudents. 3o I do see wnat you're saying. 21 analyze, and this particular song, this

There's a very angry persocn in the song. 2z lyric --- at Plaintiff's Exhibit 50, that was

BY ATTORNEY KRAMFR: E 23 never used as a curriculum tool?

Q. And it's in bad taste. : 24 A. No, 1= kas no ¢ ect 1ol.

ATTORNEY vOZI 25 Q. Okay. I just wanted that being clear.

e

oy

@

[N

=

N

Page 295 Page 297

Cbje=stion. 1 ATTORNEY LITTS:
ATTORNEY KRAMER: 2 That's the only guestion I have.
No more guestions. : 3 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
ATTORNEY VCIGT: ’ 4 Thank you.
1 nave a couple more guestions. 5 A. Thank you.
RE-EXAMINATION 6 Kok ok w ok ok k
BY ATTORNEY VOILGT: 7 DEPOSITION CONCLUDED AT 3:51 P.M.
Q. Are you familiar with James Joyce? Have you 8 bl S A S S R
ever read James Joyce? 3 9
A. Yes. 10
Q. How is James Joyce's language? 11
A. What do¢ you mean how 1s i-?2 12
Q. Well, James Joyce refers to some pretty 13
graphic things, can we agree on that? 14
A. I only --- 1 haven't read it since =cllege. 15
Q. And you teach British literature and you 16
don't know about James Joyce? 117
A. He's rct in our currrzulum. ;18
ATTORNEY VOIGT: (19
All rignu. 20
ATTORNEY XRAMZR: 21
ceff, you had a gquestion, 1 122
believe? ’23
ATTORNEY LITTS: 24
If you don't mind. 25
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I BEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS ELEZTRCNIT TRANSCRIPT WAD

REPORTED BY ME AND THEREAFTEZR REZDUVCHD TO TYFEWRITING AND THAT

TEIS TRANSCRI?T [5 A TRUE AND ACTIRAIY REZORD: THERELE.
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EXHIBIT G



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

STACY SNYDER, : CIVIL ACTION
Plaintiff,
v.

MILLERSVILLE UNIVERSITY, :
et al. : 07-1660

Defendants.

Declaration

I, Jane Bray, hereby declare as follows:

1. I am Dean of the School of Education at Millersville University.

2. I first met Stacy Snyder when she came to my office on or about May 13, 2006
on her appeal of a denial of a B.S.Ed. degree.

3. Ms. Snyder presented written materials for appeal. We discussed the written
materials and she orally presented arguments as to why she believed she should be
entitled to pass student teaching and to receive a B.S.Ed. degree.

4. I reviewed the written materials that Ms. Snyder provided relating to her student
teaching at Conestoga Valley High School.

5. I also discussed Ms. Snyder’s entire student teaching performance at Conestoga
Valley High School as well as the observations of the cooperating teacher, Nicole
Reinking with Mr. Girvin and Dr. Judith Wenrich. I learned that Ms. Snyder had failed
on the mid-term PDE-430 form. Unsatisfactory performance in the mid-placement PDE-
430 form that is mandated by the PDE equates to failing student teaching although at
mid-semester the PDE-430 is designed to provide the student with feedback and an
opportunity to improve. I also learned of her unsatisfactory performance on the final
PDE-430 prepared by Mr. Girvin. I had no input or influence on Mr. Girvin’s
evaluations of Ms. Snyder and no authority to change his final grade for Ms. Snyder.

6. I was particularly concerned that because of her unprofessional behavior during
the semester Conestoga Valley administrators had barred her from entering the school
except for the final conference.
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7. Plaintiff’s internet posting, the so-calied “drunken pirate” picture and
accowpanying text, did not play any role in my decision. In light of the factors that I
have degcribed above, it was clear to me that Ms. Snyder was not a competent or
professional teacher.

8. I had no concern that if we did not take action towards Ms. Snyder that Conestoga
Valley would not permit future Millersville students to student teach there.

9. It is not unusual for student to have difficulties with their student teaching and to
voluntarily withdraw or be removed by the school district from student teaching. Since
fall semester 2005, five Millersville students have voluntarily withdrawn from their
student teaching placement; seven were removed by the school district; and nine did not
successfully complete student teaching for a variety of reasons.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing facts are true and correct.
Millersville, PA

-7-0%

DATED:
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

STACY SNYDER, : CIVIL ACTION
Plaintiff, :
V.
MILLERSVILLE UNIVERSITY, :
et al. : 07-1660
Defendants. :
Declaration

I, Barry Girvin, hereby declare as follows:

1. In spring semester 2006, I was an adjunct professor at Millersville University.
One of my functions was to act as supervisor for three student teachers at Conestoga
Valley School District, including Stacy Snyder, who was student teaching at the high
school.

2. As described in my deposition in this case and as reflected in my various
evaluations Ms. Snyder’s student teaching and professionalism were deficient during the
semester.

3. Nicole Reinking was the cooperating teacher at Conestoga Valley. Ms. Reinking

agreed that Ms. Snyder’s student teaching and professionalism were nnsatisfactory.

Based upon Ms. Reinking’s observations that she relayed to me and upon my own

observations, I had serious concerns about Ms Snyder's competence and professionalism
~ during the semester.

4, Because Conestoga Valley barred plaintiff from entering the high school and from
teaching their students, she did not complete the semester.

5. In my opinion, Ms. Snyder’s most egregions unprofessional behavior was that in a
May 9, 2006 email to me she criticized Ms. Reinking for her own failures and sought to
shift her deficient performance to Ms. Reinking without accepting responsibility for her
own behavior. I thought this was very immature and unprofessional.
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6. I was aware of the plaintiff's internet posting, the so-called "drunken pirate"
picture and the attached text. Nonetheless, the picture played virtually no role in my
decision to rate her as unsatisfactory for professionalism. Even had it never come to my
attention, in light of all the other factors Ms Snyder would not have passed student
teaching. These factors include unprofessional actions during the semester, Conestoga
Valley barring Ms Snyder from the high school, and the May 9, 2006, email sent to me.

7. It was a result of my professional evaluation of Ms Snyder's petformance at
Conestoga Valley that she did not receive a B.S.Ed. In accordance with evaluations done
by Ms Reinking and myself and the fact that Ms Snyder did not complete the semester,
she did not pass student teaching. She received a grade of W (withdrawal).

8. I had no concern that Conestoga Valley would not host future Millersville student
teachers.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing facts are true and correct.

Millersville, PA

DATED: 1 ©_ (9 Barr]. Burnsin.

Barry Gilfin
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Page © Page 8
1 OBJECTION PAGE 1 the truth.
2 2 Additionally, as you can see,
3 ATTORNEY PAGE | | hatwe say, using a mouthpiece as wel
4 Kramer 19,19, 20, 29, 36, 39, 40 5  as atape recorder. So you need to
5 41,42, 45, 50, 51, 53, 57 6 keep your voice up. Please answer all
6 58,70,72,73,78,83, 83 7 questions audibly rather than with a
7 84, 85 8  nod of the head or a shake of the head.
8 9 Please wait until the questioner, which
9 10 will probably be me, is done with the
10 11  question before you respond since the
11 12 reporter cannot take down two people
13 talking at once.
12 14 Additionally, please answer with
13 15 aworded response rather than an uh-huh
14 16  oruh-uh, since the reporter cannot
15 17  take down those types of responses
16 18  accurately. Additionally, at the
17 19  conclusion of this testimony, you will
18 20 receive a transcript, which is a
21  word-for-word recitation of everything
19 22 that we say. You have the right to
20 23 read and sign that transcript if you
1 24  want.
2 2 25 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
Page 7 Page 9
1 PROCEEDINGS 1 We'll waive.
2 2 ATTORNEY VOIGT:
3 BEVERLY SCHNELLER, PH.D., HAVING FIRST 3 Allright. Thanks a lot.
4 BEEN DULY SWORN, TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS: 4 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
5 5 Q. If you need to take a break,
6 EXAMINATION 6 please feel free to do that. If you
7 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 7 need to speak to your Counsel, I'll be
8 Q. Would you state your name and 8 happy to let you do that, provided
9 business address for the record, 9  there's no question pending. If you do
10 please? 10 not understand a question, please let
11 A My name is Beverly Schneller, 11 me know, I'll rephrase. Otherwise, |
12 and our business address is 12 will assume that you understand the
13 Millersville University, P.O. Box 1002, 13 question. Are we clear on those ground
14 Millersville, PA 17551, 14 rules?
15 Q. Have you ever had your 15 A. We are.
16 deposition taken before? le Q. What are your professional
17 A. No. 17 duties at Millersville?
18 Q. Well, let me go over some of the 18 A.I'm a full professor in the
19 ground rules. First of all, the court 19 Department of English and a department
20 reporter has administered an oath to 20 chair elected by members of my faculty.
21 you. That oath is the same oath that 21 Q. And what are the duties of the
22 you would take if you were in a court 22 department chair?
23  of law and it carries with it the same 23 A. Department chairs establish the
24  penalties. So you need to tell the 24 curriculum in conjunction with the
25 truth, the whole truth and nothing but 25 faculty for the courses that are being

SARGENT 'S COURT REPORTING SERVICES,
536-8908

(814)
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Page 10 Page 12
1 offered in the semester. We prepare 1 be photographed with an alcoholic
2 schedules four times a year for course 2 beverage?
3 offerings, evaluate faculty in their 3 A No
4 professional roles as teachers, assist 4 Q. Have you ever had any education
5 with recruitment and orientation of 5 or training in freedom of speech among
6 students, serve as faculty advisors to 6  college students?
7 students, work on marketing materials, 7 A. No.
8 advise the administration in our 8 Q. Have you ever had any education
9 professional capacities. We're 9  ortraining in due process for students
10 expected to serve the campus community. 10 in the public university setting?
11 We're expected to serve the community 11 A No.
12 at large in capacities that are 12 Q. When did you first meet Stacey
13 relevant to our degrees. And we are 13 Snyder?
14 expected to publish and otherwise 14 A. Possibly 2000 --- it must have
15 maintain recognizable scholarly 15 been 2004.
16 credentials. le Q. In what capacity did you meet
17 Q. As department chair, do you have 17 her?
18 any role in the student teacher program 18 A. She came to my office because
19 at Millersville? 19 she needed an exception, or she needed
20 A. No, | do not. 20 something related to curriculum, or she
21 Q. Describe your educational and 21  wanted to get into a course, or
22 professional background, starting with 22 something along those lines. And we
23 college. 23 discussed whether she could get into
24 Al graduated from the University 24 the course or not. | think that was
25 of St. Thomas in Houston, Texas with a 25 the first time.
Page 11 Page 13
1 B.A., Magna Cum Laude. | hold a 1 Q. Why would she come to your
2 Master's and a PhD. from the Catholic 2 office?
3 University of America in Washington, 3 A. Everyone comes to the department
4 DC. Prior to coming to Millersville in 4 chair's office. If you call --- no,
5 1989, | taught at Marist College as a 5 I'm serious. If you call for
6  full-time faculty member in 6 information on this campus for
7 Poughkeepsie, New York. Prior to that, 7 anything, the answer in every office
8 | was a graduate assistant, and prior 8 is, call the department chair in the
©  tothat, | was a substitute high school 9  subject area in which you're
10  teacher in Houston when | was finishing 10 interested. So she would have come to
11 my degree. 11 me because | either have the
12 Q. How long have you been here in 12 instructional information or the
13 Millersville? 13 informational expertise to direct her
14 A Since 1989. 14 or anyone else who calls the office to
15 Q. Now, during college or graduate 15  wherever they need to go.
16  school, did you ever drink an alcoholic 16 Q. And describe the nature of your
17  beverage? 17 meeting. What was discussed, other
18 A Yes. 18 than what you've already told us?
19 Q. And during college or graduate 19  A.Well, | told you. She either
20  school, did you ever allow yourself to 20 came to see about getting into a class
21 be photographed wearing a costume ata |21 or she came to ask a question about a
22 party? 22 class she had to take or something like
23 A. No. 23 that.
24 Q. During college or graduate 24 Q. And how did the meeting end?
25 school, did you ever allow yourself to 25 A. | presume that | gave her the
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Page 14 Page 16
1 information that she needed because 1 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
2 she's not there now, so ---. She came 2 What are you looking at?
3 and she left. 3 ATTORNEY VOIGT:
4 Q. Turn to Exhibit 21, please. Do 4 Page one where it says GE
5 you recognize this document? 5 area.
3 A. Yes. 3 A. General Education. That's part
7 Q. What is it? 7 of the Liberal Arts core.
8  A. This is a printoff of the 8 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
9 student's DARS Audit not generated by 9 Q. What's the difference between
10  the map system, but by the student 10  General Education credits and some
11 using their myBill account. 11  other types of credits?
12 Q. That brings me to three 12 A. Students at the university take
13  questions. What is a DARS? 13 amajor. If they're a BA student, they
14 A DARS is an acronym for the 14  have a major and a minor. If they're a
15  Degree Audit Record System. It's a 15 BSE, candidate the BSE is a double
16  living transcript for the student that 16  major. That's half of --- | guess
17 records the courses that they've 17 about half of what they do. The other
18 already taken, the courses in which 18 half is the Liberal Arts core, because
19  they're currently enrolled, their 19  this is a Liberal Arts institution, so
20  grades, the place where the course fits 20 that's what the General Education core
21 in either Liberal Arts core or the 21 is.
22 student's major, the number of credits 22 Q. And are major specific courses
23 that the course bears, their QPA and 23  listed in some other way on this
24 their GPA. It's an advisement tool 24  document?
25 that is very similar to the transcript, 25 A. Probably --- can | turn the
Page 15 Page 17
1 but does not bear the same authority as 1 page?
2 the transcript because it never has the 2 Q. Uh-huh (yes).
3 registrar's seal. 3 A. Probably not on this one because
4 Q. What is the significance of the 4 this one is done chronologically. On
5  registrar's seal on a transcript? 5  the one that we use that comes directly
6  A. The registrar's seal is the 6  from the Registrar's Office for the
7 indication that the state or the 7 students when they don't generate it
8  Commonwealth has agreed to conferthe | 8  off their own account, there's a
9 degree. . 9 different version of this that shows it
10 Q. And you mentioned some other 10 by the major, by the minor. And then
11 acronyms having to do with this. | 11 the GE core is like three pages in.
12 can't recall what they were offhand. 12 There's a couple pages in the back of
13  You said that this is a living 13 university requirements.
14  transcript. 14 Q. Were you ever Stacey Snyder's
15 A That's what | refer to it as. 15 instructor at Millersville?
16 Q. What does that mean? 16 A lwas.
17 A.That just means that it's 17 Q. When was that?
18  updated every semester as the students 18  A.Inthe fall of 2005.
13  complete their courses in contrast to a 19 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
20 transcript. It's not a transcript. 20 Just for the record,
21  It's a record of what the students are 21  she's referring to Exhibit 21.
22 taking while they're still students at 22 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
23 Millersville. 23 Q. Which class was that?
24 Q. In looking at page one, it says 24 A. English 441, Section 6.0. It
25  GE area. What does that mean? 25  was a poetry course that she took in
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Page 18 Page 20
1 the fall semester of her senior year. 1 A. Well, | don't have the artifacts
2 If you look at fall of 2005, it's the 2 in front of me. And you asked me to
3 fourth course down on the left. 3 give you an opinion, which I'm not
4 Q. It looks like Stacey got an A in 4 going to do.
5  thatclass. 5 Q. Is it safe to say that you would
6 A Yes, shedid. 6 not have given Stacey an A if she had
7 Q. And what was your impression --- 7 poor grammar?
8  well, first of all, do you recall 8 A. No.
9 Stacey being in that class? 9 Q. So a student can have poor
10 A. This was an independent study 10 grammar and still get an A in your
11 course. She was the only student in 11 class?
12 the class, so, yes. 12 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
13 Q. How much interaction did you 13  Well, this would be an
14 have with Stacey in this course? 14 independent study, which may be
15 A. She either came once a week or 15 different than the other
16 she came once every couple of weeks for 16 classes. And your question is
17 an hour or so of --- well, for an hour 17 vague, so | object to the form.
18 or so. 18 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
19 Q. And what did Stacey have to do 19 Q. Am | correct that a student can
20 to get a grade in your class? 20 have poor grammar and still get an A in
21 A She had to read the books that | 21  your upper level college English class?
22 assigned her. She had to complete, | 22 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
23 think, two --- maybe two or three 23 Object to the form. You
24 written assignments. And then because 24 can try to answer that.
25 she was a teacher education candidate, 25 A. It depends on what you mean by
Page 19 Page 21
1 we did a lesson plan as her final 1 poor grammar.
2 project. 2 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
3 Q. How long were the written 3 Q. Well, what do you mean by poor
4 assignments, numbers of pages, do you 4 grammar?
5 recall? Were they more than a page, 5 A. Well, that's not an issue. |
6 more than five pages? 6 mean it's your question, so what do you
7 A. They would have been between 7 mean by it?
8 maybe three and five pages. | don't 8 Q. Well, are you familiar with
9 know. 9 grammar as it is used in the English
10 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 10 language?
11 If you don't remember, 11 A. Of course.
12 don't guess. 12 Q. Do you know what poor grammar is
13 A ldon'tremember. | don't give 13 whenit's used in the English language?
14 one-page papers, | can tell you that 14 A. Yes.
15 much. 15 Q. And can a student in your class
16 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 16  getan A and still have poor grammar?
17 Q. Do you grade for grammar in your 17 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
18 class, or did you grade for grammar in 18 I'll object as to the
19 Stacey's poetry class? 19 form. It's a really vague
20 A. Yes. 20 question because poor grammar is
21 Q. Can you give me an opinion as to 21 almost by definition a vague
22 how Stacey’s grammar was in the poetry 22 term. If you can answer it, you
23 class? 23 certainly can
24 A No. 24 ATTORNEY VOIGT:
25 Q. Why not? 25 Well, it's just a brief
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Page 22 Page 24
1 response. She's the chairman of 1 or no answer, yes, it's possible.
2 the English Department at an 2 Okay?
3 accredited college. She should 3 Q. Other than your poetry class,
4 be able to tell me what poor 4 describe your interactions, if any,
5 grammar is. 5  with Stacey from your first meeting in
6 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 6 2004 until approximately May 1, 2007 or
7 You can try to answer the 7 2006. Did you have any?
8 question. 8 A. The only two that | am certain
9 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 9 about are the one that | mentioned,
10 Q. Can astudent get an A in your 10  when she came to the office and needed
11 class, your poetry class, an upper 11 some assistance, because that was the
12 level class at a public university, and 12 first day that | met her. And then
13 still have poor grammar? 13 because she had a scheduling problem,
14 A. A student can --- in and out of 14 completing her degree, | offered her
15 the classroom, a student can have 15 the opportunity to teach the
16 grammatical errors in their speech or 16 independent study with me.
17 in their writing that are going to 17 At the time that she was
18 remain with them beyond college 18 enrolled, | guess | had just come off
19  instruction. It's one of the issues 19  being a full-time faculty member. |
20  that you face as a writing teacher, as 20  teach a lot of students, so without
21 a professor in general, that because 21 seeing the name of the professor that
22 grammar is taught in elementary schools 22 she taught (sic), she may have been in
23 and through the high schools if the 23 another course that | taught, but I'm
24 emphasis is placed on things other than 24 not sure because | teach many students.
25 precision in language use by the high 25 And over the courses and number of
Page 23 Page 25
1 schools, it's very difficult to 1 years, | don't even try to remember
2 correct. It's sort of imbedded 2 what class somebody is in. It's
3 mistakes that a person might make. 3 usually pointless. And if they want to
4 So technically a person can continue to 4 do a letter of recommendation, they'll
5 make what might be viewed as 5  come back and tell me what classes they
6 grammatical errors at any point in 6  werein, for example. So [ can tell
7 their life, whether they have college 7 you that | taught her in poetry class
8 instruction or not. 8 for sure.
9 Q.SocanastudentgetanA in 9 Q. You mentioned some independent
10 your upper level poetry class and still 10  study class.
11 have poor grammar? 11 A. That is the poetry class.
12 A. Well, the other part of the 12 Q. You mentioned some other
13 equation is that in any course, and 13 independent study class having to do
14 especially individualized instruction, 14 with student teaching; is that right?
15 grading can be based on the written 15 A. No.
16 product, the revisions of the written 16 Q. You said that because Stacey was
17 product. | mean, to simply concentrate 17 having ---?
18 on whether perfection in grammarhasa 18  A. | said because she couldn't meet
19 core relationship to the grade is 19 her requirement related to completing
20 really not understanding the nature of 20 her degree, | gave her the opportunity
21 the grading process. It is probably 21 to do the independent study poetry
22 possible for any student to have 22 course, which fills the requirement for
23 grammatical errors in their writing or 23 the major. She had a scheduling
24 any other thing and get an A in 24 conflict.
25 anybody's course. Soif youwantayes 125 Q. So the poetry class is what you
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Page 26

Page 28

1  were talking about? 1 A. Teaching teacher education
2 A. Yes, itis. 2 candidates how to teach.
3 Q. Turn to Exhibit Four. It's in 3 Q. And do you have any role in that
4 the other book. This is a document --- 4 department?
5 actually, it's in the same book. 5 A. No.
6  Sorry. This is a document entitled 6 Q. Turn to Exhibit Five. Thisis a
7 Millersville University Guide for 7 supplement to the Guide for Student
8 Student Teaching. Have you ever seen 8 Teaching. |take it you played no role
9  this document before? 9  drafting or approving this document?
10 A No. 10 A. No.
11 Q. So | take it you played no role 11 Q. Turn to page four of that
12 in the drafting or approval of this 12 document. This refers to something
13 document; correct? 13 called a Circle Project. Are you
14 A. No. 14 familiar with the Circle Project?
15 Q. Are you familiar with something 15 A. Yes.
16  called the Teacher Education Council? 16 Q. What is your familiarity with
17 A TEC, T-E-C. 17  that?
18 Q. Dr. Bray referred to something 18 A. This is a project that the
19 called the Teacher Education Council. 19 students in the BSE program complete.
20  Are you familiar with that 20 My familiarity with it is it's an
21 organization? 21 assessment --- well, it's a tool that
22 A. There's a committee on campus 22 we use data from collected by the Ed
23 that is --- no, | think it's the same 23 Foundation's Department for our NCATE
24 thing. No. I'm thinking about the 24 assessment.
25 Teacher Education Committee. Thatsan (25 Q. What's an NCATE assessment?
Page 27 Page 29
1 approval body for curriculum. No. | 1 A.NCATE, N-C-A-T-E.
2 don't know anything about the Teacher 2 Q. What's that?
3 Education Council. 3 Al lt's the accrediting body for
4  Q.Well, let's talk about the 4 schools of education.
5  Teacher Education Committee. Are you 5 Q. That's N-C-A-T-E?
6  familiar with that? 6 A Right.
7 A. Yes. 7 Q. Is that here at Millersville
8 Q. Are you on that committee? 8 University?
9 A No. 9  A.No. That's a national ---.
10 Q. Do you have any role on that 10 NCATE's national. It's an accrediting
11  committee? 11 body for schools of education
12 A. No. That's a faculty curriculum 12 nationwide.
13 committee. It has nothing particular 13 Q. Have you ever supervised a
14 to do with this. 14 student teacher in their Circle
15 Q. Are you familiar with something 15  Project?
16 called the Educational Foundations le6 A. | supervise no student teachers,
17 Department? 17 no.
18 A. Yes. 18 Q. Turn to Exhibit 89. This is a
19 Q. What is that? 19 letter from John Short to Stacey, dated
20 A. They offer pedagogical 20 February 2, 2006. Have you ever seen
21 instruction for students who are 21 this letter before?
22 involved in the secondary education 22 A. No.
23 programs. 23 Q. Are you familiar with something
24 Q. And what is pedagogical 24 called the Outstanding Students in the
25 instruction? 25 School of Humanities and Social
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Page 30

Page 32

1  Sciences? 1 A Sorry. So they can be certified
2 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 2 --- as part of the certification
3 Il just object. That's 3 process for the undergraduate.
4 not --- and your question 4 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
5 implies that's a label of 5 Q. On this document, it indicates
6  something, and in the letter 6  that Stacey passed her English
7 it's just ---. 7 language, literature, composition
8 ATTORNEY VOIGT: 8 content and knowledge class. Do you
9 Let me rephrase. 9 see that in the middle?
10  BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 10 A.Yes,ldo.
11 Q. Are you familiar with the 11 Q. Are you familiar for the
12 requirement for a student to make it on 12 criteria for use on those tests?
13 the Dean's list? 13 A. No, I'm not.
14 A No. 14 Q. Turn to Exhibit 93. Have you
15 Q. Do you have any idea of the 15 ever seen this before? This is a
16  criteria --- well, first of all, do you 16 photograph of Stacey.
17 know who John Short is? 17 A. Yes.
18 A. Yes, | do. 18 Q. And when did you see it?
13 Q. Doyouhave any idea as to the 19 A. When this lawsuit was made
20  criteria that Mr. Short uses in writing 20  public. Would that have been last
21  these letters? 21 summer?
22 A. No. 22 Q. Did you see this photograph in
23 Q.Did you observe Stacey at 23 or about May 20067
24  Conestoga Valley School District during 24 A. No.
25  her spring 2006 internship? 25 ATTORNEY VOIGT:
Page 31 Page 33
1 A. No. 1 Let me show you a
2 Q. Turn to Exhibit 47. 2 different photograph. We'll
3 A.I'm getting the hang of it. | 3 mark this as Exhibit 104.
4 can do this. | can even --- hold on. 4 (Exhibit 104 marked for
5 I'll try to keep it neat. 5  identification.)
6 Q. Now, these are evaluations 6  OFF RECORD DISCUSSION
7 completed by Barry Girvin, as to 7 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
8 Stacey. Do you know Barry Girvin? 8 Q. So this would be 104. Have you
9 A. No, | do not. 9  ever seen that photograph before?
10 Q. Have you ever seen these 10 A No.
11 evaluations before? 11 Q. Turn to Exhibit 51. Thisis a
12 A. No, | have not. 12 photograph and text. Have you ever
13 Q. Turn to Exhibit 77. Now, these 13  seen this before?
14 are praxis scores. What are praxis 14 A No.
15  scores, if you know? 15 Q. When did you first learn of
16 A The scores? 16  issues regarding Stacey Snyder and her
17 Q. Well, what is praxis? Do you 17  graduation from Millersville?
18 know? 18 A Could you clarify issue?
19 A Praxis is the test that the 19 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
20 student teachers take. 20 He can ciarify that.
21 Q. Why? 21  BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
22 A. So that they can be certified as 22 Q. When did you first learn that
23 teachers, | presume. 23  Stacey might not graduate with her
24 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 24  Bachelor of Science Education Degree?
25 Don't presume. 25  A.Well, she --- | don't have any
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Page 34 Page 36
1 control over whether she graduates with 1 Q. Yes.
2 anydegree or not. SoI'm not exactly 2 A.lknow that | talked to Dean
3 sure how to answer that question, 3 Bray.
4  because that presumes that | would have 4 ATTORNEY VOIGT:
5  some say in whether she graduates. 5 Let me turn your
6 Q. Allright. Let's take you 6 attention to Exhibit 100, page
7  back -=-. 7 six, paragraph 43.
8 A I'm not sure what you are asking 8 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
9 there. 9 Mark, this is the second
10 Q. Let’s take you back to May of 10 amended complaint that | have.
11 2006. 11 ATTORNEY VOIGT:
12 A. Okay. 12 Well, | have a third
13 Q. Did you have any conversations 13 amended complaint. Do you have
14  with anyone at Millersville concerning 14 that?
15  Stacey Snyder's graduation? 15 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
16  A. Yes. 16 No, it's not ---.
17 Q. When was your first 17 ATTORNEY VOIGT:
18  conversation? 18 Let's go off the record
19 A The Friday before the 19 for a second.
20  commencement day, whatever date that 20 OFF RECORD DISCUSSION
21  was. It would be Friday --- because 21 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
22 spring commencement is on Saturday. So 122 Q. Exhibit 100, page six, paragraph
23 it would be the Friday before. 23 43.
24 Q. And that would be May 12, 2006; 24  A. Okay.
25  correct? 25 Q. Let me just take that back and
Page 35 Page 37
1 A. 1 don't have a calendar. | 1 I'll read you the question.
2 don't know. 2 A. Here you go.
3 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 3 Q. The first sentence of paragraph
4 | think that's right, 4 43 reads, on or about May 12, 2006,
5 Mark. 5 Bray, Girvin, Wenrich and Schneller, in
6  A.lthink that may be correct. | 6 their official capacities, met to
7 don't know. 7 discussion Plaintiff's possible
8 OFF RECORD DISCUSSION 8 expulsion. Is that a true statement?
9 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 9 ATTORNEY KRAMER
10 Q. Does that refresh your 10 [I'll object. It includes
11 recollection that it was Friday, May 11 conclusive legal language and is
12 12th? 12 a compound question.
13 Al Itwas always Friday. You just 13 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
14 asked me what the date was, and | dont 14 Q. Is it a true statement?
15 remember the date. 15 A No.
16 Q. Well, do you remember now? 16 Q. What about that statement is not
17 A. Sure. Yes. 17 true?
18 Q. And it is May 12th? 18 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
19 A Yes. 19 Can she see it?
20 Q. What was the conversation that 20 ATTORNEY VOIGT:
21 you had about Stacey on May 12th? 21 Sure.
22 First of all, who was it with? 22 A. | have never met Mr. Girvin.
23 A. Oh, the administrator's 23 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
24 conversation you mean? That's what 24 Q. Do you know who Dr. Judith
25 we're talking ---? 25  Wenrich is?
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Page 38 Page 40
1 A Yes, 1do. We didn't physically 1  one.
2 --- well, to my recollection, we did 2 Q. Was Ms. Snyder in your office on
3 not physically meet, because I'm in one 3 May 12th when this conversation took
4 building on one side of the campus, 4 place with Bray?
5  they're in a different building on the 5  A.No. Well, she might have been
6 other side of the campus. And when we 6  there when | was on the phone. I'm not
7 consult, we consult by phone. And | 7 sure.
8 have no recollection of an alleged 8 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
9 physical meeting. 9 Don't speculate.
10 Q. All right. But you do remember 10  A.Sorry.
11 a phone call with Dr. Bray; is that 11 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
12 correct? 12 If you don't remember,
13 A. Dean Bray and | would have 13 say you don't remember.
14 talked about the situation. We 14 A. She was there. | don't know for
15  certainly didn't discuss anything 15 how long.
16 related to expulsion. 16 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
17 Q. And what did you and Dr. Bray 17 Q. How long did the conversation
18 discuss? 18 last, do you know?
19  A. We would have discussed --- 19 A No.
20  well, we would have discussed how 20 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
21 to--. I'mtrying to remember now if 21 Object to the form.
22 it was actually --- because | know at a 22 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
23 certain point | did talk to Dean Bray 23 Q. How long did the conversation
24 about this. | know | probably also 24 with Dr. Bray on May 12th, 2006 last?
25 talked to Dr. Wenrich about it, because 25 A. | don't know.
Page 39 Page 41
1 she and | are the ones who usually deal 1 Q. How did the conversation end?
2 with situations in which we need to 2 A. Well, we agreed that we would
3 transition a student from one degree 3 initiate the paperwork to change the
4 program to another, but we usually did 4 degree from a BSE to a BA, which was
5 --- l usually do that in consultation 5 the purpose of the call, one way or the
6 with the Dean, just to be sure that 6 other, in the first place.
7 we're all on the same page. 7 Q. Have you ever had a call from
8 Q. Well, let's talk about this 8 Dr. Bray before about changing a BSE to
9 conversation you had with Dr. Bray on 9 a BA before?
10  May 12th. Do you recall that 10 A Ever?
11 conversation? 11 Q. Ever in the course of your life.
12 A. I'm not going to recall any 12 A. No, not at that time.
13 specifics of conversations with them 13 Q. Did you not think it was unusual
14 other than the broad outlines of what 14  that Dr. Bray would be calling you to
15 you asked me about. | mean, | can't 15 change a BSE to a BA the day before
16  say she said this and | said that. 16  graduation?
17 Q. And what was the general nature 17 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
18 of the conversation? 18 Well, I'll object. |
19 A. We discussed how to transition 19 don't know that she said Bray
20 Miss Snyder from the BSE to a BAdegree 20  called her.
21  sothat she could graduate on Saturday 21 A ldon't remember which way it
22 the 13th of May. 22 started.
23 Q. Was Miss Snyder consulted about 23 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
24 that conversation? 24 Q. Let me rephrase. Did you not
25 A. She was present for the first 25 think it was unusual to be having a
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Page 42

Page 44

1 conversation with Dr. Bray about 1 Q. When you had this conversation

2 changing a student's designation from a 2 with Dr. Bray, was it your

3 BSE to a BA the day before graduation? 3 understanding that a decision had

4 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 4 already been made that Stacey would not

5 Object to the form. It's 5 be graduating with a BSE?

6 a compound question. You can 6 A. | don't know.

7 answer. 7 Q. Why don't you know? | mean, if

8 A. Did | not think it was unusual? 8 somebody calls ---?

9  Well, Dean Bray wasn't calling to 9 A That decision is not in the
10  change the grade or change the degree. 10 parameter of things that | was asked to
11 The student was present. And in order 11 deal with. Stacey is a student in the
12 for the student to be able to graduate 12 English program, and in order for her
13 ontime, which was Dean Bray's and Dr. 13 to graduate, because of the
14 Wenrich's and my interest, the only 14 circumstances ---. She wanted to
15 logical thing to do was transition it 15  graduate. We wanted to see her
16 to a BA so that she could graduate with 16 graduate, so we enabled her to do that
17 college degree as she had planned. 17 by offering her the opportunity to take
18 So there's no --- it's a false 18 a BA. Your question asks me to
19 characterization to say that Dean Bray 19  speculate on what was in Dean Bray's
20  called to change Miss Snyder's degree. 20 mind ---.
21 | mean, obviously no one does that. | 21  Q.I'mtrying to get an
22 mean, not just pick up the phone out of 22 understanding of this conversation.
23 the blue and say, let's change this 23 Dean Bray calls you or you call Dean
24 person's grade or change this person's 24 Bray, and it is said, Stacey’s not
25 degree program. 25 going to get her BSE. Is that what was

Page 43 Page 45

1 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 1 said?

2 Q. So, it's your belief that a BSE 2 A. As | said, | don't know the

3 and a BA are the same thing? 3 details of the dialogue. Generically,

4 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 4 that would have been what the

5 Objection. That's not at 5  conversation was about.

6  all what she said. 6 Q. Did you inquire of Dr. Bray why

7 A. That's not what | said. 7 Stacey was not getting a BSE?

8 ATTORNEY VOIGT: 8  A.ldon'tknow.

9 Let me clarify. 9 Q. Would that not be something
10 A. That's not what | said. 10  you'd ask ---?
11 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 11 A Well —.
12 Q. You said that you and Dr. Bray 12 Q. Let me finish the question
13 were not discussing changing Stacey's 13 before you interpose your objection.
14 degree, is that what you said? 14 Having never had a conversation with
15 A. No. That's not what | said. 15 Dr. Bray about changing a BSE to a BA,
16 Q. Okay. Do you believe that a 16  would it not ---?
17 student can be a teacher with a BA 17 A. Well, no. You're ---.
18 degree? 18 Q. Let me finish the question.
19  A. Do | believe that they can? 19 A I'msorry.
20 Q. Yes. 20 Q. Having not had a conversation
21 A. Well, that depends on state 21 with Dr. Bray before about changing a
22 certification. It doesn't have 22 student's designation from a BSE to a
23 anything to do with what | believe or 23 BA, would you not ask why that was
24 not. State rules are different per 24 being done?
25 state. 25 A Well, if a student needs to
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Page 46 Page 48
1  change a degree, they initiate the 1 to my office.
2 conversation with their department 2 Q. She was in tears; correct?
3 chair or with me in this case. So | 3 A She was distressed.
4 don't know that it would have been 4 Q. She was in tears; correct?
5 necessary to ask anyone else why when 5 A. | don't recall that.
6 Stacey --- when Miss Snyder was 6 Q. And what, if anything, did
7 present, otherwise this whole thing 7 Stacey say to you?
8  wouldn't have happened. She was in my 8  A. She said that something had gone
9 office. So, in other words, I'm saying 9 wrong with her student teaching and
10  to you, why would | ask someone to 10  that --- the phrase used was removed
11 confirm something when | have the 11 from student teaching. And so |
12 person involved sitting in front of me? 12 believe that she would have said to me
13 Q. So it's your understanding that 13 either she was removed from student
14  Stacey was asking you to change herBSE 14  teaching or she was about to be
15  to a BA the day before graduation, 15  dismissed from student teaching.
16  voluntarily? 16  Again, it's hard to reconstruct the
17  A. Stacey - 17  dialogue from two years ago, but it was
18 Q. It's a yes or no question. 18 something along those lines.
19  Could you please answer with a yes or 19 Q. Did you ask Stacey why she was
20 no answer? 20  being removed from student teaching?
21 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 21 A. No. | mean, not beyond the ---
22 | object to the form. 22 not beyond the sort of shock reaction
23 It's a compound and vague 23 of why. You know, not the sort of ---
24 question. You can answer it. 24 the kind of thing when someone comes
25  A. Repeat the question. 25  and tells you something completely
Page 47 Page 49
1 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 1 unexpected, and you say, oh, my gosh,
2 Q. Sure. Stacey was in your office 2 why did that --- you know why.
3 during the call that you and Bray 3 Q. Well, did you ask her why?
4  engaged in on May 12th, 2006. Is that 4 A. In the context of a normal human
5  what you testified to? 5 reaction to something that you don't
6 A Aslsaid, initially she may 6 expect.
7 have still been there when that call 7 Q. Well, did you ask Stacey why she
8  took place. 8 was ---?
9 Q. Do you remember Stacey’s 9  A. | said why or what happened.
10  demeanor during your conversation with 10 Q. And what was Stacey's response?
11 Bray on the phone? 11 A. She said ---. She said ---
12 A if she wasn't present while Dean 12 well, see again, | mean | don't want to
13 Bray and | were on the phone, then | 13 be pinned to a specific dialogue, but
14 cantell you what her demeanor was when 14 she something like something had
15 she came into the office and initiated 15 happened with her placement.
16  the conversation. You want to pin me 16 Q. Did you ask Stacey to elaborate
17 onthe chronology of a phone call and | 17 on that comment?
18  cannot give you that. 18 A. No.
19 Q. What was Stacey's ---? 19 Q. Was it at that point that you
20 A.You don't see what the scenario 20 called Dr. Bray or Bray called you?
21 is. 21 A. No.
22 Q. Oh, I see it perfectly. What 22 Q. What point did the conversation
23 was Stacey's demeanor when you spoketo 23 with Dr. Bray occur?
24 her on May 12th, 2006? 24 A. For the record, Dr. Bray or Dr.
25 A Stacey was upset when she came 25 Wenrich. After Stacey and | had
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Page 50 Page 52
1 discussed her options for what she 1 A Well, I don't know. When you
2 could do in terms of how she would 2 say fight to keep her degree, | mean,
3 complete --- how she would graduate, 3 Stacey came with a situation and we
4 since she had been working very hard 4  were concerned with how she could
5 towards graduation and it was the next 5  obtain her college degree. And to the
6 day--—-. So myimmediate interest and 6  degree that | have any student's best
7 hers was how we were going to graduate 7 interest, that is the best interest
8 --- or how she was going to graduate. 8  that | have for them, that they will
9 | was going to say, how we were going 9  attain the college --- they will attain
10 to graduate her, but how she was going 10  acollege degree.
11 to graduate the following day. 11 Q. Of any sort?
12 Q. Turn to Exhibit 70. Do you 12 A Yes.
13 recognize this document? 13 Q. Did you know as of May 12th,
14 A. Yes. 14 2006 that Stacey had been seeking a BSE
15 Q. Now, in the middle of the page 15  degree?
16 there's a signature saying Schneller, 16 A.Yes.
17 indicating advisor's signature. 17 Q. Did you know as of May 12th,
18 A. Correct. 18 2006 that a BSE degree is necessary in
19 Q. Did you consider yourself to be 19  Pennsylvania for somebody to teach?
20 Stacey's advisor? 20 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
21 A. Well, no. Well, it depends. 21 |object. That's
22 Students are assigned faculty advisors. 22 actually not correct, but you
23 And when the advisors are not available 23 can certainly answer the
24 --- when the assigned advisor is not 24 question.
25 available for signature --- as you can 25 A ABSE is away for a person to
Page 51 Page 53
1 see there the faculty advisor she lists 1 become a certified teacher in the
2 is Dr. Clark. When the advisor is not 2 Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. There
3 available for signature, |, as 3 are other ways that one can do that.
4 department chair, can sign any form to 4 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
5 keep student's paperwork going. And 5 Q. And the other ways include going
6  then we just leave a copy of the form 6  tothat ABCTE. Are you familiar with
7 for the --- this is a faculty advisor, 7 that?
8 the person who assists them with their 8 A. No.
S curriculum. 9 Q. You're aware that a student with
10 Q. Did you believe that you had any 10 a BA in English cannot become a
11 obligation to Stacey in your role as 11 certified teacher?
12 advisor? 12 A. Well -
13 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 13 Q.Yesorno?
14 Object to the form. 14 A Aperson can become a certified
15 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 15 teacher if they pursue certification
16 Q. Did you believe that you were 16  with a BA in any degree.
17 looking after Stacey's best interest in 17  Q.ls that your understanding?
18 your role as advisor? 18 A Yes.
19 A. Yes. 19 Q. What else, if anything, did you
20 Q. In looking at Stacey's best 20 tell Stacey during your meeting on May
21 interest, did you ever tell Stacey that 21 12th of 2006?
22 maybe she should fight to keep her BSE 22 A. We would have discussed --- |
23 degree? 23 would have gotten her registrar's
24 A. No. 24 generated DARS Audit and we would have
25 Q. Why not? 25 looked at the courses as these exhibits
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Page 54 Page 56
1 show for the exceptions. We would have 1 A Yes.
2 looked at how to move some of the 2 Q. Did you tell Stacey that?
3 courses around to get them to count in 3 A Well, yes. |justsaid |
4 the BA sequence. Either then or 4 mentioned emergency certification to
5 shortly thereafter we talked about 5 her. | don't know the --- | don't know
6 certification as an option for her, and 6  therules of that, but | know that |
7 we talked about possibly her 7 have had students with BAs and MAs be
8 reenrolling in the graduate program for 8 certified in the School District of
9 the MED. 9 Lancaster with emergency certification.
10 Q. What is MED? 10 Q. And did you do any research
11 A. Masters in Education. 11 under the Pennsylivania School Code to
12 Q. Did you know at that time that 12 determine whether you were correct that
13 Dr. Wenrich had told Stacey that she 13 a person could be an emergency
14 would not be allowed to take anymore 14 certified teacher without a --- strike
15 classes at Millersville? 15  that.
16 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 16 Did you do any research to
17 Objection. That's not 17  determine whether a person could teach
18 what Dr. Wenrich said. Don't 18 in a public school either as a
19 answer the question. 19  substitute or in some other fashion
20 A. Okay. 20  without a certification?
21 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 21 A.No.
22 Q. Was it your understanding at 22 Q. Did you attempt to contact an
23 that time that Stacey would be 23 attorney to determine whether that was
24 permitted to reenroll at Millersville 24 true?
25  and take graduate-level education 25 A No.
Page 55 Page 57
1  classes? 1 Q. You said that you were trying to
2 A. No, but | would have no reason 2 allay Stacey's distress; is that
3 to even be thinking about where she 3 correct?
4 would pursue graduate work at the time 4 A. Yes.
5 of this meeting. 5 Q. So Stacey was in distress at the
6 Q. But you were encouraging Stacey 6 time of your meeting. Would that be an
7 to pursue an MED; is that correct? 7 accurate statement?
8 A. 1 did not encourage her. | 8 A. Yes.
9 mentioned to her to provide her with as 9 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
10 much information as possible and to 10 She already ---.
11 allay her distress that there were 11 ATTORNEY VOIGT:
12 other ways for her to complete --- or 12 Well, then let her answer
13 there were other ways for her to reach 13 it.
14 her goal. | also discussed the 14 A. Yes. | said that she came ---
15 possibility of being an emergency 15 she was upset when she came to my
16 certified substitute teacher, and | le6 office
17 mentioned charter schools to her, 17 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
18 because charter schools are a little 18 Q. Paragraph 43, sentence two of
19 bit more relaxed as far as what degree 19 the third amended complaint reads,
20 you come in with, depending on what 20 Schneller convinced the other three
21 charter school you apply to. 21 that they had to give Plaintiff some
22 Q. Was it your belief as of May 22 degree to avoid scrutiny from others at
23 2006 that a person can be a substitute 23 MU; is that true?
24 teacher in a Pennsylvania public school 24 A. No.
25  without a teacher certification? 25 Q. Did you believe that if you did
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Page 58 Page 60
1  not change Stacey's courses around that 1 getting a BSE, or getting a BA, she was
2 she would graduate at all from MU? 2 able to do that.
3 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 3 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
4 Objection to the form. 4 Q. Are there any written criteria
5 It's a vague and confusing 5 at Millersville that you're aware of
6 question. Do you understand the 6 for the conversion of a BSE to a BA?
7 question? 7 A. Written criteria, no. Not that
8 A. I think | do. 8 | know of, no.
9 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 9 Q. And this is the first time that
10 8o, Mark, can you try to 10  you had converted a student's grade or
11 clarify? 11  astudent's degree from a BSE to a BA;
12 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 12 correct?
13 Q. Did you think that Stacey would 13 A. No.
14 graduate from Millersville with any 14 Q. You had done that before?
15 type of degree if you did not change 15 A. Yes.
16  her credits around? 16 Q. When did you do that before?
17 A Well, yes and no, because she 17  A.Oh, | don't know. 2000 -—. |
18  was not going to graduate on Saturday 18 don't know. | don't remember the date.
19 the 13th with a BSE, because she had 19 At least once prior.
20 not passed student teaching. Soin 20 Q. Was that under similar
21 order for her to achieve her goal of 21 circumstances or ---?
22 graduating, then the BA was the option. 22 A. No. No, it was not.
23 Q. And there were no other options; 23 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
24 correct, in your view? 24 Let him finish the
25 A. | don't deal with any other 25 question.
Page 59 Page 61
1 options. | mean, what the school --- 1 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT;
2 it's a dual responsibility. So what 2 Q. Was that under similar
3 the School of Education does is what 3 circumstances where the student was
4 they do and what we did was what we did 4 being denied a BSE?
5 in her best interest. 5 A. No.
6 Q. Would it not have been in 6 Q. So the instance where you
7 Stacey's best interest to graduate with 7 previously had assisted in changing a
8 a BSE? 8  student's graduation diploma from a BSE
9 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 9  to a BA was based on that student's
10 T'll object to the form. 10  voluntarily wanting that change; is
11 You can try and answer it. 11 that correct?
12 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 12 A Yes.
13 Q. You said that you were acting in 13 Q. During your conversation with
14 Stacey’s best interest. Would it not 14 Bray, did you inquire as to the
15 have been in her best interest to 15 procedural or policy basis for changing
16 graduate with a BSE? 16  astudent's BSE to a BA?
17 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 17 A. No, because | had done it
18 Well, no. She 18 before.
19 didn't ---. 19 Q. Turn back to Exhibit 70, page
20 A. She didn't meet the requirements 20 105
21 to graduate with a BSE, so | can't 21 ATTORNEY KRAMER;:
22 really answer that. It was her desire 22 Sevenor 707
23 to graduate with a BSE. She was not 23 ATTORNEY VOIGT:
24 able to complete that. It was her 24  Seventy (70).
25 desire to obtain a college degree. By 25 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
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Page 62

Page 64

1 Q. Now, in the upper right it says, 1 A. Well, it means that the request
2 student removed from student teaching, 2 was to take one English course to count
3 changed degree to BA. Is that your 3 for another one and move one course
4 writing? 4 that was in one spot to another spot.
5 A. No. 5 Q. When you say one spot to another
6 Q. Do you know whose writing it is? 6 spot, can you be more specific?
7 A. Yes. 7 A. In the student's degree programs
8 Q. Whose writing is it? 8 for the BA and the BSE, they have to
9 A. Dr. Umble's. 9 take a certain number of courses that
10 Q.Who is Dr. Umble? 10  fill requirements within those degrees.
11 A. Dr. Umble is the Acting 11 And so when they go on to the DARS
12 Associate Dean. 12 Audit, they go on in the slots that
13 Q. Why would he write something 13 they fill towards the degree. So there
14 like that? 14 was one course being counted one place
15 A. She. 15 that needed to be counted someplace
16 Q. She, why would she write 16 else.
17 something ---? 17 Q. Turn to page three of five. Why
18 A. Because if you look at --- well, 18 is there an approved stamp in the upper
19 | don't know ---. Why she wrote that, 19 right?
20 | don't know. 20 A. Because it was approved for the
21 Q. Okay. And in the middle on the 21 change.
22 left it looks like it says multiple 22 Q. By who?
23 changes/substitutions. Who wrote that? 23 A. Il don't know.
24 A. Dr. Umble. 24 Q. Was it you?
25 Q. Now, there is a signature at the 25 A. No.
Page 63 Page 65
1 bottom of the page here where it says 1 Q. And turn to page four of five.
2 for exception requests to requirements 2 This says, | need 331 moved to Amer.
3 in General Education or university 3 Lit, that's A-M-E-R, and 321 moved to
4 academic policy ---? 4 Elective.
5  A. Dr. Umble's signature. 5  A. Uh-huh (yes).
6 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 6 Q. Why would that be necessary?
7 You have to let him 7 A. To complete requirements for the
8 finish. 8 BSE degree for the same reason that we
9 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 9 moved the other courses around in the
10  Q.ls that Dr. Umble's signature? 10 first form.
11 A. Uh-huh (yes). 11 Q. And turn to page five of five.
12 Q. Is that a yes? 12 Now, it says here, | am requesting an
13 A. Yes. 13 exception to requirement. And then
14 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 14 there's an X in General Education.
15 Let him ask the question. 15 A Uh-huh (yes).
16 A.I'msorry. 16 Q.lIs that ayes?
17 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 17 A Yes. I'm sorry.
18 Q. Now, turn to page two of five of 18 Q. Did you write that, that X?
19 Exhibit 70. Whose signature is that? 19  A.No. Probably --- I'd say ---
20 A. That's Dr. Umble's. 20 no.
21 Q. What does that mean, | need 235 21 Q. Well, you can compare the
22 substituted for 233, and 240 moved to 22 writing on the X before General
23 elective? Is that what that says? 23 Education with the writing on Stacey
24 A. Yes, itis. 24 Snyder's signature. And you would
25 Q. What does that mean? 25 agree, would you not, that a different
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Page 66

Page 68

1 pen was used? 1 had to be a change in the General
2 A.ldon't know. | have no way of 2 Education core to create a minor
3 knowing that. 3 because the BA students have to
4 Q. Doesn't it appear that way, that 4 graduate with a minor and Dr. McCollum-
5 a felt tip marker ---? 5 Clark must have been on campus that day
6 A. One is bolder. One is bolder 6  and signed the form for Stacey.
7 than the other. 7 Q. Stacey didn't sign this
8 Q. Now, compare Exhibit Five of 8  form--?
9 five with Exhibit One of five. Would 9 A No. She signed her own name.
10 you not agree that Stacey's signature 10 Q. Let me finish my question.
11 is exactly the same on both? 11 Stacey did not sign this form on May
12 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 12 17th, 2006. We can agree on that?
13 I'm not going to have her 13 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
14 become an expert graphologist on 14 Well, it says 5/12. We
15 this, Mark. The signatures are 15 can assume that she signed it
16 what they are. She doesn't --- 16 5/12. But Dr. Schneller has no
17 you know, I'm not going to have 17  information when she signed ---.
18 her compare the signatures. 18 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
19 ATTORNEY VOIGT: 19 Q. Did you observe her sign this
20 Well, a lay person can 20  document?
21 see that it is. 21 A I'mnot sure.
22 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 22 Q. When Stacey was in your office
23 Well, I don't know that 23 on May 12th, 2006, did you have her
24 they ---. 24 sign blank authorizations so that you
25 A/l have no expertise in 25  could fill in what was necessary later?
Page 67 Page 69
1 handwriting analysis. 1 A No. She was present when ---
2 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 2 the back page --- there should be a
3 Q. Let me ask you a question. How 3 second side ---.
4 is it that Kim McCollum-Clark signed on 4 Q. Answer the question, please.
5 May 17th on a document that Stacey 5 A. No. She didn't sign any blank
6 signed on May 12th? 6 documents.
7 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 7 Q. Then how is it that Stacey
8 Are you on five of five 8 signed these two documents that one
9 now? 9 bears your signature on advisor's line
10 ATTORNEY VOIGT: 10 and one bears Kimberly McCollum-
11 Yes, five of five. 11 Clark's signature on a different date?
12 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 12 ATTORNEY KRAMER
13 Q. How is it that Kim McCollum- 13 Don't speculate.
14 Clark signed that document? 14 A. We filled out these forms on
15 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 15 Friday, when Stacey --- we filled out
16 Answer only if you know. 16  these forms when Stacey was in my
17 A. You mean, do | know where Kim 17 office on Friday for the change of
18 was when this was signed? 18 major.
19  BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 19 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
20 Q. Why does this document exist? 20 Q. But can we agree that you added
21 Why was it necessary for you to write 21  additional information to the form
22 yet another exception to graduation 22 after May 12th, 2006 when Stacey signed
23 requirements? 23 the document?
24 A. Well, as the form indicates, 24 A. She was --- well, are we talking
25 there had to be a change in --- there 25 about one, three or five?
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Page 70

Page 72

1 Q. Five. You added more 1 originally counted in one place for the
2 information after Stacey's signature; 2 BSE degree to substitute for things
3 right? 3 that were needed for her to complete
4 A Five. For five we added 4 the BA degree. But this says that she
5 signatures of approval after Stacey 5 lacks sufficient course credits, which
6  signed the document. 6 she didn't. We just had to --- we just
7 Q. Did you tell Stacey about that? 7 had to move them from one curriculum
8  Did you ever share this document, P-70, 8  design to the other.
9 page five of five with Stacey? 9 Q. What's a curriculum design?
10 A This was part of the form. 10  A. Well, do you not have the
11 These were part of the forms that had 11 curriculum sheets that shows the
12 to be signed for her to get the BA, so, 12 degrees ---?
13 yes, she knew what forms had to be 13 Q. Just answer the question.
14 filled out and she knew why. 14 What's a curricular design? He can't
15 Q. Now, on the third amended 15 help you. What's a curricular design?
16 complaint, paragraph 44, it reads, at 16 A. Well, it's just a —- it's just
17  the time Plaintiff lacks sufficient 17 how the courses are put together for
18  course credits in the English 18  the programs. So it was just a way of
19  Department to graduate with a BA in 19  describing them. So to move from one
20  English. Is that true? 20  program to the other with the courses
21 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 21  that she had, we had to flip them
22 If she could, please, see 22 around.
23 that 23 Q. Now, you have students majoring
24 ATTORNEY VOIGT: 24 in English who are not seeking a BSE
25 Sure. Second page. 25 degree; correct?
Page 71 Page 73
1 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 1 A Yes.
2 Q. Is that a true statement? 2 Q. And those students have to
3 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 3 fulfill all of the requirements,
4 I'll object to the form. 4 including all the various pigeonholes
5  A.Did you ask me if it's true? 5  of curricular exactitude that you have
6 ATTORNEY VOIGT: 6 in place; correct?
7 Yes. 7 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
8 A. No. No, it's not. 8 Object to the form. You
9 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 9 can answer.
10 Q. So, you ---? 10 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
11 A. Because ---. 11 Q. They have to meet certain
12 Q. Let me finish my question. So 12 criteria and take certain courses to
13 you did not --- strike that. 13 graduate with a BA in English; is that
14 You changed certain credits from 14 correct?
15 General Education credits to English 15 A Yes.
16 Department specific credits on Stacey's 16 Q. Yet Stacey didn't have to do
17 behalf; correct? 17 that; right?
18 A. No, not General Education. 18 A. We moved her --- we moved
19 Q. What type of credits would you 19 courses around that she already had
20 consider the ones that you changed on 20 completed so that she would have the
21 Stacey's behalf? 21 120 credits necessary to graduate with
22 A. Well, we changed English degree 22 a BA.
23— we changed English program credits 23 Q. Did you believe that was fair to
24 to have the courses that are shown on 24 the other English Department students
25 these exception forms that were 25  who had to work hard in each and every
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Page 74 Page 76
1 core curricular area? 1 Q. The same person that put Stacey
2 ATTORNEY KRAMER; 2 on the Dean's List; correct?
3 | object to the form. 3 A ltisthe same person. He s
4 You can try to answer. 4 the same person.
5 A. |l really wasn't terribly 5 Q. Have you ever had a case ---
6 concerned about the other students at 6  strike that.
7 the time. | was concerned about 7 Up until May of 2006, had you
8 helping Stacey. 8  ever had a case in which Dean Short
9 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 9  contacted you to question the
10 Q. Did you consult with Dr. Wenrich 10  exceptions that you filled out on a
11  during your effort to change Stacey's 11  student's behalf concerning courses?
12 credits around at the time? 12 A.ldon't remember now.
13 A. Yes. 13 Q. Is Dean Short in some capacity
14 Q. And what, if any, conversations 14  your supervisor or your superior?
15 did you have with Dr. Wenrich? 15  A. Yes.
16  A. We would have discussed what --- 16  Q.Inwhatway? How is he your
17 we would have discussed what was on 17 superior?
18 Stacey's audit that we could use to 18 A In an academic institution we
19 accomplish the BA, because we would 19 use the phrase direct report. And the
20 need to corroborate on the completed 20 Dean is my direct report, so he is
21 forms for them ---. 21 aware --- in the hierarchy of the
22 Q. Am| correct that if you do not 22 university, he is aware of what we do
23 fill the forms out correctly, the 23 as department chairs.
24 Registrar's Office will contact you? 24 Q. And does he in some way prepare
25 A. No. 25 documents or otherwise evaluate your
Page 75 Page 77
1 Q. What will happen if you don't 1 fitness as a department chair?
2 fill the forms out correctly? 2 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
3 A If we don't fill out the 3 Are you asking if he does
4 exception forms correctly? 4 performance evaluations?
5  Q.Yes. 5  BY ATTORNEY VOIGT.:
6  A.They go from us to the Dean's 6  Q.Yes. As of May 2006, did Dean
7 Office. So the Dean's Office would 7 Short prepare performance evaluations
8 look at them. And if there was a 8 onyou?
9 problem, that would be the party that | 9 A No.
10 would deal with. 10 Q. Did he evaluate you in any way
11 Q. And who in the Dean's Office 11 as of May 2006? You said he was your
12 would become involved if you did not 12 superior of some kind.
13 fill the forms out correctly? 13 A. As a tenured faculty member, we
14 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 14 have five year review post tenure. He
15 That calls for 15 may have been the person who did that,
16 speculation. 16 but there were transitions in the
17 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 17 Dean's Office, so I'm not sure if he
18 Q. If you know. Who in the Dean's 18 did.
19 Office would contact you if you did not 19 Q. Andis it possible that an
20 fill out the forms on Stacey's behalf 20 incorrectly completed exception request
21 correctly? 21 might be an item that could come up on
22 A. The Dean. 22 your five year tenure review?
23 Q. And who would the Dean be? 23 A No.
24 A. At that time, | guess it was 24 Q. They don't care about things
25 Dean Short. 25  like that?
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Page 78 Page 80
A. I'm a teaching faculty member 1 A Itwasn't a conversation.
and a professor at the university. 2 Q. Well, you spoke to her, but it
Q. So they don't care about 3 wasn't a conversation.
graduation exceptions? 4 A. Well, we smiled at each other.
A. These forms you can't --- these 5 She hugged me. | said congratulations.
forms you can't mess up. | mean, the 6 You don't have conversations with
only thing --- the only thing that they 7 people at graduation. You say hello,
could say is, they could look at what 8 goodbye, good luck. | mean, that's
you were asking for and say, we don't 9 basically it, you know.
--- you know, is there another way that 10 Q. Since the event of May 2006,
the student could, you know, complete a 11 have you had any conversations with Dr.
course or, you know, they might ask or 12 Bray about the events in this lawsuit,
they might turn it back and say, well, 13 outside the presence of counsel?
this person is asking for an exception 14 A. Can you be more specific about
and they're a freshman. They're going 15  what you mean by events?
to graduate in four years. 16 Q. Do you understand the events
There's not any way that you can 17 that are complained of in this lawsuit?
that you can --- you keep saying could 18 A. Yes.
they be filled out incorrectly. There 19 Q. About those events, did you have
isn't any way to fill them out 20 any conversations with Dr. Bray since
incorrectly. This is a curriculum 21 May of 20067
approval amendment process or 22 A. Yes.
adjustment process. 23 Q. When?
Q. Isn't it possible that the Dean 24 A. After the lawsuit was made
might ask you why you were changing a 25 public and we saw it in the papers, the
Page 79 Page 81
student's degree from a BSE to a BA the 1 local papers.
day before graduation? Isn't that 2 Q. What did you talk to Dr. Bray
possible? 3 about?
ATTORNEY KRAMER: 4 A. | said, | was surprised that
It calls for speculation. 5  Stacey had --- that Stacey was doing
ATTORNEY VOIGT: 6 this.
You can answer. 7 Q. Why were you surprised?
A. Anything is possible. 8  A. Because she was so --- because
BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 9  she --- because she was so glad when
Q. Why did you pick English to have 10 she graduated on May 13th to have a
Stacey graduate as an English degree? 11 degree. And she was very upset. She
Why not some other degree? 12 was --- you know, she was looking at
A. She's involved in my department. 13 her career and saying, what am | going
She chose English as her degree. 14 to do? And we sat in my office. We
Q. She chose a BSE, not a ---. 15  talked about the forms. We talked
ATTORNEY KRAMER: le  about the degree transition and she ---
Objection. It's 17 you know, she left --- she left happy.
argumentative. 18 | mean, in the sense that if you think
BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 19 that your career is --- you know, that
Q. Did you attend Stacey's 20 you're not going to get something that
graduation? 21 you had worked so hard for, for four
A Yes. 22 years and you're looking at it saying,
Q. Did you speak to her that day? 23 my career is going to be over or
A.Yes. | think I did. 24 whatever. And then someone can say,
Q. Describe that conversation. 25  well, we can fix it like this. A human

SARGENT'S COURT REPORTING SERVICES,

(814)

21 (Pages 78 to 81)

INC.

536-8908




Page 82 Page B4
1 response is to be —-. 1 any conversations with Deann Buffington
2 Q. Is that what you think you did? 2 about the matters in the complaint?
3 Do you think you fixed it for Stacey? 3 A No.
4 A. Well, not fix. | mean to offer 4 Q. Have you had any conversations
5 her another alternative to give her a 5  with Nicole Reinking about the matters
6 way to achieve her goal. 6 in the complaint?
7 Q. You're aware that Stacey has 7 A. No.
8 never received her teaching degree; 8 Q. Who do you believe made the
9 correct? 9 decision to deny Stacey her Bachelor of
10 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 10 Science in Education Degree?
11 Don't speculate. 11 ATTORNEY KRAMER
12 A. No. 12 If you know the answer,
13 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 13 you may answer.
14 Q. Are you aware that Stacey now 14 A Idon't know the answer to that.
15 works as a waitress at the local 15 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
16  American ---? 16 Q. Why not?
17  A. No. 17 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
18 Q. Are you aware that Stacey works 18 I'll object.
19  as aclothing salesman? 19 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
20 A.No. 20 Q. Why don't you know the answer?
21 Q. Are you aware that Stacey has 21 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
22 never become a teacher? 22 Object as to form. And
23 A. Well, yes, because that was what 23 youcan try to answer.
24 was mentioned in the original newspaper 24 A. Why don't | know?
25 articles. But other than that, | don't 25 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
Page 83 Page 85
1 know anything about what she is doing 1 Q. Well, you're a department head
2 orwhat she has done. | only know what 2 atMillersville. Do you not know who
3 was reported in the newspaper. And | 3 would make the decision from one of
4 looked at it one time when | saw the 4 your English Department students not to
5 picture on the cover of the paper and 5  get a BSE degree?
6 thatwasit. 6 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
7 Q. Are you aware that Stacey could 7 It's a different
8 not repay her student loans? 8 department.
9 A. No 9 ATTORNEY VOIGT:
10 Q. Are you aware that because of 10 | appreciate your
11 that Millersville would not release 11 coaching, but why don't you let
12 Stacey's transcript for almost two 12 the witness answer.
13  years? 13 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
14 A No. 14 Q. Why would you not know something
15 Q. Since May of 2006, have you had 15 like that?
16  any conversations with Dr. Wenrich le A Well it doesn't come up in my
17 about the matters complained about in 17 routine work.
18 this complaint? 18 Q. But it came up in Stacey's case;
19 A. No. 19 right? Would it not behoove you to
20 Q. Since May of 2006, have you had 20 know who made the decision that Stacey
21  any conversations with Barry Girvin 21 would not receive a BSE?
22 about the matters set forth in the 22 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
23 complaint? 23 Objection, argumentative.
24 A.No. 24 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
25 Q. Since May of 2006, have you had 25 Q. In Stacey's case, why would you
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Page 86

Page 38

1 not want to know who made the decision 1 Q. --- what information did she

2 to deny Stacey her BSE degree? 2 tell you about her situation?

3 A My only part in this was to help 3 A. She said to me that she was not

4  Stacey achieve a college degree because 4 going to be able to complete her

5  that's what she wanted. And the way to 5  student teaching.

6  do that was to process her through from 6 Q. Did she tell you why?

7  aBSE toa BA. The Commonwealth of 7 A. She said there had been a

8  Pennsylvania, as far as | understand, 8 problem at the school.

9  atthe end of commencement when the 9 Q. Anything else that she said?
10 President says, according to the powers 10  A. She expressed concern about how
11 vested in me by the Commonwealth, | 11 she was going to be able to graduate
12 confer on you your degree, you know, | 12 the next day.

13 have no reason to even think about 13 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
14 anything like that because that's not 14 Nothing else.
15  whatldo. I'm not a university 15 ATTORNEY VOIGT:
16  president and | don't have arole in 16 Thank you.
17  that. 17  A. Uh-huh (yes).
18 Q. Did you take Dr. Bray's word for 18 R A
19 it when she called you that time and 19 DEPOSITION CONCLUDED
20  said, we're changing Stacey's degree 20 *oh ok ok ok Ak
21 from a BSE to a BA? 21
22 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 22
23 1object. She said 23
24 Stacey came in and explained 24
25 that, not Dr. Bray. 25
Page 87 Page 89

1 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: ' CERTIFICATE

2 Q. During your --- let me rephrase ‘

3 that. YOU had one Conversation With 3 | HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS ELECTRONIC TRANSCRIPT WAS

4 Dr. Bray about Stacey. |S that the sum 4 REPORTED BY ME AND THEREAFTER REDUCED TO TYPEWRITING AND THAT

5 total Of your convel‘sations With Dr. S THIS TRANSCRIPT IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE RECORD THEREOF.

6 Bray? E

7 A I tOld you I donlt remember hOW 7 SARGENT'S COURT REPORTING SERVICE, INC.

8 many conversations there were. It's °

9  been two years ago. °
10 Q. In that conversation, did Dr. 0
11  Bray say to you that Stacey was getting H
12 a---was not getting a BSE? Is that '?  COURTREPORTER
13 what she said to you? 2
14 A ldon't know that she said that H
15  tome. '

16 ATTORNEY VOIGT: e
17 Let's take a short break v
18  and I'll take a look at my 1
19  notes. H
20 SHORT BREAK TAKEN ”
21 EXAMINATION t
22 BY ATTORNEY KRAMER: e
23 Q.When Ms. Snyder went to you on 2
24 May 12th, 2006, --- 4
25 A, Uh-huh (yes). >

SARGENT'S COURT REPORTING SERVICES,
536-8908

(814)

23 (Pages 86 to 89)

INC.




EXHIBIT J



Apr.

3.

2008 2:05PM No.3164 P.
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

STACY SNYDER, : CIVIL ACTION

Plaintiff,

V.
MILLERSVILLE UNIVERSITY, :
etal, : 07-1660

Defendants. ‘

Declaration

I, Vilas A. Prabhu, hereby declare as follows:

1. I am the Provost at Millersville University. In that capacity, among other

responsibilities, I hear students’ academic appeals.

2. In February 2007, Stacy Snyder appealed the May 2006 demial of a B.S.Ed.
degree and requested a hearing pursuant to Millersville’s Academic Appeals Policy.

3. As Provost, I conducted that hearing. As described in my March 26, 2007, letter
to Ms. Snyder and her counsel, which is attached hereto, I denied her appeal because the
evidence showed, among other things, that she failed to satisfy the University academic
requirements for student teaching.

4, Plaintiff’s internet posting, the so-called “drunken pirate” pic’ture and
accompanying text, did not play any role in my decision. In fact, at that time I had not

even seen a copy of the internet posting in question.

2/3
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I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing facts are true and correct.

Millersville, PA

DATED: D4/p3 /2008 //é / . /4: o

Vilas A. Prabhu
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SEIZE THE OPPORTUNITY www.millersville.edu

Provost and Vice President for Acad-emic Affairs
Phone: 717-872-3596
Fax: 717-871-2251

March 26, 2007

CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Ms, Stacy L. Snyder Mark W. Voigt, Esq.

847 Bunker Hill Road Attorney at Law

Strasburg, PA 17579 Plymouth Meeting Executive Campus
: Suite 400

600 West Germantown Pike
Plymouth Meeting, PA 19462

RE: Academic Appeal of Stacy Snyder - Student Teaching Performance

Dear Ms. Snyder and Mr. Voigt:

The purpose of this letter is to inform you of my decision regarding your academic appeal.
Specifically, you requested that | review the determination that Dr. Jane Bray, Dean of the
School of Education, made on May 15, 2006. My understanding is that Dr. Bray denied your
appeal because you failed to satisfy the University's academic requirements for student
teaching. Your failure to satisfy the proficiency standards of the Pennsylvania Department of
Education ("PDE") precludes you from receiving teacher certification, and played a critical role
in Dr. Bray’s determination.

Pursuant to Millersville University's Academic Appeals Policy published on page 53 of the 2006-
2007 Undergraduate Catalog, | personally met with you, in the presence of your attorney, and
carefully reviewed the materials you submitted in support of your academic appeal. Dr. Bray
and Dr. Judith Wenrich, Student Teaching Coordinator in the School of Education, also attended
the meeting and submitted materials regarding your student teaching performance.

The documentation shows that Millersville University admitted you into its Advanced
Professional Studies Program, which required you to complete a student teaching component in
order to receive a Bachelor of Science in Education (B.S.Ed.) degree. Prior to your student
teaching assignment, the University provided you with a Guide for Student Teaching. The
Guide states that in order to receive teaching certification in Pennsylvania, a Millersville
University student must satisfactorily complete student teaching. Each student teacher
candidate is evaluated in the categories set forth in the PDE-430 form, which are Planning and
Preparation, Classroom Environment, Instructional Delivery and Professionalism. According to
the Guide, each candidate must receive a satisfactory rating in all of the categories listed on the
PDE-430 in order to be eligible for certification by the Commonwealth. The Guide also states,
under the heading “Professional Conduct,” the following requirement: “...the Student Teacher
needs to maintain the same professional standards expected of the teaching employees of the

cooperating school.”
P-C>
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- Ms. Stacy L. Snyder and Mr. Mark W. Voigt, Esq.
March 26, 2007
Page 3 of 3

with regard to professional matters, you displayed poor judgment throughout the entire
semester.

Consistent with these evaluations, the final PDE-430 form completed by your University
supervisor, and required by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for eligibility for teaching
certification, shows an unsatisfactory rating in Professionalism. There are eight performance
indicators for the Professionalism category. The University supervisor cited half of the total list
as not having been demonstrated. These included the following:

o Integrity and ethical behavior, professional conduct as stated in Pennsylvania Code of
Professional Practice and Conduct for Educators; and local, state, and federal, laws and
regulations

o Effective communication, both oral and written with students, colleagues,
paraprofessionals, related service personnel, and administrators.

- o Ability to cultivate professional relationships with school colleagues.

o Knowiedge of Commonwealth requirements for continuing professional development

and licensure.

In addition, the University supervisor rated your performance in the professionalism component
of the student teaching evaluation as unsatisfactory.

Based on a review of the entire record, | have decided to uphold the determination of Dr. Bray.
Your overall poor performance during student teaching resulted in your ineligibility to receive
teaching certification from the Commonweaith. Accordingly, it is my determination that Dr. Bray
fairly resolved this academic issue by allowing you to graduate on time with a Bachelor of Arts

degree in English.
I wish you success in your future pursuits.
Sincerely,
Vilas A. Prabhu
Provost and Vice President
for Academic Affairs

nhk

c. Mr. Jeffrey Hawkins, University Legal Counsel, Pennsylvania State System
of Higher Education



Ms. Stacy L. Snyder and Mr. Mark W. Voigt, Esq.
March 26, 2007
Page 2 of 3

In addition to the PDE-430 form, Millersville University assesses student teachers’ performance
and provides them with feedback through a University assessment form, the Millersville Student
Teaching Mid-Evaluation and Final Evaluation.

A review of the record shows the following:

Throughout your student teaching semester, you received feedback from your cooperating
teacher and the University supervisor regarding your overall student teaching performance. The
Millersville University evaluation forms document muitiple concerns at both the mid-point and
end of your student teaching semester.

At the midpoint of the semester, the cooperating teacher’s Millersville Student Teaching Mid-
Evaluation — English evaluated you as needing improvement or significant remediation in twelve
. different areas. The cooperating teacher's comments included the following:

“Many errors were made in daily lessons that were partly due to weak content

knowledge...”

e “Too many students are left behind as a result of ineffective lessons...”

o “.. frequently, she resorts to talking over the students, twice shouting ‘shut up,” and
overall feeling and showing that she is frustrated and not in control.”

o “Many students who completed Miss Snyder's earlier units in the course would not, I'm

afraid, demonstrate a strong evidence of learning.”

The cooperating teacher further reported numerous incidences of unprofessional behavior
within the context of your supervised student teaching performance during the semester. This
included playing a song that included profane language, attempting to regain order by telling the
students to “shut up,” discussing personal matters in front of students, failing to wear
appropriate professional attire and not following the proper chain of command at the school. In
addition, your cooperating teacher warned you to avoid discussions about myspace.com and
looking up student online accounts or corresponding with students on the website. You
acknowledged in writing that several of these incidents did occur.

Also at the mid-point of the semester, the University supervisor evaluated you as needing
improvement or significant remediation in twelve areas on the Millersville Student Teaching Mid-
Evaluation - English. Consistent with this, he rated your performance as unsatisfactory in the
Classroom Environment category of the mid-placement PDE-430 form. This equates to a
failure, although at mid-placement the PDE-430 is a formative evaluation to provide the student
teacher with feedback.

At the end of the semester, the final Millersville evaluations still show unsatisfactory
performance in multiple areas, despite improvements noted in other areas. The cooperating
teacher’s final Millersville Student Teaching Final Evaluation ~ English shows unsatisfactory
ratings in four of the six indicators of Professionalism and in two indicators of Preparation. As
evidence, the cooperating teacher stated, “Most of Miss Snyder’s written and oral
communications with students and staff contained numerous grammatical and/or content errors,
which is a cause for concern for an evaluator of a future English teacher. Frequently, in fact,
her students corrected her during her lessons.” In addition, the cooperating teacher noted that
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DEPOSITION OF
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Page 2 Page 4
1 DEPOSITION 1 I NDEKX
2 OF 2
3 GERALD G. HUESKEN, ED.D., taken on 3 WITNESS: GERALD G. HUESKEN, ED.D.
4 behalf of the Plaintiff herein, 4 EXAMINATION
5 pursuant tc the Rules of Civil 5 by Attorney Voigt 7 - 60
(<] Procedure, taken before me, the (<] EXAMINATION
7 undersigned, Hilary Culver, a Court 7 by Attorney Kramer 61 - 66
8 Reporter and Notary Public in and for 8 CERTIFICATE 67
9 the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, at 9
10 the law offices of Kegel, Kelin, Almy & 10
11 Grimm, LLP, 24 North Lime Street, 11
12 Lancaster, Pennsylvania, on Friday, 12
13 April 4, 2008 beginning at 10:30 a.m. 13
14 14
15 15
16 16
17 17
18 18
19 19
20 20
21 21
22 22
23 23
24 24
25 25
Page 3 Page 5
1 APPEARANCES 1 EXHIBIT PAGE
2 2
3 MARK VOIGT, ESQUIRE 3 PAGE
4 Law Offices of Mark Voigt 4 NUMBER DESCRIPTION IDENTIFIED
5 Plymouth Meeting Executive Campus 5 102 Student Teacher List 24
6 600 W. Germantown Pike 6 103 Summary Policy 27
7  Suite 400 7
8 Plymouth Meeting, PA 19462 8
9 COUNSEL FOR PLAINTIFF 9
10 10
11 BARRY KRAMER, ESQUIRE 11
12 Office of Attorney General 12
13 21 South 12th Street 13
14 Philadelphia, PA 19107 14
15 COUNSEL FOR DEFENDANT 15
16 MILLERSVILLE 16
17 17
18 HOWARD KELIN, ESQUIRE 18
19 Kegel, Kelin, Almy & Grimm, LLP 19
20 24 North Lime Street 20
21 Lancaster, PA 17602 21
22 COUNSEL FOR 22
23 CONESTOGA VALLEY 23
24 24
25 25 EXHIBITS NOT ATTACHED
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Page 6

Page 8

1 OBJECTION PAGE 1 Q. Well, have you had a chance to
2 2 talk to Mr. Kelin about how depositions
3 ATTORNEY PAGE 3 proceed?
4 Kelin 11, 18, 18, 45, 4 Aldid
5 47, 50, 59, 64 5 Q. Well, let me just go over some
6 Voigt 64 6  of the ground rules. First of all, the
7 Kramer 50 7 court reporter has administered an oath
8 8  toyou that is the same oath as you
9 9 would take if you were in a court of
10 10  law and it carries with it the same
11 11 penalties, so you teil the truth, the
12 12 whole truth and nothing but the truth.
13 13 Additionally, as you can see the
14 14 reporter is transcribing everything
15 15  that we say on a computer with a
16 16  mouthpiece, so you need to, number one,
17 17 wait until the questioner, either
18 18 myself or somebody else, is done with
19 19  the question before you respond because
20 20 the reporter has a hard time taking
21 21 down two people talking at once.
22 22 Additionally, please keep your
23 23 voice up so the reporter can hear you.
24 24 Please answer questions with a worded
25 25 response rather than a nod of the head
Page 7 Page 9
1 PROCEEDINGS 1 or a shake of the head or a uh-huh or
2 2 uh-uh because the reporter has a hard
3 GERALD G. HUESKEN, ED.D., HAVING FIRST 3 time taking those things down as well.
4 BEEN DULY SWORN, TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS: 4 Are you under the influence of any
5 5 medications or any other pain relievers
6 EXAMINATION 6  or anything that might influence your
7 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 7 testimony today?
8 Q. Would you state your name and 8  A.I'm under the influence of a
9 business address? 9 cold, but no medications.
10 A My name is Gerald G. Huesken. 10 Q. Well, let's get started then.
11 And my business address is Conestoga 11 What is your position at Conestoga
12 Valley School District, 2110 Horseshoe 12 Valley?
13 Road, Lancaster, 17601. 13 A. I'm the superintendent.
14 Q. Could you spell Huesken? 14 Q. And would you briefly review for
15 A. H-U-E-S-K-E-N. 15  the reporter your educational and
16 Q. Mr. Huesken ---is it Dr. 16  correctional background?
17 Huesken? 17 A. My educational background, |
18 A Dr. Huesken. 18  have an undergrad degree from
19 Q. My name is Mark Voigt. I'm the 19 Susquehanna University. | have a
20  attorney representing Stacey Snyder in 20 Master's Degree from the University of
21 alawsuit against various individuals 21 Pennsylvania and a Doctorate Degree
22  at Millersville University and this is 22 from Temple University. I'm in my 29th
23 your deposition in that case. Have you 23 year of experience in the field of
24 ever had your deposition taken before? 24 education, most of it which would have
25 A No. 25  been in administration. | have five
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Page 10

Page 12

1 years teaching in a classroom and 24 1 Seldomridge, | take it?
2 years as a building and central office 2 A. Yes, itis.
3 administrator. 3 Q. Does he hold a Doctorate Degree
4 Q. How long have you been at 4 or no?
5 Conestoga Valley now? 5 A. No.
6 A. Twenty (20) years, ten years as 6 Q. Does he hold a Master's Degree?
7 superintendent. 7 A. | believe he does, yes.
8 Q. Are you familiar with Stacey 8 Q. What were you told about Ms.
9  Snyder? 9  Snyder's incident?
10 A. I'm familiar with the case. 10 ATTORNEY KELIN:
11 Q. And you're aware that Ms. Snyder 11 Again, you're asking back
12 was a student teacher at Conestoga 12 in May of '06?
13 Valley here in the spring of 2006; 13 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
14 right? 14 Q. Yes, in May of 2006.
15 A Yes. 15 A.lknow | was briefed on the
16 Q. Did you have any interaction 16 situation. | can't say exactly what
17  with Ms. Snyder when she was astudent 17  was said to me at that time, especially
18 teacher? 18 given what has transpired since then.
19 A. No. 19 So it would be difficult for me to say
20 Q. You never met her or spoke to 20 exactly what was said to me, but | was
21 her? 21 briefed on the situation. | was aware
22 A. No. 22 of it.
23 Q. Well, you're aware that Ms. 23 Q. Well, I'm not expecting you to
24 Snyder eventually was forbidden to 24 remember verbatim what was said, but do
25 return to Conestoga Valley School 25  you remember when you were briefed?
Page 11 Page 13
1 District prior to the end of her 1 A. No.
2 student teaching assignment? 2 Q. Do you remember what time of day
3 ATTORNEY KELIN: 3 it was?
4 Objection to the form. 4  A.No.
5 Go ahead, you can answer the 5 Q. Was it by telephone or in
6 question, if you're able to. 6 person?
7 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 7 A. It was probably in person, but |
8 Q. Well, let me rephrase the 8 couldn't say that | remember.
9  question. You're aware that an 9 ATTORNEY KELIN:
10 incident occurred regarding Ms. Snyder 10 I'd just ask the witness
11 and Conestoga Valley School District in 11 not to speculate. If you can't
12 or about early May of 2006; correct? 12 remember, just say you don't
13 A I'm aware of the situation. 13 remember.
14 Q. Did you play any role in the 14 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
15 events that transpired in early May of 15 Q. What, if any, response did you
16 20067 16 have to Mr. Seldomridge?
17 A No. 17 A.lcan't recollect what my
18 Q. Were you informed of those 18 response was.
19 events as they were transpiring? 19 Q. Did you have any conversations
20 A. Yes. | was briefed. 20 with --- well, first of all do you know
21 Q. Who briefed you? 21  who Deann Buffington is?
22 A. My assistant. 22 A Yes.
23 Q. Who was that? 23 Q. Did you have any conversations
24 A. Kim Seldomridge. 24 with Miss Buffington at or near May of
25 Q. And what is it -—- is it Mr. 25 20067
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Page 14

Page 16

1 Al can't say definitely that | 1  the case at any time with Ms.
2 did about this case. 2 Buffington outside the presence of
3 Q. Do you know who Nicole Reinking 3 counsel?
4 is? 4 A. Outside the presence of counsel?
5 A. Yes, | do. 5 Q. Correct.
6 Q. Did you have any conversations 6  A.lcan'trecollect that | did.
7 with Ms. Reinking about the matter? 7 Q. Did you discuss this case at any
8  A.No. 8  time with Nicole Reinking outside the
9 Q.Doyou know who Jane Bray is? 9 presence of your attorney?
10 A Yes. 10 A. No.
11 Q. Have you had any discussions at 11 Q. Now, you have a couple of three-
12 any time about this case with Jane 12 ring binders available here. Turn to
13  Bray? 13 Exhibit 97, please. Are you familiar
14 A. No. 14  with this document?
15 Q. Have you had any discussions at 15 A Yes.
16  any time about this --- strike that. 16 Q. This is the professional
17 Do you know who Vilas Prabhu is? 17 handbook dated September 2007.
18 A. No. 18 A. Uh-huh (yes).
19 Q. Do you know who Judith Wenrich 19 Q. Do you know whether there were
20 is? 20  any changes in the professional
21 A. No. The name's familiar, but | 21 handbook?
22 can't say that | know her. 22 A.lwouldn't be able to say, no.
23 Q. Do you know who Beverly 23 I'm sure there were some updates.
24 Schneller is? 24 Q. Let me finish the question
25 A No. 25  before you answer. | know you might
Page 15 Page 17
1 Q. Do you know who Barry Girvin is? 1 anticipate my questions, but ---. The
2 A. Yes. 2 event that we're here about occurred in
3 Q. Have you had any conversations 3 May of 2006. Do you know whether this
4 with Mr. Girvin about Stacey's case at 4 handbook was updated in any way between
5  any time? 5  May of 2006 and September 20077
6 A. No. 6  A.lcan'tsay.
7 Q. Have you had any discussions 7 Q. Turn to page 13 of the
8 with Ms. Buffington at any time about 8 professional handbook, please.
9 the circumstances of this case, outside 9 A Thatwas page 13. I'm sorry.
10 the presence of counsel? 10 OFF RECORD DISCUSSION
11 A. About this case? About this 11 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
12 deposition? 12 Q. Now, the first paragraph last
13 Q. Yes, either the deposition or 13  sentence it says, this handbook applies
14 the case. 14 to all exempt, paren, salary, close
15 A. Only recently. She wanted to 15 paren, employees certificated by the
16 make sure | had the packet that | 16  Department of Education. Do you know
17 brought today. She had to make sure | 17  whether this handbook is provided to
18 didn't read it and | didn't. 18  student teachers at the time that they
19 ATTORNEY KELIN: 19  start?
20 It was the deposition 20 A. They are given direction how to
21 transcript that she returned to 21 accessit. It's online.
22 me through Mr. Huesken --- 22 Q. Who gives them that direction?
23 through Dr. Huesken. 23 A. The building principal.
24 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 24 Q. Now, based on this sentence, was
25 Q. Did you discuss the nature of 25 Ms. Snyder an employee of the Conestoga
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Page 18

Page 20

1 Valley School District at any time? 1 appears to be a section on company
2 ATTORNEY KELIN: 2 files, facilities and equipment,
3 | object as to form. | 3 personal use of the phone, fax and
4 also suspect that's outside his 4 computers, et cetera. Are you familiar
5  scope of knowledge. 5  with this section in the handbook?
6 ATTORNEY VOIGT: 6 A. To a certain extent, yes.
7 That's fine. Let me 7 Q. Are there any other policies or
8 rephrase the question. 8 procedures in effect at Conestoga
9 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 9 Valley having to do with internet usage
10 Q. Was Ms. Snyder an employee at 10 or computer usage of any type that
11 Conestoga Valley School Districtatany 11  you're aware?
12 point in time? 12 A There's an Appropriate Use
13 ATTORNEY KELIN: 13 Policy.
14  And I'll just object to 14 Q. Is that in the handbook?
15  the use of the term employee. 15  A. It should be referenced in here.
16 You can answer it to the best of 16 I'm sure it's in here. It talks about
17 your ability as a layman. 17 use of the internet.
18 That's a compliment. 18 Q. There's an Acceptable Use
19 A. Thank you. | appreciate that. 19 Policy.
20 She was not a paid employee of the 20  A. On the next page Acceptable Use
21 school district. 21 Policy.
22 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 22 Q. Page 46.
23 Q. Was she an unpaid employee of 23 A.Right. And it's not the policy
24 the school district? 24 verbatim, but most of it's in there.
25  A. Student teachers are really 25  Consequences of inappropriate use, |
Page 19 Page 21
1 apprentices or teachers in training. | 1 think that's what follows.
2 look at them that way. 2 Q. Page 48, it says consequences of
3 Q. Was she certificated? 3 inappropriate use.
4  A. That's what she was working on, 4 A. That's correct.
5 her certificate. 5 Q. In May of 20086, did the district
6 Q. But she was not certificated at 6 have any policy having to do with
7 the time that she was at Conestoga 7 MySpace accounts?
8  Valley School District; correct? 8 A. No.
S A That's correct. 9 Q. As of May of 2006, did the
10 Q. And the manual applies to salary 10 district provide any training or
11  employees, is that what it says? 11 education to its staff on appropriate
12 A That's what it says. 12 use of MySpace accounts?
13 Q. And did Ms. Snyder receive a 13 A. | can't answer that.
14  salary at any time while she was at 14 Q. Why not?
15 Conestoga Valley? 15  A.Well, I'm not directly involved
16 A No. 16 in staff development to say that we
17 Q. Now, are you familiar with the 17 didn't have a staff developer piece
18  contents of the professional handbook? 18 that talked about MySpace at that time.
19 A Toacertain extent. |1don't 19 | can't say definitely one way or the
20 have it memorized. 20 other.
21  Q.ls there any definition in the 21 Q. Turn to page 54 of the policy
22 professional handbook for the word 22 manual, please. This talks about
23  apprentice that you used? 23 employment classifications. Are you
24 A.ldon'tthink so. 24 familiar with this section?
25 Q. Now, turn to page 44. This 25 A. Uh-huh (yes).
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Page 22 Page 24
1 Q. Is that a yes? 1 No, Idid. I'lljustgo
2 A.Yes. I'm sorry. 2 on record --- | did provide you
3 Q. Now, there was no reference to 3 the hiring manual. It was after
4 apprentices in your employment 4 this letter ---.
5 classification section; correct? 5 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
6 A. That's correct. 6 Q. | take it you're familiar with
7 Q. Turn to page 98 or not 98, 7 the procedures for hiring employees in
8 Exhibit 98. This is a letter that | 8 the district, professional employees in
9  sent to Helen, dated February 2, 2008. 9  the district; is that correct?
10 Have you ever seen this letter? 10 A. Yes.
11 A. Yes. 11 Q. And you would agree with me that
12 Q. And turn to Exhibit 99, please. 12 professional employees who are hired
13 Now, this is a response, dated February 13 must be approved by the school board?
14 19, 2008. Have you ever seen this? 14 A. That's correct.
15 A Yes. 115 ATTORNEY VOIGT:
le Q. And on page two you are copied 116 And you were kind enough
17 on the document; is that correct? 17 to provide us with a list of
18 A. Yes. 18 student teachers for the spring
19  Q.Soamlcorrect that you had 19 semester of 2005-2006. And
20 input into the preparation of this 20 we'll mark that as Exhibit ---
21 document? 21 we'll call that 102 here in this
22 A. Yes. 22 file.
23 Q. Now, question number one asks 23 (Exhibit 102 marked for
24 for all employment manuals pertaining 24 identification.)
25 to the hiring of teachers in the 25 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
Page 23 Page 25
1  district. And on page 99, or Exhibit 1 Q. Do you have that in front of
2 99, you say, I'm not sure what you mean 2 you, sir?
3 here. 3 A. No.
4 ATTORNEY KELIN: 4 Q. Was this approved, this list
5 Well, he didn't say it. 5 approved by the school board?
6 I said it. 6 A. Yes.
7 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 7 Q. In what fashion was it approved
8 Q. Well, it says, not sure what you 8 by the school board?
9  mean here. Now, | take it there's a 9 A lIt's on their consent agenda and
10  district professional manual. 10  they vote on that agenda.
11  A. Excuse me? 11 Q. And what is a consent agenda?
12 Q. There's a district professional 12 A.Consent agenda is a list of
13  employee's manual? 13 items that are either routine or have
14 A That's what we just looked at. 14 been talked about by the Board before
15 ATTORNEY KELIN: 15 and they actually vote on them as a
16 Exhibit 98. 16 group.
17 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 17 Q. So the school board would be
18 Q. Exhibit 98, the professional 18 presented with a list similar to P-102?
19  employee's manual. So other than that, 19 A. Correct.
20  there are no manuals pertaining to the 20 Q. And they would vote yes or no on
21 employment or hiring of teachers? 21 it?
22 A. There is a hiring manual. I'm 22 A. Yes.
23 not sure --- | don't think he made you 23 Q. Is that procedure different from
24 copies yet. 24 the procedure in hiring a teacher as a
25 ATTORNEY KELIN: 25 professional employee?
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Page 30

Page 32

1 Q. But Millersville performs the 1 contract. And | take it there was no
2 clearance check; right? 2 such document; right?
3 A Millersville collects the forms 3 A That's correct.
4 from the students. 4 Q. Why not?
5 Q. Number five says, documentation 5  A. She doesn't receive a salary.
6 that the district reviewed appropriate 6 Q. Are you familiar with the
7 citizenship documents from Stacey to 7 guidelines under the school code for
8 ensure that she’s not an illegal alien. 8 employment contracts? Is that a yes?
9 Did the district do so? 9 A Yes.
10 A. No. 10 Q. Do you know whether the school
11 Q. Why not? 11  code differentiates between salary and
12 A. We don't do that for student 12 non-salary, or does it just apply to
13 teachers. 13 all teachers?
14 Q. But you would do that for 14  A. Teachers that we hire and pay a
15  teachers --- with respect to teachers; 15 salary, | would say that applies to
16 correct? 16  them.
17 A. That's correct. 17 Q. And number ten asks for the
18 Q. Is there a reason for the 18 report of Stacey's pre-employment
19  difference? 19  medical examination. And | believe
20 A. | can't say that | have one. 20 that none was completed; correct?
21 Q. And number six on P-98 asks for 21 A. Notfor us, no.
22 copies of all W-4 forms and IRS 22 Q. Do you know if Millersville did
23 recordkeeping documents, returningto 23  one?
24 Exhibit 99. There are no such 24 A. I'm not sure that they do
25 documents; correct? 25 require one or not. | know that that
Page 31 Page 33
1 A. Not for her, no. 1 might be a possibility.
2 Q. And why not? 2 Q. But the district requires
3 A. She's not paid a salary. 3 medical examinations for all
4 Q. And number seven asks for a copy 4 perspective teachers; correct?
5  of Stacey's personnel file. And | 5 A Thatis correct.
6  think there's no documents for that? 6 Q. Number 11 asks for proof that
7 A. She does not have a personnel 7 Stacey read, understood and agreed to
8 file in my office. 8 comply with the district's policy
9 Q. And the teachers do; correct? 9 manual. And you said, see the
10 A. The teachers do? | don't know 10 acknowledgement at the bottom, Bate
11 what you mean. 11  stamped CVSD 204. Other than the
12 Q. Well, teachers that are employed 12 response that Mr. Kelin gave in
13 by the Conestoga Valley School District 13 paragraph 11 on P-99, are you aware of
14 have personnel files; correct? 14 any other proof that Stacey agreed to
15 A. In my office, that's correct. 15 comply with the district’s policy
16 Q. And number eight asks for proof 16  manual?
17 that the district's school board 17 A. I'm not aware that she signed
18 approved Stacey's hiring. Yougaveme 18 off on anything other than what she
19 P-102; is that correct? 19 signed for Millersville. However, we
20 A. That's correct. 20 don't ask our employees to sign off
21 Q. Is there any other proof that 21 on ---,
22 the district approved Stacey’s hiring? 22 Q. Do you know whether Stacey
23 A. That would be the approval. 23 actually received a policy manual?
24 Q. And number nine asks for a copy 24 A. As | said earlier, they're given
25 of Stacey's written employment 25 the website to access it online.
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Page 34

Page 36

1 Q. Now, if teachers were hired, are 1 A. Yes, we do.
2 they actually given a copy of the 2 Q. Did the district provide a copy
3 policy manual? 3  of that policy to Stacey?
4  A. No. They're given the address, 4 A. Not specifically.
5  the web address, where they can access 5 Q. Would you say in some sort of
6 it online. 6  general way?
7 Q. And number 12 it asks for proof 7 A. There's information that talks
8  that Stacey received a copy of the 8 about appropriate conduct in our
9 district's collective bargaining 9 materials that we give them, however,
10  agreement. | take it that Stacey did 10  the policy and a signoff on that policy
11 not? 11 was not given to her.
12 A. Stacey did not. 12 Q. And what was the reason for
13 Q. Did not receive a copy of the 13 that?
14  district's collective bargaining 14 A. We generally do that for the
15  agreement? 15 paid employees.
16  A. Notfrom my office, no. 16 Q. Butyoudon't do that for your
17 Q. And you would agree with me that 17  student teachers; correct?
18  Stacey is not subject to the district's 18 A No.
19  collective bargaining agreement? 19 Q. Why not?
20 A, That's correct. 20 A.Why not?
21 Q. But all your teachers are 21 Q. Why not?
22 subject to the collective bargaining 22 A.lthink the requirement is for
23 agreement; correct? 23  the paid employees to get it.
24 A. Not all of our teachers belong 24 Q. Number 15 asks for proof that
25  to the local association, but we would 25  the district notified Stacey of the
Page 35 Page 37
1 apply the document to all our teachers. 1 requirement that she must report all
2 Q. And humber 13 asks for proof 2 incidents of suspected child abuse to
3 that the district provided Stacey a 3 the authorities and you did not supply
4 notice of her rights under the Family 4 proof; is that correct?
5 and Medical Leave Act. And | take it 5  A. | believe that's in the Code of
o6  that you have no such proof; correct? 6  Ethics that the state establishes. So
7 A. That's correct. 7 that's something that is referenced in
8 Q. And what would be the reason for 8 our employee manual that employees need
9 that? 9 to be familiar with that. I'm sure
10 A.ldon't believe that applies to 10 Millersville teaches that as well.
11 her. 11 Q. What makes you so sure?
12 Q. And why not? 12 A Because you're required to make
13 A.lthink it applies to folks that 13 sure that folks be prepared --- know
14 work a certain number of hours during 14 about that Code of Ethics. In fact, |
15  the course of the year for paid 15 go over that Code of Ethics with all
16 service. 16 our induction --- pre-teachers in our
17 Q. You would agree that paid 17 induction program.
18  service differentiates. 18 Q. But back to my point ---,
19 A. A certain number of hours, but 19 ATTORNEY KELIN:
20 I'm not an expert on all of that. 20  Are you making points or
21 Q. And number 14 asks for proof 21 asking questions?
22 that Stacey received a copy of the 22 ATTORNEY VOIGT:
23 district's Sexual Harassment and 23 Back to my question.
24 Improper Conduct policy. Does the 24 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
25 district have such a policy? 25 Q. Do you have any proof that the
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Page 38

Page 40

1 district notified Stacey of the 1  code; correct?
2 requirement that as an employee she 2 A. For what?
3 must report all incidents of suspected 3 Q. Forteachers to acknowledge that
4 child abuse? 4 the district prohibits them from
5 A. | have no proof. 5  wearing religious garb or jewelry.
& Q. And number 16 asks for a form 6  A.lcan't say where that signoff
7 signed by Stacey documenting her 7 is included, no. There are things that
8 understanding of the district's 8  we put our new teachers through.
9 prohibition of unlawful discrimination? 9 Q. Butin any event, Ms. Snyder did
10 A. | believe | answered that one. 10 not sign one, to your knowledge?
11 Q. I don't think so, but could you 11 A. That's correct.
12 repeat it, if you did. 12 Q. And number 19 asks for documents
13 A. Well, | said we have a copy of 13  orrather forms signed by Stacey
14 our policy, and our paid employees sign 14  concerning or acknowledging her rights
15 off on that. And | didn't have one for 15 under the Family Education Rights and
16 her. 16 Privacy Act. You don't have one of
17 Q. And number 17 asks for copies of 17 those either; correct?
18 all notices given to Stacey concerning 18 A. No.
19  the district's Workers' Compensation 19 Q. And the reason for that is what?
20 designated physicians. Did you give 20 A She's not a paid employee.
21 Stacey a copy of that? 21 Q. Number 20 asks for a copy of any
22 A. No. 22 notice provided to Stacey concerning
23 Q. Why not? 23 her rights under the Pennsylvania
24 A, She's not a paid employee. 24  Whistleblower Law. | take it you don't
25 Q. So Stacey, to your knowledge, 25 have one of those either?
Page 39 Page 41
1 would not have been covered under the 1 A. That's correct.
2 district's Workers' Compensation 2 Q. Same reason?
3 policy? 3 A. Yes.
4 A. Correct. 4 Q. And number 21 asks for copies,
5 Q. Does the district have a Medical 5  an acknowledgement form signed by
6 Insurance Policy for its teachers? 6 Stacey concerning her obligation to act
7 A Yes. 7 in accordance with the various state
8 Q. Would Stacey have been covered 8 criminal laws applicable to district
9  under the district's Medical Insurance 9  employees. And | take it you don't
10 Policy? 10 have anything responsive to that?
11 A No. 11 A That's correct.
12 Q. Why not? 12 Q. Same reason?
13 A She's not a paid employee. 13 A She's not a paid employee.
14 Q. Number 18 asks for a copy of an 14 Q. And 22 asks for copies of all
15 acknowledgment form signed by Stacey 15 acknowledgement forms signed by Stacey
16 documenting the district's prohibition 16 concerning her eligibility for
17 against teachers wearing religious garb 17 unemployment compensation benefits
18 or jewelry. Did you give that to 18 during holidays and school recesses.
15  Stacey? 19 Do you see that?
20 A. There are references to dress 20 A Yes, | see that.
21  code in our empioyee manual. And, 21 Q. And there's no documents;
22 again, we don't have our paid employees 22 correct?
23 or student teachers sign off on that. 23 A. That's correct.
24 Q. But there is an acknowledgement 24 Q. And you would agree with me that
25 form that's required under the school 25 after Stacey or after the events of May
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Page 42 Page 44
1 2006, Stacey would not have been 1 events of May of 2006, Stacey would not
2 eligible for unemployment 2 have been eligible for continued
3 compensation ---? 3 healthcare benefits through the
4 A. Correct. 4 district under COBRA; correct?
5 Q. Let me finish my question, 5 A. That's correct.
6 please. After the events of May 2006, 6 Q. And the reason for that is what?
7 you would agree with me that Stacey 7 A. She was not a paid employee
8  would not have been eligible for 8 eligible for benefits.
9 unemployment compensation through the 9 Q. But your regular teachers would
10 district by virtue of her 10 have been. If they would have been
11 relationship with ---? 11 laid off during the school year, they
12 A. Could you repeat the question, 12 could have applied for COBRA; correct?
13 please? 13 A If they were eligible for
14 Q. You would agree with me that 14  benefits.
15 after the events of May 2006, Stacey 15 Q. Why would they not be eligible
16  was not eligible for unemployment 16  for benefits?
17  compensation through Conestoga Valley; 17  A. If they were part time.
18  correct? 18 Q. And 25 asks for a copy of the
19 A Correct. 19  new hire report filed with the state by
20 Q. And the reason for that is ---? 20  the district on Stacey. |take it you
21 ATTORNEY KELIN: 21 didn't do one of those; correct?
22 Can we take a break? 22 A. No, we did not.
23 A.Yeah. That would be great. 23 Q. But you do that on your new
24 ATTORNEY VOIGT: 24 teachers; correct?
25 Let's take a quick break. 25 A That's correct.
Page 43 Page 45
1 SHORT BREAK TAKEN 1 Q. Are you familiar with the term,
2 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 2 professional employee, as it's used in
3 Q. And let's see, 23 asks for 3 this book?
4 copies of all forms signed by Stacey 4 A Yes.
5 concerning her duty not to falsify time 5 Q. And you would agree with me that
6 records. | take it that Stacey did not 6 Stacey was not a professional employee
7 execute one of those; correct? 7 here at the school district as used
8 A. That's correct. 8 under the school code?
9 Q. And you make your teachers sign 9 ATTORNEY KELIN:
10  those; correct? 10 well, I'll object --- as
11 A.lcan't answer that directly, 11 he understands it.
12 because when you're talking about time 12 ATTORNEY VOIGT:
13 records, that sounds more like 13 Asyou understand it.
14 classified employees, so | would check 14 A. As | understand it, | can't say
15 on that personnel requirement. 15 that | know all of the legal intentions
16 Q. All right. Twenty-four (24) 16  that were implied by the statute, but |
17 asks for proof that the district 17 assumed it would be a paid employee.
18 notified Stacey of her eligibility for 18 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
19 healthcare benefits as required by 19 Q. And the professional employee
20 COBRA. Do you see that? 20 designation applies only to those who
21 A. Yes, | see that. 21  are certificated as teachers; correct,
22 Q. And to your knowledge the 22 if you know?
23 district did not do so; correct? 23 A. | don't know if that's always
24 A. That's correct. 24  the case, but in most cases it's a
25 Q. And am | correct that after the 25  certificated employee.
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Page 46 Page 48
1 Q. Now, all of the teachers that 1 Well, I'm going to --- if
2 you have at Conestoga Valley School are 2 you're going to go into the
3 certificated; am | correct? 3 Ethics Act, the definition of a
4 A Allthe employees? 4 public employee is very
5 Q. All the teachers. 5  different than the definition
6 A. All the teachers are 6 for an employee, in any event.
7 certificated. 7 So there's even further fuel
8 Q. Are you familiar with the term, 8 here on the questions about
9  temporary professional employee at the 9 employees.
10  School District? 10 ATTORNEY VOIGT:
11 A Yes. 11 Okay. Well, you can
12 Q. You would agree with me that 12 answer the question because it's
13 Stacey was not a temporary professional 13 a simple answer.
14  employee ---? 14 A Know what answer?
15 A That's correct. 15 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
16 Q. Let me finish the question. You 16 Q. The answer to whether Stacey was
17  would agree with me that during her 17 a public employee under the terms of
18 internship or her student teaching 18 the Ethics Act when she was a student
19 assignment in the spring of 2006, 19 teacher here.
20 Stacey was not a temporary professional 20 A. I'm not sure --- that document
21  employee of the Conestoga Valley School 21  --- and | may be misaligning it with
22 District as defined by the school code; 22 something --- applies to --- more
23 correct? 23 applies to administrators and Board
24  A.Thatis correct. 24 members and elected officials.
25 Q. Are you familiar with the 25 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
Page 47 Page 49
1 Pennsylvania Ethical Standard and 1 Itdoesn't apply to
2 Financial Disclosure requirements? 2 teachers, so | mean you're
3 A. Yes, generally. 3 really wasting time.
4 Q. Are you familiar with the term 4  BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
5 public employee ---? 5 Q. You referenced that Stacey was
6 A. Yes. 6 an apprentice. Are you applying some
7 Q. And let me finish the question. 7 definition of an apprentice that you
8 Are you familiar with the term public 8 can fill me in on?
9  employee as it's set forth in the 9  A. My understanding, student
10 Ethics Standards and Financial 10 teachers are apprentices. | use that
11  Disclosures section of the Pennsylvania 11 term like a teacher in training. We
12  statutes? 12 expect them to come in and act like a
13 A. Yes. 13 teacher and not act like a student.
14 Q. And you would agree with me that 14 They're learning the profession.
15 Stacey was not a public employee at the 15 Q. Are you aware that during her
16  time that she was performing her 16  time at Conestoga Valley School, Stacey
17 student teaching assignment? 17 attended some faculty meetings? Do you
18 ATTORNEY KELIN: 18 remember that?
19 1 have a continuing 19 A Student teachers aren't required
20 objection to asking Dr. Huesken 20 to attend faculty meetings, but many of
21  toapply his layman's knowledge 21  them do so that they're gaining the
22 to principle of law as covered 22 full experience of being a teacher.
23 by the regulations of the 23 Q. And you're aware that one of the
24 statute. 24 criticisms that Ms. Reinking levied
25 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 25 against Stacey was that she spoke up at
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Page 50

Page 52

1  faculty meetings? Do you know that? 1 in there, a parking tag that would
2 ATTORNEY KELIN: 2 normally be given to them. Let's see,
3 Obijection to the form. 3 the staff ID, which they would have
4 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 4 their picture taken like our other
5 I'm just going to object 5 employees and have to wear that. And
6  astoform. Moreover, he's 6  then also the athletic schedule. We
7  already testified he had no 7 didn't have any more of those and we
8  involvement in what took place 8 didn't think you needed it.
9 in May 2006, so I'm not sure 9 ATTORNEY KELIN:
10 whatyou're - 10 And let me just add. |
11 ATTORNEY VOIGT: 11 had asked Dr. Huesken, at the
12 I'll withdraw it. 12 request of counsel involved in
13  BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 13 litigation, if he could bring to
14  Q.You gave us a faculty and staff 14 the deposition the packet that
15  manual for 2007-2008. Do you havethat |15  had been given to student
16  ordoes your counsel have that? 16  teachers at the high school in
17 ATTORNEY KELIN: 17 the spring of 2006. And to the
18 s it 2006 through 2007 18 extent the materials from that
19 or 2005 through 20067 19 time were no longer available,
20  A. Well, do you want me to just 20 he simply produced the more
21  explain what this packet ---? 21 updated version of those
22 ATTORNEY KRAMER: 22 materials, and | believe that's
23 They tried to approximate 23 what this includes.
24 ---do you want me to explain 24 | will just note that the
25 it? 25 document that is affixed to the
Page 51 Page 53
1 ATTORNEY VOIGT: 1 packet does appear to be the
2  Well, let me ask the 2 procedural manual from 2005-
3 question, that way the reporter 3 2006. So that does appear to be
4 doesn't misunderstand. 4 one document that was, as |
5 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 5 understand it, given to student
6 Q. Please explain what this purple 6  teachers in the spring of 2006
7 pack is. 7 at the high school. The others
8 A. This is an approximation of a 8 appear to be more updated
9 packet that would have been given to a 9 versions of what had been given
10 student teacher in the spring of 2006. 10 at that time.
11 Unfortunately they have this year's 11 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT:
12 date on the front cover, which might be 12 Q. Well, let's start with the
13 confusing you. And some of the 13 faculty/staff procedural manual. Do
14  documents inside, like the calendar, 14 you know whether this was given to
15 like the student handbook, like the 15 student teachers at the start of the
16 professional handbook are updated from (16 spring semester 20067
17 that time. Also, if you look down the 17 A. This packet was given to student
18 list on the itemized list, there's no 18 teachers when they start in our
19 parking tag in there. 19 building, so, yes.
20 ATTORNEY KELIN: 20 Q. Why did they receive a
21 Bythelisthe's 21 faculty/staff procedural manual?
22 referring to the documents. 22 A. They were given these materials
23 A. Student teacher packet, itemized 23 because, as | said earlier, they're
24 list of what's included in here. There 24  teachers in training and we expect them
25 are certain things that aren't included 25 to act like teachers, not like
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Page 54 Page 56
1 students, which is why we share with 1 thatright?
2 them the same materials that we give 2 A Ginter, G-I-N-T-E-R.
3 our teachers. 3 Q.lIs he still employed by the
4 Q. Now, | have not had time to 4  district?
5 review this, but | suspect that there 5 A No, heis not.
6  is nothing in here about MySpace 6 Q. Do you know where he is?
7 accounts? 7 A. He's the principal of Warwick
8  A. That's correct. 8 High School.
9 Q. Why not? 9 Q. Andyou also -— it looks like
10 A.ldon't know if MySpace was 10 you gave a notebook ---,
11 something that was on the horizon at 11 A. Well, that's a handbook, a
12 that time. 12 student handbook.
13 Q. And can we also agree that there 13 Q. Student handbook. Why would you
14 is nothing in this procedural manual 14 give a student teacher a student
15 having to do with internet usage by a 15  handbook?
16  teacher or a student teacher outside of (16  A. Well, we give teachers a student
17 the confines of Conestoga Valley? 17 handbook so they know what students are
18 A. I know there are references to 18  getting and they know what rules that
19  appropriate use, whether or not it 19  they need to reinforce with the
20 defines it between on site or off site, 20 students. So this is also something
21 | can't say. 21  that they use for passage in the
22 ATTORNEY KELIN: 22 hallways. Students have to have that
23 Just for the record, the 23 with them at all times. And they sign
24 document speaks for itself, so | 24 off on it to give them permission to
25  don't think we need to get into 25  move from one area to another during
Page 55 Page 57
1 a rhetoric this morning. 1 classes. lIt's their passbook.
2 A. That's true. 2 Q. Now, I'm just thumbing through
3 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 3 this, but | don't see anything in the
4 Q. Did you personally brief any of 4 student handbook either about MySpace
5 the student teachers when they came to 5 accounts.
6 the building the first time? 6 A |Dbelieve there are some
7 A. No, | did not. 7 references to use of the internet in
8 Q. Do you know who did? 8  there, but I'm sure it doesn't mention
9 A The building principal. 9 MySpace.
10 Q. And in Ms. Snyder's case, who 10 Q. Well, actually I'm looking at
11 would that have been? 11 page 23 of this little spiral-bound
12 A. At the time, it would have been 12 notebook thing, where it appears to
13 Mr. Ginter. She would have been a part 13 have an Internet Access, E-mail and
14  of faculty meetings. The student 14 Network Resources Acceptable Use
15 teacher also works with their 15 Policy. Do you see that?
16 cooperating teacher. And to some 16 A Yes, ldo.
17 extent I'm sure the department 17 Q. Is that the same policy that
18 supervisor would be involved, but | 18  would be in effect for teachers or is
19  would say the primary folks would be 19 it different than that?
20 the building principal just in the 20 A. I'm sure it's different in some
21 general procedures, and the cooperating 21 fashion, but basically the same things
22 teacher who is directly responsible for 22 are imbedded in both policies.
23 the student teacher. 23 Q. Now, under purpose at the top,
24 Q. And that would be --- you said 24 you would agree with me that the
25 the principal would be Mr. Ginner; is 25 purpose is to regulate internet use
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Page 58

Page 60

1 within the Conestoga Valley School 1 teachers desks?
2 District, at least within the building, 2 A. If there is a workspace
3 use of computers in the building; 3 available in the room, we'd certainly
4 correct? 4 provide that for a student teacher.
5 A That's correct, or where outside 5 Q. If there is not one available,
6  use impacts the inside school 6  what would happen?
7 environment. 7 A.I'm sure that they always try to
8 Q. Where do you see that? 8  find some place where they can sit down
9 A. Well, | would think if a student 9 and at least work on things.
10 made a threat from home about a 10 Q. Does the district provide the
11  teacher, certainly we'd have to take 11  teachers a desk?
12 some action on that. 12 A.Yes, wedo.
13 Q. But my question is, where in the 13 Q. Turn to Exhibit 52. This is a
14 policy on page 23 do you see reference (14 note prepared by Deann Buffington.
15  to usage out of ---? 15 Have you ever seen this before?
16  A.ldon'tknow if it speaks to 16  A.lmay have seen it through our
17 internet out of school. It just talks 17  discussions with Howard.
18 about inappropriate use of the 18 Q. I'm not concerned with that,
19 internet. 19  really. Did you ever see this in or
20 Q. Now, let's see here. Is there 20  about May of 20067?
21  anything else that you gave to student 21 A.lcan't say that | did.
22 teachers other than this purple packet, 22 ATTORNEY VOIGT:
23 that you know of? 23 | have no further
24  A. Not that I'm aware of. 24 questions.
25 Q. Itlooks like on this blue sheet 25 EXAMINATION
Page 59 Page 61
1 there's a staff directory. Can we 1 BY ATTORNEY KRAMER:
2 agree that --- well, this is from '07- 2 Q. Good morning, Dr. Huesken.
3 '08. Was there a similar staff 3 A Good morning.
4 directory published by the district for 4 Q. Barry Kramer, | represent the
5 '05-'067 5  Millersville Defendant. | have just a
6 A. I'm sure there was. 6 few questions.
7 Q. And can we agree that Stacey was 7 A Okay.
8 not on it? 8 Q. Are student teachers expected to
9  A.We generally don't put student 8  comport themselves to act as employees
10 teachers on that list. 10 in their relationship with other ---
11 Q. And what's the reason for that? 11 with the students in the school?
12 A. They're not permanent paid 12 A As|said earlier, | truly
13 employees. 13 believe student teachers are teachers
14 Q. Stacey testified that she 14  intraining and we want them to act
15  brought her own desk in during her 15  like teachers and carry themselves like
16  student teaching assignment? Am | 16  teachers and follow the same levels of
17  correct that the district does not give 17  standards for behavior as we expect of
18 student teachers desks? 18  ourteachers.
19 ATTORNEY KELIN: 19 Q. So the rules and regulations of
20 | would object. That's 20  Conestoga Valley that relate to how
21 actually not in evidence. In 21 full-time paid teachers should behave
22 fact, the contrary is in 22 would also apply to student teachers?
23 evidence, but you can answer. 23 A lwould say so, since they're
24 BY ATTORNEY VOIGT: 24 teachers in training.
25 Q. Does the district give student 25  Q.Was Ms. Snyder at Conestoga
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Page 64

1  Valley to take courses? 1  things along those lines.
2 A No 2 ATTORNEY VOIGT:;
3 Q. Was she there in any sense as a 3 I'm going to object.
4 pupil? 4 ATTORNEY KELIN:
5 A No. 5 Yes. I'm going to
6  Q.Was she expected, or student 6 object, too, to the extent that
7  teachers, expected to comport 7 you're going to go into detail.
8  themselves as employees when dealing 8 Again, he said he wasn't
9  with appearance? 9 involved at the time.
10 A Yes. 10 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
11 Q. Same question with respect to 11 Actually, that's not what
12 dealing with other teachers? 12 I'm asking. I'm asking about
13 A Yes. 13 what he saw in the newspaper.
14 Q. How about same question with 14 ATTORNEY KELIN:
15  respect to dealing with other school 15 Well, l understand. |
16 personnel? 16 understand. 1'd just like you
17 A Yes. 17  tomove on. I'm not sure what
18 Q. After the lawsuit was filed in 18  the relevance of any of this is.
19 Federal Court, were you aware that 19 ATTORNEY VOIGT:
20  there was some media attention about 20 And newspaper articles
21  the lawsuit? 21  will speak for themselves. The
22 A Yes. 22 newspaper articles will say what
23 Q. What do you remember about that, 23 they say.
24  about the media attention? 24 BY ATTORNEY KRAMER:
25 A |l remember that there was an 25 Q. Did you have any involvement in
Page 63 Page 65
1 article in the newspaper and that there 1 preparing a notice that was on
2 was some subsequent information in the 2 Conestoga Valley's website?
3 newspaper following that. I'm not sure 3 A. Yes.
4 | know what you're asking. 4 Q. What do you remember about
5 Q. Well, naturally --- and what I'm 5 putting that together?
6  asking is, what kind of --- what do you 6 A. Well, | think we wanted to put
7  remember, if anything, --- 7 together the facts of the case from our
8  A.Uh-huh (yes). 8 perspective, that it wasn't just
9 Q. --- about the substance of the 9  MySpace, that there were other issues
10  articles, the media attention given to 10 involved. Although we didn't get
11  the lawsuit? 11 specific in that document, we did want
12 A Well, the focus seemed to be 12 to make a statement to the public that
13 more on the MySpace issue than anything (13 there were other issues involved.
14  else. And | knew there were other 14 Q. Butyou don't have any personal
15 issues below the surface that weren't 15 knowledge of these other issues that
16  really being addressed in the articles. 16  you're referring to, | presume?
17 Q. And if you could explain to us, 17  A.Personal in terms of, did |
18  what were these other issues below the 18 observe them, was | involved in being a
19  surface? 19  supervisor in the classroom, no.
20 A. Just concerns about her 20 Q. But how did these other issues
21 performance as a student teacher. 21  come to your attention?
22 Q. And can you expand upon that at 22 A. Through my assistant.
23 all? 23 Q. Mr. Seldomridge?
24 Al know there were concerns about 24 A. Yes.
25 professionalism, directions, different 25 ATTORNEY KRAMER:
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1 I have no more questions.
2 Thank you.
3 ATTORNEY VOIGT:
4  Thank you.
5 ATTORNEY KELIN:
6 No questions.
7 ok k kA
8 DEPOSITION CONCLUDED AT 11:22 A.M.
9 ok E ok ox w
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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